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PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Forward-Looking Statements and Risk Factors

This report includes forwatdeking statements. In particular, statements abauexpectations, beliefs, plans, objectives, mggions o
future events or performance are contained or purated by reference in this report. We have b#sesk forward-looking statements on our
current expectations about future events. Whildeleeve these expectations are reasonable, suelrdiooking statements are inherently
subject to risks and uncertainties, many of whiehkseyond our control. Our actual results may diffaterially from those suggested by tr
forward-looking statements for various reasonduitiag those discussed in this report under thelingd'Risk Factors" at page 31. Given
these risks and uncertainties, you are cautionetbrgace undue reliance on such forward-lookitagesnents. The forward-looking
statements included in this report are made onbf #ise date hereof. We do not undertake and dpaltyf decline any obligation to update
any such statements or to publicly announce thdtsesf any revisions to any of such statementgfiect future events or developments.

Overview

We, Gilead Sciences, Inc., are an indepangiepharmaceutical company that discovers, d@getmd commercializes therapeutics to
advance the care of patients suffering from lifee#itening diseases worldwide. We have five marketeducts and focus our research and
clinical programs on anti-infectives, including iairals, antifungals and antibacterials. We aredugmrtered in Foster City, California and
have marketing operations in ten countries, inclgdhe United States, Australia and eight Europeamtries. We endeavor to grow our
existing portfolio of products through proprietafinical development programs, internal discovemygoams and an active product acquisi
and in-licensing strategy. Our internal discovertnaties include identification of new moleculargets, target screening and medicinal
chemistry. We also have expertise in liposomal dielgvery technology that we use to develop drings &re safer, easier for patients to
tolerate and more effective.

We were incorporated in Delaware on Junel237.
We have five products that are currentlykated in the U.S. and in other countries worldwide

. Viread™ is approved for sale in the U.S. for useambination with other antiretroviral agents foe treatment of HIV
infection and in the European Union for use in coration with other antiretroviral agents for theatment of HIV infection in
patients who are experiencing early virologicalufias.

. AmBisome® is approved for sale in 43 countriestfar treatment of life-threatening fungal infecti@msl in some of these
countries for prevention of such infections. We keatAmBisome in the major countries of Europe angpmomote AmBisome
in the U.S. with Fujisawa Healthcare, i



. Tamiflu® is sold by our corporate partner Hoffmame-Roche in more than 40 countries for the treatroémfluenza and is
approved in the U.S. for the prevention of influenz

. Vistide® is approved for sale in 25 countries foe treatment of CMV retinitis in AIDS patients.

. DaunoXome® is approved for sale in more than 2(htiaes for the treatment of AIDS-related Kaposiscoma.

We have a U.S. sales force that promotesadi AmBisome, Vistide and DaunoXome, and an fiatiéonal sales force in Europe and
Australia that promotes Viread, AmBisome and Daunim.

We also have corporate partners and distributampting AmBisome, Vistide and DaunoXome in morentB& countries.

We are studying adefovir dipivoxil in twagoing Phase Il trials for the treatment of infeotwith hepatitis B virus, or HBV and have
filed for regulatory approval in the U.S. and Eurdgased on results to date. We believe that aded@iivoxil has the potential to address
many of the limitations of current HBV therapiespshnotably drug resistance associated with long-taerapy.

In November 2001, we announced that wedmered into an agreement with OSI Pharmaceuticais(OSlI), valued at up to
$200.0 million in cash and stock, under which weead to sell our oncology assets to OSI. The tetitsawas completed in December 2001
and we recorded a gain of $157.8 million. This seation will allow us to focus on and continue ti@isgthen our core expertise in infectious
diseases. In the transaction, we sold to OSI quelipie of clinical candidates in oncology (NX 23S 7904L, and GS 7836) and all related
intellectual property, as well as our Boulder, Gattp operations, including clinical research angydtevelopment operations, infrastructure
and facilities. Upon the completion of the trangattOSI paid us $130.0 million in cash and 924,8Bdres of OSI common stock. OSI will
also pay us up to an additional $30.0 million ithei cash or a combination of cash and OSI comrtamk :ipon the achievement of certain
milestones by OSI related to the development of24X, the most advanced of the oncology productidates sold in the transaction. Under
a manufacturing agreement, using active ingredigmpplied to us through OSI, we will produce NX Zifd GS 7904L, the two liposomal
products included in the sale, at our manufactuiaegity in San Dimas, California.

Our Marketed Products

The products that we have developed tlemtammercially available include:

. Viread: a drug for treating HIV infection;

. AmBisome: a drug for treating and preventing life-threatgniungal infections;

. Tamiflu : a drug for treating and preventing influenza;

. Vistide: a drug for treating cytomegalovirus (or CMV) ndtiis in AIDS patients; and
. DaunoXome: a drug for treating AlDS-related Kaposi's sarcoma

How these products are sold, and the itidics that they are approved for, vary with eaatdpct and in each country or region where
they are sold.

In 2001, we earned revenues of approxim&213.9 million from sales of and royalties ongl@roducts. Of this amount, sales of
AmBisome generated aggregate product sales anttyogaenues of approximately $181.6 million, o®@®f our total revenues. We earned
revenues from sales of, and royalties on, thesgéuyats in the U.S. of $53.3 million in 2001, $30.8lion in 2000 and $25.1 million in 1999.
Outside of the U.S., we earned revenues from sdjemd royalties on, these products of $160.7iomlin 2001, $143.6 million in 2000 and
$125.0 million in 1999. We did not begin recogn@ievenues from commercial sales of Viread untié&mnber 2001. We expect that
revenues we earn from sales of Viread in 2002 toptse an increased percentage of our total rexeenvtgch will decrease the percentag
our total revenues from sales of AmBisome, althowgtcannot predict with any certainty our futureeneues from either AmBisome or
Viread.

Viread

Viread is a formulation of a nucleotide lgaie reverse transcriptase inhibitor, tenofovir, B&sed as one 300 mg pill, once a day as par
of combination therapy to treat HIV infection inudis. Viread is approved for sale in the U.S. fse in combination with other antiretroviral
agents for the



treatment of HIV infection and for sale in the Epean Union for use in combination with other antoeral agents for the treatment of HIV
infection in patients who are experiencing earlphdgical failure. We sell Viread in the U.S. thghuour U.S. sales force and in the major
European countries through our European salesso8ee "Marketing and Sales."

In September 2001 and February 2002, réispdg we announced 24 week and 48 week effecégsrand safety results from study 907,
a 48-week pivotal Phase llI clinical trial evalumgiViread as a component of combination theraBbid treatment-experienced patients at 70
sites in the U.S., Europe and Australia. We desigiiedy 907 to provide us with conclusive datatendafety and effectiveness of Viread. In
this study, patients were randomly divided into gvoups: one group of patients who had Viread addéldeir existing therapy during the
first 24 weeks (two-thirds of enrolled patients)dane group of patients who were given placelsdifition to their existing therapy during
the first 24 weeks (one-third of enrolled patientd) patients were given Viread in addition to ithexisting therapy during the second 24
weeks. These results demonstrate that, following/@dks and 48 weeks of treatment:

. Viread reduced patients' serum HIV DNA, a measfita@amount of HIV, at 24 weeks by an averageppiraximately 75% (-
0.61 log,,copies/mL), which meets the primary endpoint of thial, compared to a reduction of approximatéy (?0.03 log

10Copies/mL) in patients who received placebo, amtBateeks by approximately 73% (-0.57 lggopies/mL).

. Viread suppressed HIV viral loads to below 400 espilL at 24 weeks in approximately 45% of patiectsppared to 13% of
patients who received placebo, and at 48 week49f df patients.

. Viread increased patients' CD4 cell counts at Bdtlweeks and 48 weeks while patients who receilecepo had their CD4
cell counts decrease at 24 weeks. An increase i &b count is an important indication that an Hikg is improving a
patient's immune system.

. The rates of discontinuation of use at 24 weekeweuivalent for patients using Viread and patiestag placebo (6%).

. Viread did not cause a significant increase ofseyiside effects relative to placebo at 24 weekd tlae safety profile of Viree
at 48 weeks was similar to that at 24 weeks.

. Only three percent (3%) of patients receiving Vireigveloped resistance to Viread at both 24 andekks. Additionally,
Viread treatment at 24 weeks significantly redutexldevelopment of mutations associated with thsscbf antiretroviral
agents known as protease inhibitors (2%), compaitdthe placebo group (8%).

In September 2000, we presented the refsatisa 48-week Phase Il dose ranging clinical tfaenofovir DF in 189 treatment-
experienced patients. In this study, patients veckone of three doses of tenofovir DF (300 mg, hg0or 75 mg) or placebo, in addition to
their existing combination therapy. At week 24 i@atls receiving placebo were switched to the 30Cogge. This trial showed that, in this
patient population, following 24 weeks of treatmémgher doses of tenofovir DF were associated loitker levels of serum HIV DNA
compared to placebo and that at week 48, highexsdotenofovir DF were associated with lower |swafl serum HIV DNA compared to
baseline. At each measurement point, the greadattion was observed in the 300 mg group. Theysilsth showed that 48 weeks of dosing
with tenofovir DF did not result in an increasesefious adverse events compared to the lower @ésesofovir DF.

The Phase Il results from study 907, caratiwith our completed Phase Il results, supparbelief that Viread can be an important
treatment option for these difficult to treat treant-experienced patients. The data from studya®@Plthe 24 week data from study 907,
together with data from other clinical trials, faththe basis of U.S. marketing application thatite. Food and Drug
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Administration (FDA) approved in October 2001, dhe European Union application approved in Febr2ag2.

We are continuing to evaluate Viread feating patients who have not had prior HIV therdpylanuary 2001, we completed enrollnr
of 601 patients in study 903, a Phase IlI clinicall that will compare the safety and effectivemestreatment of patients who have not had
prior HIV therapy with Viread in combination witarmivudine (3TC) and efavirenz to the safety and@if¥eness of treatment with stavudine
(d4T), lamivudine and efavirenz. This study wilbgide additional information about Viread for tiegtthis patient population and, if
successful, will form the basis of a supplementatkating application in the European Union for thsée.

One of the major challenges in treating Hitfected patients is drug resistance. Because rofthe existing therapies for treating HIV
infection and AIDS rely on similar drug processestjents who have developed resistance to oneafteg develop resistance to other drugs
within its class. We believe that Viread, whererappd by regulatory authorities, could be a verpamant drug for treatment-experienced
patients because available data have shown thahtmtio not develop rapid resistance to VireadthatlViread is effective in treatir



patients who have developed resistance to otheayiles. We cannot be certain, however, that thisteexe data we may obtain upon
completion of our Phase 1l clinical trials will stv similar resistance characteristics to the 24kvaeel 48 week data from study 907 or the
data we obtained from the more limited Phase hicdil trials.

Another major concern in HIV treatment @eenience of dosing. The combination therapiesateahaving a very positive impact on
the health of HIV-infected patients require theagnts to take numerous different drugs. Soméese drugs require multiple doses every
day and many have timing restrictions. This noyarkults in inconvenience for patients but alsetgbutes to patients missing doses or not
adhering to their therapy. Viread is approved t@atinistered as a once-daily oral pill, which schedule that may be appealing to HIV-
infected patients and their physicians. The lovealiginuation rate observed for Viread supports leisef.

In December 1999, we discontinued develppidefovir dipivoxil for treating HIV-infected patits. This decision followed a
recommendation by an FDA Advisory Panel not to appra 60 mg dose of adefovir dipivoxil for treatidty infection due primarily to
concerns of kidney toxicity that developed lat¢hie trials, as well as a desire for additional ewick of treatment benefits. Tenofovir DF h
structure and activity similar to adefovir dipivbxXiVhile Viread has not been associated with kidiweqgcity and has shown superior treatrr
benefits in our clinical trials, we cannot be certhat the kidney toxicity issues that occurredhia later stages of the Phase Il clinical trials
for adefovir dipivoxil for HIV will not arise for Wfead.

Viread faces substantial competition. A bemof drugs to treat HIV infection and AIDS areremtly sold or are in advanced stages of
clinical development, including 17 products curhgsbld in the U.S. Among the major pharmaceutemahpanies that are significant
competitors in the HIV/AIDS market are GlaxoSmithi€, Bristol-Myers Squibb, Hoffmann-La Roche, Pfiaderck, Boehringer-Ingelheim
and Abbott Laboratories. See "Competition."

We have an exclusive, worldwide licenspdtent rights and related technology for Vireadrfribe Institute of Organic Chemistry and
Biochemistry (part of the Academy of Sciences ef @zech Republic) and Rega Stichting v.z.w. (togret©CB/REGA) and are obligated to
pay 3% of any net revenues from sales of Vired®®B/REGA in the U.S., the European Union, and aiier countries where the produc
approved and has patent protection. See "CollaberRelationships—IOCB/REGA."
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AmBisome

AmBisome is a liposomal formulation of amricin B. Amphotericin B is a powerful antifungadent that is known for its ability to
attack and kill a broad variety of life-threatenfioggal infections, but it also has serious side@s$, including kidney toxicity. The patients
most likely to suffer from these fungal infecticen® patients with weakened immune systems, inajulansplant patients, patients infected
with HIV, and cancer patients undergoing chemotiner&tudies show that by delivering amphotericimBur proprietary liposomal
formulation, AmBisome reduces the rate and sevefisidney toxicity and injection-related reactiomsd allows these patients to receive
higher and more effective doses of amphotericin B.

AmBisome is approved for sale in 44 cowsrincluding the U.S., all of the European Unimiest of the rest of Europe, Australia,
Canada, and several countries in the Middle EadinlAmerica and Asia. AmBisome is primarily used treating patients who are known to
have life-threatening fungal infections. In 19 loé ttountries where AmBisome is approved, includimgU.S., we are authorized to promote
AmBisome as a first line treatment for these pasielm the remaining 25 countries, AmBisome is appd for use in this indication after
conventional amphotericin B therapy fails or whenwentional amphotericin B cannot be used—thus, second line therapy. In addition,
AmBisome is approved in the U.S. and 23 other aoems first line therapy for patients who, beeanfscertain symptoms, are presumed to
have fungal infections. In the U.S. and four otbauntries, AmBisome also has been approved astdifie treatment of acute cryptococcal
meningitis in AIDS patients. In addition, AmBisonseapproved as a treatment for preventing fungaktions in liver transplant patients in
four countries and in additional types of transplgatients in Russia. AmBisome is approved fortingga parasitic infection called visceral
leishmaniasis in more than 20 countries.

In the U.S., we co-promote AmBisome withigawa Healthcare through our domestic sales fabee.agreement with Fujisawa entitles
us to a percentage of revenues generated from siadéeseand provides that Fujisawa purchases AmRBigoom us at our manufacturing cost.
See "Collaborative Relationships—Fujisawa." Intiegor European countries and in Australia, we AgiBisome through our international
sales force, in certain other countries we sell AsoBie through independent distributors. See "Margednd Sales." Our corporate partner,
Sumitomo, is studying AmBisome in clinical triats Japan, where the drug is not yet approved fokeatizng. Sumitomo has the exclusive
right to sell AmBisome in Japan, and we will reee@&vpercentage of any revenues that they recevetfrose sales. See "Collaborative
Relationships—Sumitomo." Most of our revenues fldmBisome are in Europe, and we expect this to becfse for the foreseeable future.
In most major European countries, we sell AmBisamithe currency of that country, and our revenued.iS. dollars could therefore decre
if the value of those currencies were to decrealsgive to the value of the U.S. dollar.

AmBisome has several current and expeactatpetitors:

. conventional amphotericin B in markets where AmBischas been approved as a first line therapy. Guiovel amphotericin



B is made by Bristol-Myers Squibb Company and numasgeneric manufacturers. In many countries, Amfis cannot be
prescribed until conventional amphotericin B thgrhps failed or cannot be used.

. caspofungin, a product developed by Merck thativeceU.S. marketing approval in January 2001 anpean Union
marketing approval in October 2001.

. voriconazole, which is being developed by Pfizec, has received marketing approval from the Ewanggnion in
March 2002. In the U.S., the FDA has deemed Pfidégss Drug Application (NDA) for voriconazole apmable.
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. other lipid-based amphotericin B products appraweithie U.S. and throughout Europe, including Abelseld by Elan
Corporation, and Amphotec, sold by InterMune Phaeunécals, Inc. These products compete against AoiBé as both
primary and secondary therapy and are generalrexdfat prices that are less than AmBisome's price.

See "Competition."
Tamiflu

Tamiflu is an oral pill for the treatmemtdaprevention of influenza A and B. Tamiflu is irclass of prescription drugs called
neuraminidase inhibitors that act by disablingcalinmon strains of the flu virus and preventing\tinas from spreading in a patient. Tamiflu
originally was approved by the FDA in October 1980the treatment of uncomplicated influenza inlagatients, and in November 2000
was approved by the FDA for the prevention of ieflma in adults and adolescents 13 years and tddBecember 2000, Tamiflu was
approved in Japan for the treatment of influenzadults and in the U.S. for the treatment of cleifdas young as one year old. In March 2
the application in the European Union to market iflanfor treatment and prevention of influenza wasommended for approval by a
scientific advisory committee of the responsiblerazy.

When used as approved for the treatmeimfloenza, Tamiflu has been shown to reduce thatchnr of the flu in adults by an average of
1.3 days, and to reduce the severity of flu sympgtamd the incidence of secondary infections. Whkart as approved for the prevention of
influenza, studies have shown that Tamiflu is up2éo effective in preventing the development offtheThe most common side effects
associated with Tamiflu are mild nausea and vorgitin

Hoffmann-La Roche, our corporate partneowhveloped Tamiflu with us and who has the exetusight to sell Tamiflu, began selling
Tamiflu in the U.S. in November 1999. In May 198fffmann-La Roche submitted a Marketing AuthorisatApplication to the European
Union seeking to have Tamiflu approved under theredized procedure there. This European Unionieatbn was withdrawn by
Hoffmann-La Roche to enable Hoffmann-La Roche tansitiadditional data. This application was re-filgdHoffmann-La Roche in
February 2001. In January 2002, Hoffmann-La Rocimanced that due to production problems the ligugbension form of Tamiflu
approved for treatment of children as young asyaae old was not available but was expected to/aéadle in the 2002-2003 flu season.
These production issues do not affect availabdftthe tablet form of Tamiflu for adults and adaests 13 years and older. We do not expect
the current production issues to have a materfatebn our earnings. We receive a percentageeofi¢h revenues that Hoffmann-La Roche
generates from sales of Tamiflu. See "Collabora#etationships—Hoffmann-La Roche."

There are several products that have begifable to treat the flu for some time, but theyé not been shown to be as effective or as
safe as neuraminidase inhibitors. Relenza, anflandiFug sold by GlaxoSmithKline, is the only otheguraminidase inhibitor that has been
approved by the FDA. This drug, which is deliveasdan inhaled powder, is direct competition for famTamiflu currently is the only
FDA-approved neuraminidase inhibitor that is ava@éan a pill and we believe that this method divday gives Tamiflu a competitive
advantage over Relenza. We are aware, howeveBih@ryst Pharmaceuticals is developing a neuratase inhibitor, peramivir, that has
the potential to be delivered as a once-daily(fp#imiflu is taken twice daily for treatment of fllVhen and if BioCryst Pharmaceuticals
receives approval for this product, it will alsodiieect competition for Tamiflu. See "Competition."

Tamiflu is not being marketed as an altéweao influenza vaccinations. We believe thatuahza vaccinations will remain the most
effective method of preventing the flu.

Vistide

Vistide is an antiviral medication for thheatment of CMV retinitis in patients with AIDSMY retinitis is a condition caused by a viral
infection that is characterized by lesions thatfan a patient's retina. This condition affectsspas with weakened immune systems and is
most common in patients with AIDS. If left untredit€€MV retinitis can lead to blindness. Vistide vegeproved by the FDA in June 1996 ¢



by the European regulatory authorities in May 1B83ed on clinical trials demonstrating that thegdielays the progression of CMV retinitis
lesions in newly diagnosed patients and in preWosated patients who had failed other therapies.

We sell Vistide in the U.S. through our Us8les force. See "Marketing and Sales.” Out$idetS., Pharmacia Corporation has the
exclusive right to sell Vistide. Vistide is appravior sale in all 15 countries of the European Wras well as in several other countries
throughout the world. Pharmacia Corporation paya psrcentage of revenues it generates from sbMistale. See "Collaborative
Relationships—Pharmacia Corporation."

Vistide competes with a number of drugg tso treat CMV retinitis. These drugs include:

. ganciclovir, a drug that is sold in intravenous ana formulations by Hoffman La-Roche and as amacimplant by
Bausch & Lomb Incorporated;

. valganciclovir, an oral pro-drug formulation of géiovir, also marketed by Hoffman La-Roche;
. foscarnet, an intravenous drug sold by AstraZenaied;
. formivirsen, a drug that is injected directly inte eye that is sold by CibaVision.

See "Competition."

The most significant side effect associatétl the use of Vistide is kidney toxicity. Duettus side effect, certain precautions must be
taken when Vistide is used, and in certain circamses Vistide may not be used. Each time Vistidgvisn to a patient, the patient must first
be tested for warning signs of kidney toxicitytHeé patient does not have warning signs of kidoaicity, Vistide may be given to that patit
but only in combination with certain solutions thetluce the possibility of kidney toxicity. In atidn, Vistide may not be given to patients
who are receiving other drugs that can cause kitimeygity. Patients who are receiving other drugst tare known to cause kidney toxicity
must discontinue taking those drugs and then veai¢rs days before using Vistide. In certain animadies, cidofovir, the active ingredient in
Vistide, has caused cancer. These side effectsl@sidg limitations are a competitive disadvantaigeistide.

Cidofovir, the active agent in Vistide bising considered as part of the U.S. governmeatesgty for dealing with potential bioterror
attacks involving smallpox, a life-threatening iciieus disease. In laboratory tests, cidofovir desionstrated activity against all 30 strains of
the virus that causes smallpox. In current clintdals of diluted smallpox vaccine conducted bg National Institute of Allergy and
Infectious Diseases, cidofovir is a potential et for vaccinia infection, a potential adversact®mn sometimes caused by the smallpox
vaccine. Additionally, the U.S. National InstitutelsHealth holds an IND that allows for the emergense of cidofovir for smallpox
outbreaks. We cannot predict whether the U.S. leeratountries may stockpile Vistide for the treatina smallpox.

We have an exclusive, worldwide licensedtent rights and related technology for cidofdsom IOCB/REGA and are obligated to pay
5% of net revenues from sales of Vistide or angpfiroducts containing cidofovir to IOCB/REGA. Séwllaborative Relationships—
IOCB/REGA."

DaunoXome

DaunoXome is a liposomal formulation of #rgicancer agent daunorubicin. We have receivedoapl to sell DaunoXome in the U.S.
and more than 20 other countries as a first lieeaby for

treating patients who suffer from certain type$id¥-associated Kaposi's sarcoma. Kaposi's sarcgraalisease characterized by widely
disseminated lesions in the skin, mucous membrdyraph nodes and viscera that can be life threatefdr patients suffering from AIDS.

DaunoXome uses our proprietary liposomethielogy to deliver safer and more effective daffedaunorubicin to the disease site.
Studies have shown that DaunoXome may actuallytdomad accumulate in the patient's tumor and afl@atient to receive higher
concentrations of daunorubicin at the diseasetlsite could be obtained with an equivalent doseoofliposomal daunorubicin.

We market DaunoXome in the U.S. and abtbezligh our sales forces and, in certain foreigmtaes, by distributors. See "Marketing
and Sales."

Our Products In Late Stage Clinical Trials

We are developing adefovir dipivoxil indar; late-stage human clinical trials for treatiagignts infected with HBV. Based on results to
date, we applied for approval of adefovir dipivdxit treatment of HBV infection in the U.S. and tBeropean Union in March 200



We have exclusive commercial rights to rea&idecin™in 16 European countries. Cidecin is an antibazténiat is being developed |
Cubist Pharmaceuticals, Inc. in Phase Il and Phbsknical trials. Cubist has completed two sussil pivotal Phase 11l clinical trials for
treatment of complicated skin and soft tissue itides caused by gramesitive bacteria, and one pivotal Phase Il chihtcial for treatment ¢
community-acquired pneumonia caused by gram-pesitacteria, in which Cidecin was not successfuh@eting the primary endpoint. We
are evaluating our strategies for applying for tatpry approval of Cidecin in Europe and do notrently expect to file such an application in
2002.

We cannot determine with any certaintyny @angoing or future clinical trials for adefoviipdsoxil or Cidecin will be successful and, if
they are successful, whether or not the FDA orratbgulatory agencies will approve any of thesegdrior marketing.

Adefovir Dipivoxil for Hepatitis B

Hepatitis B is caused by the highly condagiHBV, and HBV infection can cause acute livéufa. Some patients develop a chronic
HBYV infection which over many years can lead to pboations (such as cirrhosis, liver cancer andrlifailure) that can result in death.
According to current estimates from the World He&rganization and the Centers for Disease Corttretg are approximately 350 million
people worldwide and about 1.25 million peoplehia U.S. who have chronic HBV infection. There dvewt one million deaths attributable
to HBV infection worldwide each year, and hepatiiss one of the ten leading causes of death wadewAdefovir dipivoxil is a nucleotide
analogue reverse transcriptase inhibitor. Adefdipivoxil disables HBV by interfering with the aeiy of an enzyme known as HBV
polymerase, which is necessary for HBV to replicate

We have two separate Phase lll clinicaldrto evaluate the safety and effectiveness dbaatedipivoxil pills for treating patients with
chronic HBV infection. Both of our Phase Ill triaksere designed as randomized, double-blind, placentrolled studies and are being
conducted at clinical sites in the U.S., Canadaope Australia and Southeast Asia. Study 437 aduenting adefovir dipivoxil for treating
patients who test positive for the HBV "e" antigdre most common type of chronic hepatitis B. Ttieeptrial, study 438, is evaluating
adefovir dipivoxil once daily at 10 mg for treatipgtients with a type of HBV known as "precore mataepatitis B." Precore mutant HBV is
most common in Southeast Asian and the Mediterraneantries.

In June and November 2001, respectivelyameounced interim and complete analyses of 48-w#ektiveness and safety results from
study 437, a 96-week pivotal Phase Ill clinicaltevaluating the safety and effectiveness of adeétpivoxil at a 10 mg dose once daily as
monotherapy compared to

placebo in 515 patients with chronic HBV infectiwho were HBV "e" antigen positive at 78 sites ia thnited States, Canada, Europe,
Australia and Southeast Asia. We designed Studytd®rovide us with data on the safety and effectass of the 10 mg dose of adefovir
dipivoxil and, as a secondary objective, of a 30duge of adefovir dipivoxil. In this study, 515 ieats were randomly divided into three
groups of approximately equal size: one group veweived a 10 mg dose of adefovir dipivoxil, oneugravho received a 30 mg dose of
adefovir dipivoxil, and one group who received plag. The results for adefovir dipivoxil in the 1@ mnce daily dose demonstrate that,
following 48 weeks of treatment:

. Adefovir dipivoxil improved liver histology in 53%f patients as compared to 25% of patients whavedelacebo, which
meets the primary endpoint of this trial. Changévier histology is an important marker of dise@segression in patients with
chronic HBV infection.

. Adefovir dipivoxil caused seroconversion, the digagrance of the hepatitis B "e" antigen, a markétRBV replication, and
the appearance of antibodies specific for thisgantj in 12% of patients treated with adefovir dipiV for 48 weeks, compared
to 6% of patients on placebo.

. Adefovir dipivoxil reduced patients' serum HBV DNa measure of the amount of HBV, by an averag@pfaximately
99.97% (-3.52 log copies/mL), which meets an endpoint of this tca@impared to a reduction of approximately 72% (-0.55

log ;,copies/mL) in patients who received placebo.

. Adefovir dipivoxil reduced amino alanine transferd8LT) levels by 51 IU/L, compared to a reductmfril7 IU/L for patients
who received placebo. Forty-eight percent of pai¢reated with adefovir dipivoxil at 10 mg achidvweormalization of ALT
levels, compared to 16% of patients receiving fdac@LT levels are indicators of disease severity.

. Adefovir dipivoxil did not cause a significant ir&se of serious side effects relative to placebo.
. There was no evidence of kidney abnormalities timezithe adefovir dipivoxil or placebo groups.
. There were similar discontinuation rates for pasearsing adefovir dipivoxil (7%) and patients uspigcebo (8%).

. No patients receiving adefovir dipivoxil were obgst to have developed resistance mutations to wide



In September 2001, we announced 48-wedkpnary effectiveness and safety results from gt488, a 96-week pivotal Phase |l
clinical trial evaluating the safety and effectiess of adefovir dipivoxil at a dose of 10 mg ona#ydas monotherapy compared to placebo in
185 patients with precore mutant HBV, or HBV "e'tigan-negative virus and compensated liver funcfienere the liver is functioning at or
near normal levels) at 32 sites in Australia, Can&dance, Greece, Israel, Italy and Southeast M&adesigned study 438 to provide us with
conclusive data on the safety and effectivenesisenf0 mg once daily dosage of adefovir dipivoail frecore mutant HBV. In this study,
patients were randomly divided into two groups: graup of patients who were treated with adefoipnabxil 10 mg once daily (two-thirds
of enrolled patients), and one group of patients wiere given placebo (one-third of enrolled pasgnthese results demonstrate that,
following 48 weeks of treatment with adefovir dipil in the 10 mg once daily dose:

. Adefovir dipivoxil improved liver histology in 64%f patients as compared to improvements in 33%atiépts who received
placebo, which meets the primary endpoint of thigd.tChange in liver histology is an important ke of disease progression
in patients with chronic HBV infection.

. Adefovir dipivoxil reduced patients' serum HBV DN an average of approximately 99.99% (-3.91,|pgppies/mL), which
meets an endpoint of this trial, compared to acidn of approximately 95.53% (-1.35 Iggcopies/mL) in patients who
received placebo.

. Adefovir dipivoxil reduced ALT levels by 55 IU/Lompared to a reduction of 38 IU/L for patients whoeived placebo.
Seventy-two percent of patients treated with adefdipivoxil achieved normalization of ALT levelspmpared to 29% of
patients receiving placebo. ALT levels are indicatof disease severity.

. Adefovir dipivoxil did not cause a significant ir&se of serious side effects relative to placebo.

. There was no evidence of kidney abnormalities timegithe adefovir dipivoxil or placebo groups.

. There were equivalent discontinuation rates (2%)p#dients using adefovir dipivoxil and patientgngsplacebo.
. No patients receiving adefovir dipivoxil were obssat to have developed resistance mutations to aidefo

A vaccine is available that can preventtthasmission of HBV, but it does not cure patientt® become chronically infected with the
virus. We expect that as this vaccine becomes mitely available, the incidence of new HBV infectiwill decrease. Existing therapies for
treating patients who are infected with HBV inclutle drugs Epivir-HBV (a form of lamivudine thatssld by GlaxoSmithKline) and Intron-
A (a form of interferon alpha 2b that is sold bynh&dng Plough). Epivir-HBV is an orally administdrantiviral drug that prevents HBV from
replicating in patients. Intron-A is an injectableug that can provide a reduction in the amounirefs in the blood of some patients but is
often associated with side effects. We believeiftthe FDA approves adefovir dipivoxil, Epivir-HBWould be its most significant
competition. We cannot be certain that adefoviiigil will be approved for the treatment of HBVfettion, and we cannot determine if
adefovir dipivoxil would be competitive with EpiviiBV. See "Competition."

As is the case with HIV infection, drugistance is a serious problem with drugs that ##2¥ infection. For example, after one year of
therapy with Epivir-HBV, from 15% to 32% of patisndevelop resistance to lamivudine, increasing/é @fter four years of therapy. Based
on published data, lamivudine resistance occusipercent of HIV/HBV co-infected patients afteiotyears of lamivudine therapy and in
90 percent of patients treated up to four yearshdie conducted or provided support for clinicall$rdesigned to provide information as to
whether adefovir dipivoxil could provide a treatrheption for patients with lamivudine-resistant Hifection. Data from four clinical
studies of patients with lamivudine-resistant HBN¥ection who were treated with adefovir dipivox@l ing once daily demonstrate that:

. Treating patients who have lamivudine-resistant HBféction with adefovir dipivoxil can reduce serdtiBY DNA levels.

. Study 461: In patients with lamivudine-resistantoctic HBV infection and compensated liver functigrhere the liver is
functioning at normal or near normal levels), radus at 16 weeks in serum HBV DNA in patients teglawith only adefovir
dipivoxil, 99.86% (-2.86 log10 copies/mL), were ganto those in patients treated with adefoviridixil in combination with
lamivudine 100 mg daily, 99.87% (-2.87 log10 copids), and greater than those in patients treatdg with lamivudine 100
mg daily, 14.89% (-0.07 log10 copies/mL).

. Study 435: In liver transplant patients with landineresistant chronic HBV infection who were treatedwadefovir dipivoxi

for 48 weeks, serum HBV DNA levels were reduce®8% (-3.7 log10 copies/mL) at 24 weeks and abol8%3% (4.6 log1(
copies/mL) at 48 weeks, and
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administration of adefovir dipivoxil sustained teegductions for up to 72 weeks, with a median cgdo in HBV DNA of
about 99.998% (-4.7 log10 copies/mL).

. Study 465: In patients with lamivudine-resistantoctic HBV infection and decompensated liver disgadeere the liver is no
longer functioning normally, leading to signs agchptoms of liver disease) who were treated withf@adedipivoxil added to
ongoing lamivudine treatment, median reductioneirusr HBV DNA was approximately 99.9879%3(9 log10 copies/mL) at 2
weeks of treatment.

. Study 460i: After 72 weeks of treatment with adéfalipivoxil added to existing lamivudine therapatients co-infected with
lamivudine-resistant chronic HBV and HIV infectiohad statistically significant mean reductionsenusn HBV DNA of
99.998% (-4.74 log10 copies/mL).

. In all four studies, patients who had markers iatligy abnormal liver function prior to treatmenbsted improvements in
clinical markers of liver function after treatmemith adefovir dipivoxil.

Available data to date has not demonstratasbistance-mutation associated with adefovivdil in HBV suggesting that the
development of resistance to adefovir dipivoxiHBV patients may be slow and infrequent. We beligna the resistance profile of adefovir
dipivoxil could make it an important drug for trereg chronic HBYV infection. We cannot be certainwaewer, that the resistance data we may
obtain from the continuing Phase 11l clinical tdan adefovir dipivoxil will continue to show thesssistance characteristics.

As described above under Viread, we disnaetl development of adefovir dipivoxil 60 mg foedtment of HIV infection due to safety
and benefit concerns arising from our studies. i8tudave shown that adefovir dipivoxil is signifitly more effective against HBV than
against HIV, allowing us to use lower doses thartfeatment of HIV infection. The 10 mg doses oéfadir dipivoxil have not shown
significant kidney toxicity in our clinical triaf® date. Clinical data from our Phase Ill clinit@hls on the 10 mg dose of adefovir dipivoxil
have demonstrated that the 10 mg dose met the pyriemalpoints for those studies. We cannot be cettait the results from these Phase I
clinical studies of adefovir dipivoxil at the 10 rdgse will demonstrate, to the satisfaction of R\ and other regulatory agencies, that
adefovir dipivoxil can be a safe and effective tme@nt for chronic HBV infection.

Hepatitis B infection is most common in @iand Southeast Asian countries. In December 2@®0eceived a clinical trials permit to
initiate Phase | clinical trials in China. We commed these clinical trials in June 2001. We hawétéid regulatory expertise in China and no
manufacturing or marketing capacity in China andtBeast Asia. Therefore, we will continue to refytbe assistance of third parties for
these activities. It is also difficult to protecitpnts in these countries and we could be adveasfegted if we were unable to obtain adequate
patent protection for adefovir dipivoxil in ChinacaSoutheast Asia. As part of our approval to comoadhase | clinical trials in China,
adefovir dipivoxil was granted Class | designatidmich, if adefovir dipivoxil is ultimately approvedr sale in China, would give us 12 years
of market exclusivity for adefovir dipivoxil withesspect to competitors who may otherwise be ahlbetgin clinical development of adefovir
dipivoxil following such approval.

We have an exclusive, worldwide licensedtent rights and related technology for adefoigivxil from IOCB/REGA, and would be
obligated to pay 3% of any net revenues from safleslefovir dipivoxil to IOCB/REGA in countries whethe product has patent protection,
including the U.S. and the member states of thefean Union. See "Collaborative Relationships—ICRIBBA."
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Cidecin

Cidecin (daptomycin for injection) is avéstigational antibacterial compound being develdpe Cubist Pharmaceuticals, Inc. In
January 2001, we entered into an agreement witls€gianting us exclusive commercial rights to €iden 16 European countries. Under
this arrangement, Cubist is responsible for theoamgclinical trials for the product and we arep@ssible for European regulatory filings for
countries in which we have exclusive commercidhtsgWe believe that this arrangement represesitisategic opportunity for us because
Cidecin falls within our therapeutic focus of amiectives and is a product that, if approved, ddug sold through an expanded version of
existing European sales and marketing infrastrectur

Laboratory tests have suggested that Gidaealy be effective in rapidly killing most gram-fiose bacteria, including those that have
become resistant to current therapies. Gram-pediiacterial infections include complicated skin anft tissue infections, bacteremia,
endocarditis or infection of the valves of the he@omplicated urinary tract infections, pneumaania osteomyelitis or infection of bone or
bone marrow. As is the case with HIV and HBV, r&sise to existing antiacterial therapy has become a significant probietreating thes
infections. If these laboratory tests are confirrrediinical trials, Cidecin could be a very usefinlig for treating these serious infections.
There can be no assurance, however, that any & tiesults, other than those for complicated skéhsft tissues infections, will be
confirmed in clinical trials.

Cubist has evaluated or is currently evaigaCidecin in multiple Phase 1l and Phase Illgifor the treatment of complicated skin and
soft tissue infection, community-acquired pneumoreaistant enterococcal infections, and complitatinary tract infection. In two
completed pivotal Phase Il trials for the treatineincomplicated skin and soft tissue infectionssed by grai-positive bacteria, Cideci



achieved the primary endpoint of statistical egigimee to the comparator agents, which are curreoihgidered optimal antibiotic standards
of care for complicated skin and soft tissue iritetd. Data from these two trials also demonstréitatipatients who were successfully treated
with Cidecin required fewer days of intravenougdpg than patients who were successfully treatéld thie comparator agents and that
Cidecin's safety profile was similar to that of t@nparator agents. In January 2002, Cubist anmablihat the primary endpoint of
demonstrating non-inferiority to an active comparatgent was not achieved in the first of Cubtsis Phase Il trials investigating the safety
and effectiveness of Cidecin in the treatment ohicnity-acquired pneumonia requiring hospitalization. Ibiigary 2002, Cubist announc
results from a Phase Il clinical trial of Cideciandonstrating that the primary endpoint of demotisigano differences between the
microbiologic and clinical cure rates for Cideciersus the comparator agent had been achievedeforetitment of complicated urinary tract
infection caused by gram-positive bacteria. In Ma2002, Cubist announced that it will soon begithase Ill clinical trial of Cidecin for the
treatment of endocarditis (infection of the heatftres) and bacteremia (infection of the bloodstieam

Cubist has stated that it intends to fildNDA in the U.S. in 2002 for Cidecin for the indton of complicated skin and soft tissues
infections involving both susceptible and resisgnatm-positive organisms. Our agreement with Cudnsts not require Cubist to continue,
conduct or complete any additional clinical triddst if Cubist successfully completes Phase Ihichl trials for uses other than complicated
skin and soft tissue infection, we could seek ratguy approval for these uses in our territory awdld have exclusive commercial rights to
these indications in our territory. We cannot pcettie outcome of any clinical trials for CidecinibCubist will evaluate Cidecin for
additional uses.

We are currently evaluating our optionsffiing for marketing authorization of Cidecin ihg European Union. We have received
indications from regulatory authorities in the Buean Union that an application seeking marketing@al for Cidecin only for the single
indication treatment of complicated skin and sisfue infection may not be approved. We currertiyndt expect to file such
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an application in 2002. We cannot accurately ptediether Cidecin will meet its primary endpoimsany clinical trials for indications other
than complicated skin and soft tissue infectionethiler conducted by Cubist or by us, or whether vildoe able to obtain regulatory approval
of Cidecin in Europe. If we file a marketing autization application for Cidecin in Europe and ifstapproved, we would sell Cidecin
through our European sales and marketing infratstrec

Cubist is also developing an oral formwaatof daptomycin, which is not yet in human clihit@ls. Our agreement with Cubist would
give us exclusive commercial rights in our terteo any oral formulation of daptomycin that is dmped by Cubist.

We are required to pay milestone paymen@ubist based upon certain development goaldrigléd the clinical development and
regulatory approval of Cidecin and any oral forniola of daptomycin. We are also required to payattigs to Cubist based upon any sales
that we make of Cidecin and any oral formulatiomlaptomycin. See "Collaborative Relationships—Cuibis

Our Product in Preclinical Development

We intend to begin Phase | clinical triels5S 7340, a novel nucleotide analogue reverssdrgptase inhibitor, during 2002. Both GS
7340 and Viread are processed in the body to yimldsame active chemical, tenofovir, within cellswever, the chemical composition of
7340 may allow it to cross cell membranes moree#sin Viread, so that with GS 7340, tenofovir negypresent at much higher levels
within cells. As a result, GS 7340 may have grept¢ency than Viread and may inhibit low-level Higplication in cells that are otherwise
difficult to reach with reverse transcriptase intuls. We cannot be certain that this Phase Iadirtrial or any subsequent Phase Il or Phase
1l clinical trials that we may conduct for GS 734l be completed successfully or within any sfied time period. We may choose, or the
FDA may require us to delay or suspend our clinidals for GS 7340 at any time if it appears ttiet patients are being exposed to an
unacceptable health risk or if GS 7340 does notapio have sufficient treatment benefit.

Our Science

We have research scientists in Foster &ity San Dimas, California engaged in the discoaad/development of new molecules and
technologies that we hope will lead to new medigiaed novel formulations of existing drugs. Ourdpeutic focus is in the areas of
infectious diseases. In total, our research anéldpment expenses for 2001 were $185.6 million, ganed with $132.3 million for 2000 and
$110.9 million for 1999.

Nucleotide Analogue:

Our scientists are working with our propaig nucleotide analogues to develop treatmentsifal infections. These compounds treat
viral infections by interfering with the activityf certain enzymes that are necessary for the wrgsow. For example, Vistide, a nucleotide
analogue of cytosine, inhibits the activity of aizgme in CMV that is essential for that virus toesal. Viread and adefovir dipivoxil are
nucleotide analogues that work by inhibiting thé\dty of reverse transcriptase, an enzyme necgdsareplication of HIV (Viread) and
HBV (adefovir dipivoxil).



We believe that small molecule nucleotidelagues can offer advantages as therapeuticse Huesintages include:

. These molecules have demonstrated ability to wobboth infected and uninfected cells. This couldi®a us to develop drugs
that not only treat a patient who is infected vathirus but that can also prevent a healthy pefreon becoming infected in the
first place; and
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. Drugs developed with these molecules have beenrskmivave treatment activity in a patient for longeriods of time than
other available drugs. This could enable us to ldg@verugs that require less frequent dosing andhare more convenient for
patients.

Given the complexity of drug developmeng, eannot be certain that any drug candidates welolgwith this science will have any or
all of these advantages. Even if we do develop damglidates with some or each of these advantdgeEDA and other regulatory agencies
could reject marketing approval of these drug ocdaugis for other reasons, including safety and litecmicerns.

Liposomes

We also have scientists who are focuseapmtying our proprietary liposomal drug deliverghaology to develop safer, more effective
and more convenient drugs. Liposomes are sub-ntiopis structures made of phospholipids, the bamieponents of human cell walls. They
are hollow spheres into which drugs can be padk&gbelieve that we can influence the way compowamdseleased and distributed in the
body by placing them in liposomes. This can, imtimprove the safety and treatment benefits ofi mmenpounds. For example, we
developed AmBisome by incorporating amphotericim B liposome. Pretinical studies have shown that AmBisome deliargphotericin E
in a manner that results in fewer side effectsiamutoved treatment benefits over conventional angiwin B, including concentrating the
drug at the site of the infection, extending timeetithe drug remains in the blood stream to protbegherapeutic effect and reducing kidney
toxicity and injection related reactions. Clinisailidies demonstrate that AmBisome does persiselanghe blood stream and has lower
kidney toxicity and injection related reactionscasnpared to conventional amphotericin B.

Our current strategy is to use our liposiehnology with compounds we develop internatigd ¢o identify appropriate compounds
developed by third parties for use with this tedbgg. Compounds developed by third parties thatgmropriate for our technology include
those that, like amphotericin B, have proven theuig benefits but suffer from significant sideeeffs, or that suffer from dosing and
administration problems. We believe that we canausdiposomal technology to improve the safetyhafse drugs while maintaining or even
improving their therapeutic benefits.

We have identified certain generic compau@mpounds that are not protected by patentspeomtietary compounds owned by third
parties that may benefit substantially from ouo$ipmal technology, and we have begun formulatiodiss for these compounds. In addition,
we have discussed, and will continue to discudtatarative relationships with other companies éwelop liposomal formulations of their
compounds.

HIV Protease Inhibitors

We are evaluating a number of small molecadmpounds known as "protease inhibitors" forpbiential treatment of HIV infection.
Protease inhibitors act by interfering with thehatt of protease, an enzyme that, like reversadcaiptase, is necessary for replication of
HIV. We have conducted a number of preclinical expents on these compounds and have demonstratethéty have potent antiviral
activity. Our scientists are trying to increase shéety and convenience of, and reduce resistasmoeems with, these compounds.

Other Antiviral Research

We are undertaking additional researcihénarea of treatment of viral diseases. Many dfdtedfforts focus on potential targets in HIV
for therapeutic drugs.
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Marketing and Sales

We established a U.S. sales force of theragp specialists when we began selling Vistid&é986. We also have marketing subsidiarie
the United Kingdom, Germany, Italy, Spain, FrarRertugal, Greece, the Netherlands and Australia.s@les professionals promote and sell
Viread, AmBisome and DaunoXome in the U.S. and peyd\mBisome and DaunoXome in Australia, and Vesiidthe U.S. AmBisome is
also sold by Fujisawa in the U.S. (where w-promote the product) and in Canada. Pharmacia Catipo promotes and sells Vistide



countries outside of the U.S. and Hoffmann-La Rquteenotes and sells Tamiflu everywhere it is sold.

Our U.S. sales force promotes Viread arslitié through direct contact with physicians, htagj clinics, and other healthcare providers
who are involved in the treatment of patients Wi, AmBisome to infectious disease specialistssgitals, home health care providers and
cancer specialists, and DaunoXome to cancer sgstsiahd hospitals. The U.S. sales force is supddioth by a field support force and by a
marketing and sales support staff based at ourqueaiters in Foster City, California.

We have international sales forces in Eerapd Australia. Each of our international marlgenbsidiaries is headed by a general
manager who oversees the operations in the mayisetiged by that subsidiary. We have personnetéacaainly in Europe, including
medical, financial, regulatory, manufacturing andnan resources personnel, who support our intemeltsales and marketing operations.
These subsidiaries also assist in obtaining regylapprovals in the countries where they are kxtat

We sell Viread, Vistide and DaunoXome ia th.S. and Viread, AmBisome and DaunoXome in Eutopeholesalers and specialty
distributors who, in turn, sell the products to sigians, hospitals, clinics, pharmacies and otkelthcare providers. In some countries ou
of the U.S., we have agreements with third-parsyritiiutors, including distributors in certain oethountries where we have marketing
operations, to promote, sell and distribute AmBieaand DaunoXome. These international distributipgreements generally provide that the
distributor has the exclusive right to sell AmBismand DaunoXome in a particular country or sevesahtries for a specified period of time.
We intend to enter into similar arrangements whihdtparty distributors outside the U.S. for proiont sale and distribution of Viread.

We have increased our sales force in ti% &hd are devoting additional marketing resouircéise U.S. due to the approval of Viread to
expand our coverage of healthcare professionasirigeHIV-infected patients. We have also signffitaincreased the size of our
commercial operations in Europe to manage the cawialization of Viread in the European Union. ltoigr current intention to retain the
commercial rights to adefovir dipivoxil for HBV ia€tion in the U.S. and Europe and sell it througlikating partners or distributors in Asia
and the rest of the world. If we do retain sigrafit commercial rights to adefovir dipivoxil for HB¥fection and the product is approved, we
would need to use additional marketing resourceglichis product. If Cidecin is approved for metikg in Europe, we believe that given the
profile of the product and its target market, aiddial sales and marketing positions will need tatded.

In the U.S., Viread and Vistide are retinean their original, unopened containers up te gaar beyond the expiration date or, if
damaged when received by the customer. Our customay return AmBisome or DaunoXome if the she# liis expired or if the product is
damaged or defective when the customer receivAsnBisome has an approved shelf life of 36 monththe U.S. and 30 months in most
European countries. DaunoXome has a shelf life2of/8eks in the U.S. and most European countrigeadihas a shelf life of 24 months in
the U.S. and has been approved for the same #hati the European Union. Additionally, certainvgonmental agency customers and state
AIDS drug assistance programs are entitled to agive discounts, and we are required to providate=bunder state Medicaid programs. To
date, returns, rebates and discounts have notrhatarial.
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Fujisawa establishes the return policy for AmBisamBlorth America, and Hoffmann-La Roche establéstie return policy for Tamiflu.
Collaborative Relationships

As part of our business strategy, we estalgiollaborations with other companies to assishé clinical development and/or
commercialization of certain of our products anddorct candidates and to provide support for owarh programs. We also evaluate
opportunities for acquiring from other companiesducts or rights to products and technologiesdahatcomplementary to our business. The
accounting for each of these relationships carobad in Note 7 to the consolidated financial staets. Our existing collaborative
relationships are as follows:

Hoffmann-La Roche

In September 1996, we entered into a cotkiion agreement with Hoffmann-La Roche to devalog commercialize therapies to treat
and prevent the flu. Under this agreement, we grhhibffmann-La Roche exclusive worldwide rightsticof our proprietary influenza
neuraminidase inhibitors, including Tamiflu. In ©er 1999, the FDA approved Tamiflu for marketimgl an November 1999, Hoffmann-La
Roche began selling Tamiflu.

As of December 31, 2001, we have receiighse fees and milestone payments from HoffmamfRoche totaling $40.7 million relati
to the execution of this agreement and to reguditings and approvals for Tamiflu. Hoffmann-La &we also funded all of the research and
development costs for Tamiflu, including reimbursermnto us of $28.1 million for the period from Janul, 1997 through December 31,
2001. In addition, under this agreement:

. Hoffmann-La Roche is responsible for pricing, praimg and selling Tamiflu on a worldwide basis;

. Hoffmann-La Roche pays us a percentage of itsevetnues from sales of Tamiflu. In certain circumsés, the amount that



Hoffmann-La Roche pays to us may be reduced, famgte, if the cost of materials they use to martufacTamiflu increases.
We receive payments and recognize revenue frommidoffi-La Roche in the quarter following the quavtben the sales were
made; and

. Hoffmann-La Roche will make milestone paymentsgafand when Tamiflu is approved for sale in thedpean Union.
The agreement with Hoffman-La Roche tertgsan a country-by-country basis after the later o

. expiration of patent coverage for Tamiflu; or

. ten years from first commercial sale.

Hoffmann-La Roche has the right to termenéie agreement in its entirety or on a countryebyntry basis prior to expiration at any ti
upon 12 months notice.

Fujisawa

In 1991, we entered into an agreement Ritfisawa providing that:

. We have the exclusive right to promote and sell AgoBie in all countries, except the U.S. and Canada;
. Fujisawa has the exclusive right to promote anddAseBisome in Canada,;
. We have the right to cpromote AmBisome with Fujisawa in the U.S., wheofigawa has primary responsibility for promot

and selling AmBisome;
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. We receive approximately 17% of the net revenuas fsales of AmBisome in the U.S. for our co-promotefforts;
. We receive payments and recognize revenue fronsdawd in the month following the month when Fujisaveales are made;
. We would be required to pay Fujisawa 4% of our nexs in connection with sales of AmBisome in sigaifit Asian markets,

including Japan, Korea, Taiwan, China and India an

. We manufacture AmBisome for all sales and Fujispuw@hases AmBisome from us for sale in the U.&.@ice equal to our
cost to manufacture the product and for sale ina@arat that cost plus a specified percentage.

Our agreement with Fujisawa terminates whenrast patent covering AmBisome in the U.S.apah expires.
IOCB/REGA

In 1991 and 1992, we entered into agreesnsith IOCB/REGA relating to nucleotide compoundscdvered at these institutions. In
December 2000, we paid IOCB/REGA $11.0 millionéduce the royalties payable upon any sales of Wiaea adefovir dipivoxil by 2% to
a royalty rate of 3% in the U.S., the European dnand any other countries where these productagmmved and have patent protection.
Under these agreements and amendments to thessregts:

. We received from IOCB/REGA the exclusive right tammfacture, use and sell the nucleotide compouowsred by these
agreements;
. In countries where there is patent protection, veeraequired to pay to IOCB/REGA 3% of the net raxengenerated from any

sales of Viread and adefovir dipivoxil, and 5% of/aet revenues generated from sales of Vistideaagdther products
containing these compounds, subject to minimumltpyayments; and

. In countries where there is no patent protectionave not required to pay royalties to IOCB/REGAdales of Viread and
adefovir dipivoxil and are required to pay 2.5%a0f net revenues generated from sales of Vistideaag other products
containing these compounds.

We are currently making quarterly paymeat€DCB/REGA based upon a percentage of salessifdéi and Viread and will pay
additional amounts upon any commercial sales dioadtedipivoxil. We will amortize the $11.0 milliopayment made in December 2000 ¢
the estimated commercial lives of Viread and adefdipivoxil, which will reduce any reported eargmon these product



The agreements with IOCB/REGA terminateaaountry-by-country basis after the later of:

expiration of patent coverage for any product Igsshunder the agreements; or

ten years from first commercial sale.

IOCB/REGA may terminate the licenses unitlese agreements for a particular product in keskets if we do not make any sales of
that product within 12 months after regulatory &t in those countries.

Cubist

In January 2001, we entered into an agreemigh Cubist giving us exclusive commercial rigimt 16 European countries to all oral and
injectable formulations of Cubist's investigatioaatibacterial
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compound daptomycin. These formulations includee€iig, an intravenous formulation of daptomycin eatly in Phase 11l clinical trials for
treatment of bacterial infections. Under this agreat:

Cubist is required to complete certain key clinicells for Cidecin;

We are responsible for all regulatory filings fepgucts in our territory;

If Cidecin is approved for marketing in our territowe are responsible for marketing Cidecin in w@uritory;

We paid an upfront fee to Cubist of $13.0 millidrttee time we signed this agreement and paid noitespayments to Cubist
totaling $5.5 million in 2001 for achievement oflestones relating to the safety and effectivené&idecin in the treatment .
complicated skin and soft tissue infection causedrhamypositive bacteria. We may be required to make amtdit payments t
Cubist of up to $25.2 million if certain other gsatlated to the clinical development and reguasmproval of Cidecin and an
oral formulation of daptomycin are achieved,;

We are required to pay to Cubist a percentage ofemenues from sales of daptomycin products intewitory;

If Cubist desires to grant commercial rights tooaal or injectable daptomycin-related product int@i@ other countries
including any country that joins the EU, Cubist maifer us such commercial rights on a priorityibaand

Cubist is obligated to continue the preclinical eélepment of an oral formulation of daptomycin anoidd have an obligation
to pursue clinical development of that formulatibappropriate.

This agreement expires on a country by tgurasis with respect to each product developexhupe later of:

ten years after first commercial sale of such pebdusuch country; or

the date that there is no patent coverage for praduct.

Pharmacia Corporatior

In August 1996, we entered into an agreaméh Pharmacia Corporation relating to Vistideadgr this agreement we received
$10.0 million on signing and $10.0 million upon apgeal of Vistide for marketing in Europe. In additi, under this agreement:

Pharmacia Corporation has the exclusive right tckataand sell Vistide in all countries outside loé tU.S. and a right of first
negotiation for any competitive products we own;

We are responsible for maintaining the patentgidofovir;

We are required to sell bulk cidofovir to Pharmac@poration;

Pharmacia Corporation will pay to us a percentdgts met sales of Vistide and any other produetsetoped under the
collaboration agreement. We receive payments atajreze revenue from Pharmacia Corporation in treatgr following the

guarter when the sales were made; and

Pharmacia Corporation holds 4,535,144 shares of@mmon stock that it purchased in connection itk agreement.



Pharmacia Corporation may not sell their sharescquire additional shares of our stock withoutapproval until June 2002.

Our agreement with Pharmacia Corporatigrires on a country-by-country basis as patent @gefor Vistide expires or ten years from
first commercial sale of Vistide in countries whéne product is not covered by a patent.
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In addition, Pharmacia Corporation may feate the agreement:

. upon six months notice; or

. upon notice on a country-by-country basis, threattmbefore applying for marketing approval of enpetitive product.
Sumitomo Pharmaceuticals Co., Lt

In 1996, we entered into an agreement &itmitomo Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. that gave Sumitthe exclusive right to develop and
market AmBisome in Japan. Sumitomo paid us $7.0aniht the time we entered into this agreement&316 million in March 1998 when
Sumitomo made a regulatory filing in Japan. Underterms of this agreement:

. Sumitomo is required to make a payment of $4.0ionilto us if AmBisome is approved for sale in Jgpan
. Sumitomo is required to pay to us a percentag@ypfavenue they generate from sales of AmBisomeé; an
. If AmBisome is approved for sale in Japan, we waulthufacture AmBisome for sale by Sumitomo in Jap&e price that w

would charge Sumitomo for the supply of AmBisomed #me percentage of revenues that they would hgnestjto pay to us
would be determined by the price of AmBisome inalap

This agreement terminates on the later of:

. ten years after Sumitomo begins selling AmBisoméaipan; or

. the date the last patent for AmBisome in Japanregpi
EyeTech Pharmaceutical

In March 2000, we entered into an agreemétiht EyeTech Pharmaceuticals, Inc. relating to N888, now known as EYEQ0O1, which is
an oligonucleotide that EyeTech is currently depilg for treatment of age-related macular degeiaratVe received a $7.0 million upant
license fee from EyeTech upon execution of theemgent. Under the terms of the agreement:

. EyeTech received the exclusive right to develop@mmercialize EYEQO01;

. We are entitled to additional cash payments froraTegh of up to $25.0 million if and when EyeTechatees certain EYE001
development milestones; and

. If the product is successfully commercialized, EgefT will pay us royalties on worldwide sales of phieduct.

As part of this transaction, we receivdt/e-year warrant to purchase 833,333 shares of &gle series B convertible preferred stock,
exercisable at a price of $6.00 per share, the @tavhich the stock was issued to other invesfsgequired by our license agreement with
the University Technology Corporation, we transfdrb% of this warrant to the University Technoldgyrporation (the right to acquire
41,666 shares) and therefore currently hold a wateapurchase 791,667 shares.

This agreement expires upon the later of:

. ten years after first commercial sale of any prodieveloped; or

. the date the last patent expires under the agréaemen
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GlaxoSmithKline—SELEX

In May 1998, we entered into agreementngj\elaxoSmithKline the non-exclusive right to use S8ELEX technology for five years to
identify aptamers. Under this agreement:

. GlaxoSmithKline would be required to pay to us @ & the time we enter into an additional agreement

. GlaxoSmithKline would be required to make paymeatss based on achieving certain goals relatingeaegulatory approv
of any product they develop based on the aptamer; a

. GlaxoSmithKline would be required to pay to us ecpatage of any revenues they may generate froes shlany product they
develop based on the aptamer.

This agreement terminates on May 27, 20@2gt:

. GlaxoSmithKline can extend this agreement for aoldétl one year periods in which case GlaxoSmith&ivould be required
to pay to us an appropriate fee; and

. GlaxoSmithKline can terminate this agreement eaalieany time on 90 days notice to us.
Somalogic, Inc.

In November 1999, we entered into an agesgtwith Somalogic, Inc., a company formed by LaBigld, the founder of NeXstar
Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (NeXstar), relating to out BE technology. Under this agreement:

. We gave Somalogic the exclusive right to use ourESEtechnology to make and sell in vitro diagnogtioducts (diagnostic
products that are not used in a person or animal);

. We assigned and sold to Somalogic certain patemtsraterials relating to in vitro diagnostics, uaihg robotic SELEX
machines;

. We have the right to use the other drug discovetiiniology that is the subject of this agreemesetivally to study diseases ¢
in our drug development and clinical trial programusd

. Somalogic paid to us the first installment of a&¢he time we entered into the agreement andandeand final installment i
November 2000.

This agreement terminates on the later of:

. on a country by country basis as patent coveraggi® drug discovery technology expires; or

. November 2024,
Archemix Corporation
In October 2001, we entered into an agreemvéh Archemix Corporation relating to our SELE&Chnology. Under this agreement:

. We gave Archemix the exclusive rights to the SELft¥cess, including therapeutic and other commeagiplications, to the
extent not already licensed under pre-existingements;

. We have the right to use the SELEX technology riterinal research purposes;
. Archemix paid us $9.0 million in 2001 and is reggiito pay us $8.5 million in 2002. As required by license agreement w

the University Technology Corporation, we paid 58the $9.0 million payment to, and will pay 5% b&t$8.5 million
payment to, the University Technology Corporatianc
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. We received warrants to purchase Archemix stockie§jsired by our license agreement with the UnitaeiBechnology
Corporation, we transferred 5% of this warranti® tniversity Technology Corporatic



OSI Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

In November 2001, we entered into an ageggrwith OSI Pharmaceuticals, Inc. for the sal®8I of our oncology assets. This
transaction was completed in December 2001 ancee@ded a gain of $157.8 million. Under this agreem

. We sold to OSI our pipeline of clinical candidate®ncology and all related intellectual propegsg,well as our Boulder,
Colorado operations, including clinical researct drug development operations, infrastructure acdifies. The three clinic
development candidates sold to OSI are: NX 21bglipnal lurtotecan), GS 7836 (a nucleoside analogug)GS 7904L (a
liposomal thymidylate synthase inhibitor).

. OSI paid to us $130.0 million in cash and approx@tya$38.8 million in shares of OSI common stock.

. We are entitled to additional payments from OSuiptto $30.0 million in either cash or a combinatidrcash and OSI comm
stock if and when OSI reaches certain developmdestanes for NX 211, the most advanced of the mgyoproduct
candidates sold to OSI.

. Under a manufacturing agreement, we will produeceX8l liposomal formulations of NX 211 and GS 790#ie two
liposomal products sold to OSlI, at our manufactyfacility in San Dimas, California.

. OSI assumed our rights and obligations under thenaled 1998 agreement with Glaxo Wellcome, now GaxithKline
(Glaxo) relating to NX 211, the 2000 license agreehwith Glaxo relating to GS 7904L, and the 2066rise agreement
relating to GS 7836 with Southern Research Institut

International Distribution Agreements

We have various agreements with distritgiiorEurope, Asia, Latin America, the Middle Eastl @frica that grant these distributors the
exclusive right to sell AmBisome, and in some cd3asnoXome, in a particular country or countriesdspecified period of time. Most of
these agreements also provide for collaborativeresfbetween us and the distributor for obtainiegutatory approval for the product in the
particular country and for marketing the producthia country. Most of these agreements establsiica that the distributor must pay for our
product and require us to deliver quantities ofpihmduct ordered by the distributor. We intendritee into similar distribution agreements for
Viread in countries where we will not promote aed & directly.

Academic and Consulting Relationships

To supplement our research and developeféarts, as part of our regular business we enterarrangements with universities and
medical research institutions. These arrangemdt#s provide us with rights to patents, patent eagpilons and technology owned by these
institutions in return for payments and fees ratato our use of these rights.
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University Technology Corporation

We have an ongoing collaborative arrangemedating to our SELEX technology with the UnivigysTechnology Corporation, a
technology holding company for the University ofl@ado at Boulder. Under this arrangement:

. The University of Colorado at Boulder has giverall®f its present and future rights to:
. inventions covered by patents and patent applicatior SELEX technology;
. improvements to SELEX technology it makes or digcey
. oligonucleotides or other molecules it makes uSiEd.EX technology;
. results of certain research; and
. computer software related to SELEX technology.
. We are required to pay to the University of Colaratl Boulder:
. 2% of the revenues we generate from our sales bEXHlerived products;
. 15% of any amounts we receive from a third part #re based upon sales by those third partieEbEX-derived

products; ant



. 5% of other payments we receive from third parigs result of certain arrangements we have witbettthird parties -
develop and sell SELEX-derived products.

Manufacturing
AmBisome and DaunoXom

We manufacture AmBisome and DaunoXome inmoercial quantities in two separate but adjacetilitias in San Dimas, California.
AmBisome is produced in one of the buildings wilieunoXome is produced in a separate building. Tledibines Control Agency of the
United Kingdom and the U.S. Food and Drug Admiitstm have approved the commercial production ohed AmBisome and
DaunoXome in the facility in which it is producékb import AmBisome and DaunoXome into the Europdaion, we own a manufacturing
facility in Dublin, Ireland where we perform qualitontrol testing, final labeling and packaging floee European Union and elsewhere.

We use commercially available materials agdipment to manufacture these products. Currewtdyobtain the amphotericin B that we
use to manufacture AmBisome, the daunorubicin H@dl distearoylphosphatidylcholine that we use to ufecture DaunoXome, and the
cholesterol that we use to manufacture both AmB&samd DaunoXome from single approved suppliers.

AmBisome is currently freeze dried at oan®imas manufacturing facility and is sold asegehedried product. Given our demands ¢
projections for growth in AmBisome use, we are ently using a third party to fill and freeze dryns® of the product and are evaluating the
feasibility of installing additional freeze dryimgpacity in San Dimas. If we are unable to locarapriate third parties or install and valid
additional freeze drying capacity in San Dimas, ahitity to increase AmBisome sales would be distied. Manufacturing liposomal
products is a particularly complex process andraw liposomal product we develop will require urécqand complex variations in our
manufacturing process.

Antiviral Products

We hire third parties to manufacture ounaral drugs for clinical and commercial purposiggluding Vistide, adefovir dipivoxil and
Viread. Hoffmann-La Roche manufactures Tamiflu. Né&e no commercial-scale manufacturing facilit@sdur antiviral products that are
qualified under the
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FDA's current Good Manufacturing Practices, anchase no current plans to establish these facilitresising third parties, we cannot be
certain that they will perform their obligationdexftively and on a timely basis. If these thirdtjear do not perform effectively and timely, our
clinical trials or regulatory filings could be dgéad or we could be unable to deliver our produstsustomers on a timely basis, and this
would adversely affect our operating results. Inuday 2002, Hoffmann-La Roche announced that dyedduction problems the liquid
suspension form of Tamiflu approved for treatmdntioldren as young as one year old was not avigilabt was expected to be available in
the 2002-2003 flu season.

We have two suppliers that have been amordsy the FDA to manufacture the cidofovir use¥istide. One of these suppliers has been
approved by the European Union to manufacture oidofor use in Vistide, and we are having a secoiddfovir supplier qualified to assure
our supplies. We have a single FDA and EMEA appdasigoplier for the final drug product. We manufaetthe active ingredient in Viread
through three contract manufacturers who have bpproved by the FDA and the European Union. We ifi@@twre the Viread tablets
through one contract manufacturer that has beeroagg by both agencies, and we are having a semmmtdact manufacturer qualified for 1
manufacture of Viread tablets to assure our supplée are seeking qualification in the U.S. andEbeopean Union for two contract
manufacturers for the active ingredient in adefofiivoxil and one contract manufacturer for theafiadefovir dipivoxil drug product for
commercial supply. If manufacturing at any of thei#tes we use were interrupted for any reasonability to ship our products would be
impaired, and this would adversely affect us.

The Viread and adefovir dipivoxil tabletsed in our clinical trials are manufactured at teatract manufacturing sites. If manufactur
at either of these sites were interrupted for @agson, our ability to maintain clinical suppliesulbbe impaired, and this would adversely
affect us.

For our future antiviral products, we wikked to develop additional manufacturing capaediind establish additional third party
suppliers in order to manufacture sufficient quégiof our product candidates to undertake clirtitals and to manufacture sufficient
guantities of any candidates that are approveddormercial sale. If we are unable to develop mastufang capabilities internally or contre
for large scale manufacturing with third partiesamceptable terms for our future antiviral produots ability to conduct large-scale clinical
trials and meet customer demand for commercialymrtzsdwould be adversely affected.

We believe that the technology we use taufecture our products and compounds is propriefamy our antiviral products, we have
disclosed all necessary aspects of this techndlomggntract manufacturers to enable them to matufa¢he products and compounds for



We have agreements with these manufacturers thamtended to restrict them from using or reveating technology, but we cannot be
certain that these manufacturers will comply witege restrictions. In addition, these manufactureutd develop their own technology
related to the work they perform for us that we magd to manufacture our products or compoundscaMi be required to enter into an
agreement with that manufacturer if we wanted wthat technology ourselves or allow another martufar to use that technology. The
manufacturer could refuse to allow us to use ttegihnology or could demand terms to use their telclyy that are not acceptable.

We believe that we are in compliance wittmaterial environmental regulations related te thanufacture of our products.
Patents and Proprietary Rights

Patents and other proprietary rights arg important to our business. If we have a propddgigned and enforceable patent it can be
more difficult for our competitors to use our teology to create competitive products and morediffifor our competitors to obtain a patent
that prevents us from using technology we creasepdst of our business strategy, we actively sedémnt protection
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both in the U.S. and internationally and file addial patent applications, when appropriate, toecémprovements in our compounds,
products and technology. We also rely on tradesggcinternal know-how, technological innovationsl agreements with third parties to
develop, maintain and protect our competitive pasitOur ability to be competitive will depend dretsuccess of this strategy.

We have a number of patents, patent aggitmand rights to patents related to our compeuprbducts and technology, but we cannot
be certain that issued patents will be enforceabfgrovide adequate protection or that pendingmiatpplications will result in issued pater
The following table shows the actual or estimategiration dates in the U.S. and Europe for the prinpatents and for patents that may i
under pending applications that cover the compoimdsir marketed products and our product candidate

U.S. Patent

Expiration European Patent Expiration
Products
Viread 2017 2017
AmBisome 201¢ 200¢
Tamiflu 201¢ 201¢
Vistide 201c¢ 201z
DaunoXome 200¢ 200¢
Product Candidates
adefovir dipivoxil 201¢ 2011
Cidecin N/A** 201 cx**

* Applications for these patents are pending. If ptérom these applications do not issue, we waolchave patent protection through

the dates indicated and would instead rely on qth&nts that expire earlier. For example, if Bisopean patent on Viread does not
issue, we have patents that expire in 2006 and #tstProvide protection.

i We do not have commercial rights to Cidecin inlthited States.

***  These are method of use patents. In general, methagk patents do not provide the same levelateption as composition of matter
patents.

Patents covering Vistide, Viread, adefaipivoxil, and Cidecin are held by third partiese\&cquired exclusive rights to these patents in
the agreements we have with these parties. Seé&atoohtive Relationships." Patents do not coveattteve ingredients in AmBisome and
DaunoXome. Instead, we hold patents to the lipo$donaulations of these compounds and also prdtexge formulations through trade
secrets. We do not have patent filings coverindoaths of adefovir dipivoxil in China or in certagther Asian countries, although we do h
applications pending in various Asian countries|uding China, that relate to specific forms andhfalations of adefovir dipivoxil. Asia is a
major market for HBV therapies.

We may obtain patents for our compoundsynyaars before we obtain marketing approval fonth€his limits the time that we can
prevent other companies from developing these comgi®and therefore reduces the value of the probioetever, we can apply for patent
term extensions. For example, extensions for thengson Vistide have been granted in the U.S.aamdmber of European countries,
compensating in part for delays in obtaining mangapproval. Similar patent term extensions mag\slable for other products that we
developing, but we cannot be certain we will obthiem.



It is also very important that we do ndtiimge patents or proprietary rights of others #rat we do not violate the agreements that grant
proprietary rights to us. If we do infringe pateatsviolate
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these agreements, we could be prevented from damglor selling products or from using the processavered by those patents or
agreements, or we could be required to obtaineadie from the third party allowing us to use thathnology. We cannot be certain that, if
required, we could obtain a license to any thirdyptechnology or that we could obtain one at aoeable cost. If we were not able to obtain
a required license, we could be adversely affe@edause patent applications are confidential féeast some period of time, including
sometimes in the U.S. until a patent issues, thrg be pending patent applications from which patesil eventually issue and prevent us
from developing or selling certain products unlesscan obtain a license to use the patented teagyol

Patents relating to pharmaceutical, bioptsaeutical and biotechnology products, compoundspaocesses such as those that cover our
existing compounds, products and processes and thaswe will likely file in the future, do notvahys provide complete or adequate
protection. Future litigation or reexamination predings regarding the enforcement or validity af@xisting patents or any future patents
could invalidate our patents or substantially redtieir protection. In addition, our pending pat@mplications and patent applications filec
our collaborative partners may not result in tleigce of any patents or may result in patentsdihabt provide adequate protection. As a
result, we may not be able to prevent third parftes developing the same compounds and produatsata are developing.

We also rely on unpatented trade secretsmprovements, unpatented internal know-how anbrelogical innovation. In particular, a
great deal of our liposomal manufacturing expertiggich is a key component of our liposomal tecbggl is not covered by patents but is
instead protected as a trade secret. We protesg tights mainly through confidentiality agreemenith our corporate partners, employees,
consultants and vendors. These agreements prdwadalt confidential information developed or m&a@wn to an individual during the
course of their relationship with us will be kephfidential and will not be used or disclosed tiodiparties except in specified circumstances.
In the case of employees, the agreements provadathinventions made by the individual while eoy#d by us will be our exclusive
property. We cannot be certain that these partigs@mply with these confidentiality agreementsat we would have adequate remedies for
any breach, or that our trade secrets will notmtise become known or be independently discoveyealn competitors. Under some of our
research and development agreements, inventioosvired in certain cases become jointly owned bgnasour corporate partner and in
other cases become the exclusive property of ons.df can be difficult to determine who owns atigalar invention, and disputes could
arise regarding those inventions.

Competition

Our products and development programs targeimber of diseases and conditions, including Miungal and bacterial infections. Th
are many commercially available products for thdiseases, and a large number of companies antltisis are spending considerable
amounts of money and resources to develop additpoducts to treat these diseases. Our curreijote compete with other available
products based primarily on:

. product performance;
. safety;
. tolerability;
. acceptance by doctors;
. patient compliance;
. patent protection;
. ease of use;
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. price;
. insurance and other reimbursement coverage;
. distribution;

. marketing; and



. adaptability to various modes of dosing.

Any other products we market in the futwitt also compete with products offered by our catirs. If our competitors introduce data
that shows improved characteristics of their praésiuimprove or increase their marketing effortsionply lower the price of their products,
sales of our products could decrease. We also tdencertain that any products we develop in theréuwill compare favorably to products
offered by our competitors or that our existindudure products will compare favorably to any newducts that are developed by our
competitors. Our ability to be competitive also eiegls upon our ability to attract and retain quadifpersonnel, to obtain patent protection or
otherwise develop proprietary products or proceasesto secure sufficient capital resources forstitestantial period that it takes to devel
product.

AmBisome has several current and expeatatpetitors:

. conventional amphotericin B in markets where AmBigchas been approved as a first line therapy. Guiovel amphotericin
B is made by Bristol-Myers Squibb Company and numasgeneric manufacturers. In many countries, Amfis cannot be
prescribed until conventional amphotericin B thgrhps failed or cannot be used.

. caspofungin, a product developed by Merck thativedemarketing approval in January 2001 in the UaBere it is sold as
Cancidas, and that received marketing approvdlérBuropean Union in October 2001. We expect te &gnificant
competition from caspofungin.

. voriconazole, which is being developed by Pfizec,. has received marketing approval in the Europé@on in March 2002.
Pfizer has filed an application for marketing apatidfor voriconazole in the U.S. and the FDA hasrded the NDA
approvable. We expect to face significant competifrom voriconazole.

. other lipid-based amphotericin B products apprawvetthie U.S. and throughout Europe, including Abglseld by Elan
Corporation, and Amphotec, sold by InterMune Phaenéicals, Inc. These products compete against AorBé as both
primary and secondary therapy and are generalgrexdfat prices that are less than AmBisome's price.

Viread faces substantial competition. A bemof drugs to treat HIV infection and AIDS areremtly sold or are in advanced stages of
clinical development, including 17 products curhgsbld in the U.S. Among the major pharmaceutemahpanies that are significant
competitors in the HIV/AIDS market are GlaxoSmithi€, Bristol-Myers Squibb, Hoffmann-La Roche, Pfiaderck, Boehringer-Ingelheim
and Abbott Laboratories.

Tamiflu competes with Relenza, an dhtidrug that is sold by GlaxoSmithKline. Relengaineuraminidase inhibitor that is delivere:
an orally-inhaled dry powder. In addition, BioCry&tarmaceuticals is developing a neuraminidaséitohianti-flu drug, peramivir, that will
represent significant competition when and if tiAFapproves it. This drug may be administered aace-daily pill, as opposed to Tamiflu,
which must be taken twice daily for treatment. Vdarmot be certain that Tamiflu will compare favoyata this drug based on performance,
price, length of dosing, side effects or any ottréeria. BioCryst Pharmaceuticals has commendebase Ill clinical trial with peramivir, but
it is unclear if or when this product may be on tharket.
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Vistide competes with a number of drugg tso treat CMV retinitis. These drugs include:

. ganciclovir, the most widely prescribed drug treatitrfor CMV retinitis, is sold by Hoffman La-Rochean intravenous
formulation for treatment of CMV retinitis and im aral formulation for prevention and treatmenCaflV retinitis, and by
Bausch & Lomb Incorporated in a device implanted patient's infected eye that releases gancictiirgctly to the infected
area;

. valganciclovir, an oral pro-drug formulation of gariovir marketed by Hoffman La-Roche, received keting approval in the
U.S. in April 2001 and in the Netherlands in Sepgien001 for treatment of CMV retinitis, and Hoffmbaa-Roche has stated
it expects pan-European approval by mid-2002;

. foscarnet, an injectable drug for treatment of Ch\initis, is sold by AstraZeneca; and

. formivirsen, a drug that is injected directly int@ eye, is sold by CibaVision.

If adefovir dipivoxil is approved to treldBYV infection, lamivudine will be significant compigon. Lamivudine is a drug that was
developed by GlaxoSmithKline in collaboration wiglochem Pharma. Lamivudine is sold in the U.S.,dper China and several other
countries and has been shown to be effective atitrg patients infected with HBV.

There are drugs that have been approveatecawaiting approval, for the treatment of Kajsosircoma in the U.S. and Euro



including one that is sold in a liposomal formutati These drugs compete or are expected to comitet®aunoXome.

A number of companies are pursuing the lkbgveent of technologies competitive with our resbgrrograms. These competing
companies include specialized pharmaceutical faintlarge pharmaceutical companies acting eitlmpiendently or together with
biopharmaceutical companies. Furthermore, acadistitutions, government agencies and other pubitt private organizations conducting
research may seek patent protection and may estiatgilaborative arrangements for competitive potsland programs.

We anticipate that we will face increasecthpetition in the future as our competitors introglmew products to the market and new
technologies become available. We cannot deterih@éasting products or new products that our cotitpes develop will be more effective
or more effectively marketed and sold than any weatlevelop. Competitive products could renderteahnology and products obsolete or
noncompetitive before we recover the money anduress we used to develop these products.

Government Regulation

Our operations and activities are subjeextensive regulation by numerous government aitig®in the U.S. and other countries. In
the U.S., drugs are subject to rigorous FDA redaafThe Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act ahérofiederal and state statutes and
regulations govern the testing, manufacture, saédfgctiveness, labeling, storage, record keegmpgroval, advertising and promotion of our
products. As a result of these regulations, prodagelopment and the product approval processrisesgpensive and time consuming.

The FDA must approve a drug before it carsdld in the U.S. The general process for thisapb is as follows:
Preclinical Testing

Before we can test a drug candidate in msnae must study the drug in laboratory experisent in animals to generate data to
support the drug's potential safety and benefits.sdbmit this data
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to the FDA in an investigational new drug applicat{IND) seeking their approval to test the commbimhumans.
Clinical Trials

If the FDA accepts the investigational rdnwg application, we study the drug in human chhicials to determine if the drug is safe and
effective. These clinical trials involve three segta phases that often overlap, can take many yaearare very expensive. These three ph
which are themselves subject to considerable régoleare as follows:

. Phase I. The drug is given to a small number oltlngauman subjects or patients to test for safégtge tolerance,
pharmacokinetics, metabolism, distribution, andretion.

. Phase Il. The drug is given to a limited patienpydation to determine the effect of the drug iratieg the disease, the best ¢
of the drug, and the possible side effects andysafiks of the drug.

. Phase lll. If a compound appears to be effectivesaie in Phase 1l clinical trials, Phase Il ataitrials are commenced to
confirm those results. Phase 11l clinical triale éwngterm, involve a significantly larger populationeartonducted at numero
sites in different geographic regions and are célgeflesigned to provide reliable and conclusiveadagarding the safety and
benefits of a drug. It is not uncommon for a drogt tappears promising in Phase Il clinical trial$dil in the more rigorous ai
reliable Phase Ill clinical trials.

FDA Approval Process

If we believe that the data from the PHésginical trials show an adequate level of sgfahd effectiveness, we will file an NDA with
the FDA seeking approval to sell the drug for dipalar use. The FDA will review the new drug applion and often will hold a public
hearing where an independent advisory committesxpért advisors asks additional questions regartiegirug. This committee makes a
recommendation to the FDA that is not binding aa DA but is generally followed by the FDA. If tR®A agrees that the compound has a
required level of safety and effectiveness for digalar use, it will allow us to sell the drugtine U.S. for that use. It is hot unusual, however,
for the FDA to reject an application because iteaas that the drug is not safe enough or effeana@ugh or because it does not believe that
the data submitted is reliable or conclusive.

At any point in this process, the developtre# a drug could be stopped for a number of nesgocluding safety concerns and lack of
treatment benefit. We cannot be certain that aimycell trials that we are conducting, including $kedor Viread for HIV infection and adefo
dipivoxil for chronic HBV infection, or any that wepnduct in the future, will be completed succdsfur within any specified time perio



We may choose, or the FDA may require us to detesuspend our clinical trials at any time if it @pps that the patients are being expost
an unacceptable health risk or if the drug candidaies not appear to have sufficient treatmentfliene

The FDA may also require us to completeitaaithl testing, provide additional data or infortioa, improve our manufacturing proces:
procedures or facilities or require extensive poatketing testing and surveillance to monitor taiety or benefits of our product candidates
if they determine that our new drug applicationginet contain adequate evidence of the safety andfits of the drug. In addition, even if
the FDA approves a drug, it could limit the useshef drug. Approvals can also be withdrawn if tfAFdoes not believe that we are
complying with regulatory standards or if probleans uncovered or occur after approval.

In addition to obtaining FDA approval faah drug, the manufacturing facilities for any dwg sell, including those of companies who
manufacture our drugs for us as well as our owrstroe
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approved by the FDA and are subject to periodipaetons by the FDA. Foreign establishments thatufecture products to be sold in the
U.S. must also be approved by the FDA and are sutijgoeriodic regulatory inspection. Manufacturfagilities located in California,
including our San Dimas facility and Foster Citgifdly, also must be licensed by the State of @atifa in compliance with local regulatory
requirements.

Drugs that treat serious or life-threatgniliseases and conditions that are not adequatdhgssed by existing drugs may be designated
as fast track products by the FDA and may be dédir priority six month review and accelerateghagval, as was the case for Viread. Dr
receiving accelerated approval must be monitorgubst-marketing clinical trials in order to confitime safety and benefits of the drug. We
will seek priority six month review and acceleratggproval for adefovir dipivoxil, but we cannot éehine whether this will be granted or
what the impact of this would be on the timingikelihood of approval of adefovir dipivoxil.

We are also subject to other federal, statklocal regulations regarding workplace safety protection of the environment. We use
hazardous materials, chemicals, viruses and varaiieactive compounds in our research and devedopactivities and cannot eliminate
risk of accidental contamination or injury from seematerials. Any misuse or accidents involving¢heaterials could lead to significant
litigation, fines and penalties.

Drugs are also subject to extensive reguaiutside of the U.S. In the European Union,dhiera centralized approval procedure that
authorizes marketing of a product in all countifethe European Union (which includes most majarntdes in Europe). If this procedure is
not used, under a decentralized system an appiroeak country of the European Union can be usexdbtain approval in another country of
the European Union under a simplified applicatioocpss. After approval under the centralized prooedoricing and reimbursement
approvals are also required in most countries.idésand Viread were approved by the European Uaiater the centralized procedure. We
are using the centralized approval procedure fefadr dipivoxil. Tamiflu is being reviewed undéra centralized procedure, but it has not
been approved in Europe.

Pricing and Reimbursemer

Insurance companies, health maintenancanaations (HMOS), other third-party payors and eguovernments seek to limit the amount
we can charge for our drugs. For example, in aeftaieign markets, pricing negotiations are oftequired to obtain approval of a product,
and in the U.S. there have been, and we expecthi will continue to be, a number of federal atade proposals to implement drug price
control. In addition, managed care organizatioesbeacoming more common in the U.S. and will cordituseek lower drug prices. The
announcement of these proposals or efforts careaawsstock price to lower, and if these propoaatsadopted, our revenues would decre

Our ability to sell our drugs also dependghe availability of reimbursement from governtsesnd private insurance companies. These
governments and insurance companies often demaatkeseor predetermined discounts from list prigés.expect that products we are
developing, particularly for AIDS indications, whble subject to reimbursement issues. We cannotibairc that any of our other products that
obtain regulatory approval will be reimbursed bggt government and insurance companies.

Regulatory approval of prices is generadiguired in most foreign countries. In particulzttain countries will condition their approval
of a product on the agreement of the seller neetbthat product for more than a certain pricéhat country and in the past have required
price reductions after or in connection with pradagproval. We cannot be certain that regulatoth@ities in the future will not establish
lower prices or that any regulatory action redudimg price of our products in any one country wil have the practical effect of requiring us
to reduce our prices in other
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countries. In certain developing countries thatsagaificantly affected by HIV and AIDS, parallehporting and generic competition may
occur and adversely affect revenues from sales ofasket share of Viread.

Employees
As of February 28, 2002, we had more th@0Q full-time employees. We believe that we havedyrelations with our employees.
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RISK FACTORS

In evaluating our business, you shouldfcdlyeconsider the following risks in addition the other information in this report. Any of the
following risks could materially and adversely affeur business, operating results and financiatitmn.

Viread is a new drug, and it may not gain significat market acceptance.

Viread is a new drug and faces an extreroetypetitive marketplace. There are currently 1gdrsold in the U.S. for treatment of HIV
infection and AIDS, and other potential drugs aréate stages of clinical development. Most of campetitors and potential competitors
have substantially greater resources than we dasd@ hesources include greater experience in pramatid marketing HIV drugs, superior
product development capabilities and financiakstfic, manufacturing, marketing, managerial anchan resources. In order for Viread to
be successful, we will have to establish it inrierketplace against these competitors' drugstdiigarly to determine if Viread will achieve
significant market acceptance.

We have never marketed or sold a drugréatiment of HIV infection before and might not lbecessful in doing so. We have never
before operated and managed a marketing and gadestion of this size or attempted to penetratetarial market of this size and might 1
do so effectively. We cannot predict whether ouadehlll clinical study 903 will demonstrate thatééd is safe and effective in combination
therapy for patients who have not had prior HIVt#ipy, as compared to a competitor's drug. Long tesenof Viread may reveal safety issues
or the development of resistance to Viread in pasief our marketing efforts are unsuccessfutliiical trial results do not demonstrate that
Viread is safe and effective in patients who havehad prior HIV therapy, or if Viread turns outhave safety or resistance issues, we may
be unsuccessful in convincing physicians to préscyiread to their patients, and some governmemtxarsers and private insurance
companies may not pay for Viread if prescribedgrati who have not had prior HIV therapy. If Viredabs not gain significant market
acceptance, results of our operations will suffer.

Any significant reduction in AmBisome or Viread saés would significantly reduce our operating incomand could require us to scale
back our manufacturing operations and reduce our skes force.

AmBisome sales for the years ended Dece®ibet999, 2000 and 2001 were approximately $1&8llbn, or 76%, $141.1 million, or
72%, and $164.5 million, or 70%, of our total reves. We expect that revenues from sales of AmBissitheontinue to constitute a
substantial part of our total product revenuegast through 2002.

Viread sales for the year ended DecembgP@11 were approximately $15.6 million, or 7% af ¢otal revenues. This represents sales
for access programs in the U.S. and Europe arnidlipitoduct sales in the U.S. following the U.Syukatory approval of Viread in
October 2001. We expect that product sales of \direi#l constitute a substantial part of our tovenues for the foreseeable future.

Accordingly, for the foreseeable future, exect that we will continue to rely heavily onesaof AmBisome and Viread to support our
existing manufacturing and sales infrastructuretangrovide operating income to offset a significpartion of our administrative, research
and development expenditures. Any significant réidadn sales of AmBisome or Viread, whether assult of the introduction of
competitive products or otherwise, would hurt ousibess, and we would have to scale back our metuwmiiag operations and reduce our
sales force. There are several products on theahtrit compete with AmBisome and are generallggoriower than AmBisome. We expect
to face significant competition from new antifungabducts, including caspofungin, a product devetbpy Merck and voriconazole, a
product developed by Pfizer, Inc. Merck receive8.Unarketing approval in January 2001 and Europaon marketing approval in
October 2001 for caspofungin.
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Pfizer received European Union marketing appravdiarch 2002 and has filed a U.S. marketing apgrapplication that has been deemed
approvable by the FDA. Viread faces competitiomfr@ number of drugs to treat HIV infection and Al&luding 17 products currently
sold in the U.S



We have a history of losses, expect to operate atass for the foreseeable future and may never beagfitable.

We have never been profitable on a fullryazerating basis. We may never become profitablarooperating basis. At December 31,
2001, our accumulated deficit was approximately3$#43nillion. Our losses have resulted principatlynfi expenses associated with our
research and development programs and, to a lestert, from sales, general and administrative es@®& Our product sales and royalty
revenues are derived from sales of AmBisome, Vir¥4stide and DaunoXome and royalty arrangemeréded to Tamiflu, AmBisome and
Vistide.

We develop drugs to treat HIV infection and AIDS aml related conditions, and therefore changes in theegulatory and commercial
environment for HIV infection and AIDS therapies cauld harm our business.

Several of our products and products irettgyment address HIV infection and AIDS or relatedditions. These products include
Viread for HIV infection and AIDS, Vistide for CMVYetinitis and DaunoXome for HIV-associated Kaposdéscoma. We develop those
products based upon current policy and the curmemketplace for HIV infection and AIDS therapies,veell as our prediction of future poli
and the future marketplace for these therapies.bOsiness is subject to substantial risk becalesetholicies and markets change quickly
unpredictably and in ways that could impair ouligbio obtain regulatory approval and commerciedeptance of these products.

Our operations depend on compliance with complex FB and comparable international regulations. Failureto obtain broad approvals
on a timely basis or to achieve continued compliamccould delay commercialization of our products.

The products that we will develop and salist be approved and will be subject to extenstgellation by the FDA and comparable
agencies in other countries. We are continuingadirtrials for AmBisome and Viread for currentlgmoved and additional uses. We are also
conducting clinical trials for adefovir dipivoxiWe anticipate that we will conduct a variety ohdatal trials and file for marketing approval of
additional products over the next several years.d@rporate partner Cubist Pharmaceuticals is cotimaty clinical trials for Cidecin, and we
may conduct clinical trials for Cidecin in the frgu These products may fail to receive marketingayal on a timely basis, or at all. In part
due to the failure of Cidecin to meet the primamggoint in Cubist Pharmaceuticals' first pivotabBé Il clinical trial of Cidecin for
treatment of community-acquired pneumonia causegram-positive bacteria, we are reevaluating ogulegory strategy for Cidecin and do
not expect to file a marketing approval applicationCidecin in 2002. We cannot be certain thafade dipivoxil or Cidecin will be
approved by the FDA, the European Union, or reganjaauthorities in other countries, or whether ag#fdipivoxil or Cidecin may receive
marketing approvals that place limitations on thusies. These failures, delays or limitations, déagother regulatory changes, actions and
recalls, could delay commercialization of any pratduand adversely affect our results of operations.

In addition, even after our products areketed, the products and their manufacturers dvgsuto continual review. Later discovery of
previously unknown problems with our products, own manufacturing or the production by third-partgnufacturers may result in
restrictions on our products or the manufactureusfproducts, including withdrawal of the produictsn the market. If we fail to comply wi
applicable regulatory requirements, we could bgesmtlo penalties including fines, suspensionsgfifatory approvals, product recalls,
seizure of products and criminal prosecution.
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Results of clinical trials and approval of productsare uncertain, and we may be delayed in or prohilbéd from selling our products.

We have a number of potential products liaate reached the development stage. These pofenatiucts include adefovir dipivoxil and
Cidecin. We will be required to demonstrate thesaand effectiveness of these and any other ptedue develop in each intended use
through extensive preclinical studies and clintcals in order to obtain regulatory approval oéske products. The results from preclinical
early clinical studies do not always accuratelydpreresults in later, large-scale clinical triéds several reasons, including:

. Preliminary results may not be indicative of effeehess;
. Further clinical trials may not achieve the desiresllt; and
. Further clinical trials may reveal unduly harmfideseffects or may show the drugs to be less éfethan other drugs or

delivery systems for the desired indications.

Even successfully completed large-scalaadi trials may not result in marketable proddotsseveral reasons, including:

. The potential products are not shown to be safecéfiadtive;
. Regulatory authorities disagree with the resultdesign of our studies and trials; or

. The potential products are too difficult to develofm commercially viable products.



In January 2001, Cubist Pharmaceutical®anced that in the first pivotal Phase 11l clinitahl of Cidecin for treatment of community-
acquired pneumonia caused by gram-positive bac@iiecin was not successful in meeting the pringargpoint. In November 1999, an
FDA Advisory Committee recommended against approfalur application to approve a 60 mg dose of adeflipivoxil to treat HIV
infection. Kidney toxicity associated with this 6@y dose, as well as a desire for additional da¢sewihe major concerns of this committee.
Following this recommendation, we were informedliy FDA that it would not approve our applicatioriass we obtained additional data
that satisfied the concerns raised by this commiBased on these discussions, we terminated @etament of adefovir dipivoxil for the
treatment of AIDS. We have used and are using 1@dosgs of adefovir dipivoxil in our Phase Il ctial trials of adefovir dipivoxil for HBV
infection and are seeking regulatory approval fier 10 mg dose. Clinical results to date indicas these lower doses do not result in the
kidney toxicity experienced with 60 mg and thatfasle dipivoxil can be effective in treating HBV fiection at these lower doses. We cannot
be certain, however, that these lower doses wibditd safe enough and have sufficient treatmengfiterio receive FDA approval. Viread is
in the same class of drugs as adefovir dipivoxihi/we have not yet observed kidney toxicity im olinical trials of Viread, the kidney
toxicity in our clinical trials of adefovir dipivakfor HIV infection did not arise until the latstages of our clinical trials. We cannot be cel
that similar toxicity issues will not arise lateraur ongoing clinical trials of Viread. A numbdrammpanies in our industry have suffered
similar setbacks in advanced clinical trials despitomising results in earlier trials. In the ewe, may be unable to develop additional
marketable products.
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Delays in enrolling patients or developing suitabl@rotocols for clinical trials could increase costand delay regulatory approvals.

The rate of completion of our clinical tsavill depend on the rate of patient enrolimeritefie will be substantial competition to enroll
patients in clinical trials for our drugs in devhoent. This competition has delayed our clinical$rin the past. In addition, recent
improvements in existing drug therapy, particulddyHIV and HBV infections, may make it more ddfilt for us to enroll patients in our
clinical trials as the patient population may chetsenroll in clinical trials sponsored by othempanies or choose alternative therapies.
Delays in planned patient enroliment can resuilh@neased development costs and delays in regylafiprovals.

Our clinical trials must be carried out engrotocols that are acceptable to regulatoryaaitibs and to the committees responsible for
clinical studies at the sites at which the studiesconducted. There may be delays in preparingqots or receiving approval for them that
may delay either or both of the start and finistowf clinical trials. In addition, feedback frongrdatory authorities or results from earlier
stage clinical studies might require modificatiamsielays in later stage clinical trials. Theseetypf delays can result in increased
development costs and delayed regulatory approvals.

Our product development efforts may not yield markéable products due to results of studies or trialsfailure to achieve regulatory
approvals or market acceptance, proprietary rightsof others or manufacturing issues.

Our success depends on our ability to sstally develop and obtain regulatory approval rket new pharmaceutical products. A
significant portion of the research that we wilhdaict will involve new and unproven technologiesvBlopment of a product requires
substantial technical, financial and human resauesen if the product is not successfully completed

Our potential products may appear to bensimg at various stages of development yet faietch the market for a number of reasons,
including:

. lack of sufficient treatment benefit or unaccepgaioixicity during preclinical studies or clinicaidls;

. failure to receive necessary regulatory approvals;

. existence of proprietary rights of third partiesda

. inabi;itydto develop manufacturing methods that effecient, cost-effective and capable of meetitrqngent regulatory
standards.

Most of our product sales occur outside the U.S.na currency fluctuations may impair our financial results.

A significant majority of our sales is demoated in foreign currencies. Increases in thaevalf the U.S. dollar against these foreign
currencies in the past have reduced, and in theduhay reduce, our U.S. dollar return on thesessahd negatively impact our financial
condition. We hedge with respect to foreign accsuateivable, but we did not in the past hedgeegposure to the impact of fluctuating
foreign exchange rates on forecasted sales. Bféedtinuary 2002, we have begun to use forwardacistto hedge a percentage of our
forecasted international sales, primarily thosesdenominated in the euro currency. We expeaishef these forward contracts will reduce
the impact of foreign currency fluctuations on éuture results.

Product development expenses can cause our operaiaxpenses to fluctuate from quarter to quarter.



The clinical trials required for regulatapproval of our products are extremely expengtvs.difficult to accurately predict or control
the amount or timing of these expenses from quéoter
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quarter. Uneven and unexpected spending on thegeaons causes our operating results to fluctuata ffuarter to quarter.

We depend on relationships with other companies faresearch funding, clinical development, sales anudarketing performance and
revenues. Failure to maintain these relationships @uld negatively impact our business.

We rely on a number of significant colladdre relationships with major pharmaceutical comes for our research funding, clinical
development and/or sales and marketing performanese include collaborations with Fujisawa Heatle¢ GlaxoSmithKline, Hoffmanha
Roche, Pharmacia Corporation, EyeTech Pharmactjtina., and Sumitomo Pharmaceuticals Co. Incelnain countries, we only rely on
international distributors for sales of AmBisomelam such countries intend to only rely on interoaal distributors for sales of Viread. In
addition, under our collaboration agreement witbiSuPharmaceuticals, Inc. to commercialize Cubasttibacterial drug Cidecin in several
European countries following regulatory approvalpiSt is responsible for the ongoing clinical deypshent of Cidecin. Accordingly, we will
have no control over but will rely on Cubist's @il trials for our regulatory filings for Cideciidecin did not meet the primary end point in
Cubist's first Phase Ill clinical trial for commiyvacquired pneumonia caused by gram-positive biact®/e do not expect to file a marketing
approval application in the European Union in 2@82only the complicated skin and soft tissue itifat indication, for which Cidecin has
achieved success in Phase Il clinical trials.n§oing clinical trials do not support regulatorypapval, Cubist is not required to conduct
additional clinical trials and we may choose toduet these trials ourselves at our expense. Relianccollaborative relationships poses a
number of risks, including:

. We will not be able to control whether our corperpartners will devote sufficient resources to prnagrams or products;
. Disputes may arise in the future with respect @dtvnership of rights to technology developed withporate partners;
. Disagreements with corporate partners could leattkays in or termination of the research, develapnor commercialization

of product candidates, or result in litigation doigration;

. Contracts with our corporate partners may failrovje significant protection or may fail to beetfively enforced if one of
these partners fails to perform;

. Corporate partners have considerable discreti@feicting whether to pursue the development of alutianal products and
may pursue alternative technologies or producteeibn their own or in collaboration with our cortifues;

. Corporate partners with marketing rights may chdostevote fewer resources to the marketing ofppaducts than they do to
products of their own development; and

. Our distributors and corporate partners may be lertalpay us.

Given these risks, there is a great deahogrtainty regarding the success of our curredtfature collaborative efforts. If these efforts
fail, our product development or commercializatadmew products could be delayed or revenue froistieg) products, including Tamiflu
and AmBisome, could decline. In January 2002, HaffimLa Roche announced that due to production probtem$iquid suspension form
Tamiflu approved for treatment of children as yoasgone year old was not available but was expeotbd available in the 2002-2003 flu
season. These production issues do not affectadniidtly of the tablet form of Tamiflu for adults drmdolescents 13 years and older. We d
expect the current production issues to have arrabédfect on our earnings.
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Our rights to market AmBisome in the U.S. and Canad are limited by an agreement with Fujisawa. Failue of Fujisawa to effectively
market AmBisome may reduce our revenues.

Our rights to market AmBisome in the U.8d £anada are subject to an agreement with Fujiddnaer the terms of this agreement, we
have sole marketing rights to AmBisome in all coi@stexcept the U.S. and Canada but must pay regaft connection with sales in most
significant Asian markets, including Japan. We coamote AmBisome with Fujisawa in the U.S. We mantifee AmBisome for sale in the
U.S. and Canada and sell AmBisome to Fujisawasitindhe U.S. and at cost plus a specified peaggnin Canada. Fujisawa collects all
revenues from AmBisome sales in the U.S. and paygpproximately 17% of net sales. The success disome in the U.S. will be
dependent primarily on the efforts of Fujisawa, an@anada the success of AmBisome will dependeainton Fujisawa. If Fujisawa fails in
its efforts, potential revenues from the sales wiBdssome may be substantially reduc



Failure of Hoffmann-La Roche to effectively marketTamiflu would reduce our potential revenues.

Hoffmann-La Roche has sole responsibilitydromoting and selling Tamiflu on a worldwide isaand we have no control over their
activities. Therefore, we are relying on the eBaf Hoffmann-La Roche for any revenues we reckiwm the sale of Tamiflu. If Hoffmann-
La Roche does not dedicate sufficient resourc#isa@romotion of Tamiflu, or if Hoffmann-La Rochalf in its marketing efforts, the
royalties we receive from the sale of Tamiflu wodktrease and we would be adversely affected.

Inability to establish future successful collaboraive relationships may impair our financial results.

We may seek future collaborative relatiopshvith corporate partners to fund some of oueaesh and development expenses and to
develop and commercialize some of our, or theitepibal products. Further, we anticipate that @venues from collaborative agreements
will continue to be affected by existing agreemeasswell as by the timing of drug development paogs of our corporate partners. We may
not be able to negotiate acceptable collaboratirengements in the future, and any arrangementsoowegotiate may not be successful. If
fail to establish additional collaborative relatstips, we will be required to undertake researekigbbpment, marketing and manufacturing of
our proposed products at our own expense or diseanbr reduce these activities.

Our existing products and products under developmenmay not be accepted by physicians, insurers andagients.

Adefovir dipivoxil and Cidecin, if approvddr marketing, would have no established markhe &bility of these products to achieve .
sustain market acceptance will depend on the reaatbscope of regulatory approvals and whethaeobgovernment authorities and
managed care organizations will adequately reimbpadients who use these products.

In addition, we need to convince the mddical patient advocacy community of:

. the effectiveness of these products in treatingatis;
. the safety of these products when administeredtiemqts; and
. the advantages of these products over competitivéugts.

Physicians, patients, patient advocategmnsaand the medical community in general may ©woept or use any products that we may
develop. If our products are not accepted, ourltesfi operations will suffer.
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Many other companies are targeting the same diseasand conditions as we are. Competitive productsdm other companies could
significantly reduce the market acceptance of our qducts.

Our products and development programs tageimber of diseases and conditions, including infections, fungal infections, and
bacterial infections. There are many commercialigilable products for these diseases. Certainasfelproducts are wedktablished therapi
and have generated substantial sales. In add&itarge number of companies and institutions anelgcting well-funded research and
development activities directed at developing treatts for these diseases. Products currently omérket and those under development by
our competitors could make our technology and petslabsolete or noncompetitive. We expect that eitipn for the treatment of these
diseases will increase in the future as new pradeicter the market and advanced technologies beawailable. We will also be competing
to license or acquire technology from other comeani

Most of our competitors and potential cotitpes have substantially greater resources thadavd hose resources include superior
product development capabilities and financiakstfic, manufacturing, marketing, managerial anchan resources. These competitors may
achieve superior patent protection, obtain keyrielidgy, receive regulatory approval or achieve pob@ommercialization earlier than us.

The significantly greater resources of the marketig organizations of large pharmaceutical companiesotld hinder our ability to
compete successfully.

Our products compete, and the products ag develop are likely to compete, with productsibfer companies that currently have
extensive and well-funded marketing and sales ojp@sa Because these companies are capable ofidgwignificantly greater resources to
their marketing efforts, our marketing or sale®eff may not compete successfully against thetsffifrthese other companies.

Our existing products are subject to reimbursemenfrom government agencies and other third parties. Farmaceutical pricing and
reimbursement pressures may reduce profitability.

Successful commercialization of our produdgpends, in part, on the availability of governtakand third party payor reimbursem



for the cost of such products and related treatsa&@wvernment health administration authoritiesgte health insurers and other
organizations generally provide reimbursement. Gawvent authorities and third-party payors increglgire challenging the price of
medical products and services, particularly folowative new products and therapies. This has egsuitlower average sales prices. For
example, a majority of our sales of AmBisome, \distand DaunoXome are subject to reimbursement grgment agencies, resulting in
significant discounts from list price and rebatéigdtions. Our business may be adversely affecyeainbincrease in U.S. or international
pricing pressures. These pressures can arise fri@® and practices of managed care groups, judieigkions and governmental laws and
regulations related to Medicare, Medicaid and ezdire reform, pharmaceutical reimbursement argingrin general. In the U.S. in recent
years, new legislation has been proposed at trezdkednd state levels that would effect major clearig the health care system, eit
nationally or at the state level. These proposal&hincluded prescription drug benefit proposatdMedicare beneficiaries introduced in
Congress. Although there has been no U.S. fedef@im legislation, some states have enacted heatthreform legislation. Further federal
and state developments are possible. Although weataredict the exact nature of legislative heatdtre reforms, if any, our results of
operations could be adversely affected by suchmefoln Europe, the success of Tamiflu (if approfardsale) and Viread will also depend
largely on obtaining government reimbursement inofga because in many European countries, incluti@d)nited Kingdom and France,
patients are reluctant to pay for prescription dragt of their own pocket. We also expect thatsthecess of our products in development,
particularly in Europe, will depend on the abilityobtain reimbursement. Even if reimbursemenvalable, reimbursement policies may
adversely affect our ability to sell our productsaprofitable basis.
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In addition, in many international markesyernments control the prices of prescriptionrptaceuticals. In these markets, once
marketing approval is received, pricing negotiattan take another six to twelve months or longeydict sales, attempts to gain market
share or introductory pricing programs of our cotitpes could require us to lower our prices in thesuntries, which could adversely affect
our results of operations.

We may not be able to obtain effective patents torptect our technologies from use by competitors, ahpatents of other companies
could require us to stop using or pay for the usefaequired technology.

Our success will depend to a significargrde on our ability to:

. obtain patents and licenses to patent rights;
. preserve trade secrets; and
. operate without infringing on the proprietary riglof others.

We have rights to U.S. and foreign issuagipts and have filed and will continue to fileguatapplications in the U.S. and abroad
relating to our technologies. There is a risk, heavethat patents may not issue from any of thepdiGations or that the patents will not be
sufficient to protect our technology. Patent apgiiians are confidential for at least some periotiné&, sometimes in the U.S. until a patent
issues. As a result, we may not know if our contpedifiled patent applications for technology c@eeby our pending applications. We also
cannot be certain that we were the first to inthattechnology that is the subject of our pateptieations. Cidecin is protected by method of
use patents that generally do not provide the dawst of protection as composition of matter pade@@ompetitors may have filed patent
applications or received patents and may obtaiitiaddl patents and proprietary rights that blockcompete with our patents.

We do not have patent filings coveringfatms of adefovir dipivoxil in China or in certaather Asian countries, although we do have
applications pending in various Asian countries|uding China, that relate to various forms andrfolations of adefovir dipivoxil. Asia is a
major market for HBV therapies, one of the potdntidications for adefovir dipivoxil. We may obtaiatents for certain products many years
before marketing approval is obtained for thoselpots. Because patents have a limited life, whiely begin to run prior to commercial sale,
the commercial value of the product may be limitadaddition, patents may not provide adequateggtan in certain countries in Africa and
Asia, including China.

Our competitors may file patent applicai@overing our technology. If so, we may have wiigipate in interference proceedings or
litigation to determine the right to a patent. géttion and interference proceedings are expensiae i€ successful.

Our success depends in large part on dlityab operate without infringing upon the patsmir other proprietary rights of third parties
we infringe the patents of others, we may be preagefrom commercializing products or may be reglibeobtain licenses from these third
parties. We cannot be certain that we would be tabtibtain alternative technologies or any requireghse. Even if we were to obtain such
technologies or licenses, we cannot be certainttteaterms would be reasonable. If we fail to abfaich licenses or alternative technologies,
we may be unable to develop some or all of our petsd

For example, we may decide to use an assdlyod in our drug screening programs. ICT Pharotézzds has patents that may cover
parts of this program. ICT Pharmaceuticals hagedffeis a non-exclusive license under these pagsmart of an industry-wide licensing
program. If it is determined that we need thesemtatfor this program, we would need to obtain libense or develop or acquire alternative
technologies for this program. We cannot be cettanhwe would b
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able to obtain this license on reasonable terntsatralternative technologies could serve our némdfuiture drug development.

In addition, we use significant proprietéeghnology and rely on unpatented trade secretpanprietary know-how to protect certain
aspects of our production and other technologies.t@de secrets may become known or independdisitpvered by our competitors.

In a number of developing countries, gowgent officials and other groups have suggestedpt@tmaceutical companies should make
drugs for HIV infection available at a low cost.dome cases, governmental authorities have indi¢htg where pharmaceutical companies
do not do so, their patents might not be enforeetbprevent generic competition. Some major phaemtical companies have greatly
reduced prices for HIV drugs in certain developtogntries. If certain countries do not permit enéament of our patents, sales of Viread in
those countries could be reduced by generic cotigretAlternatively, governments in those countigesild require that we grant compulsory
licenses to allow competitors to manufacture afidiseir own versions of Viread in those countritgreby reducing our Viread sales, or we
could respond to governmental concerns by redymiegs for Viread. In either case, our resultspdrations would be adversely affected.

Manufacturing problems could delay product shipmens and regulatory approvals.

For Vistide, adefovir dipivoxil and Vireadge rely on third parties for the manufacture dklirug substance and final drug product for
clinical and commercial purposes. Hoffmann-La Roshesponsible for manufacturing Tamiflu, anchiéy encounter problems in this
process, our revenues from the sales of Tamiflidcdecrease. We depend on these third partiesrtorpetheir obligations effectively and
a timely basis. If these third parties fail to penfi as required, our clinical trials or submissidproducts for regulatory approval may be
delayed. These delays could impair our ability ébvetr commercial products on a timely basis anadaémpair our competitive position.
Hoffmann-La Roche has announced that due to pramuptoblems the liquid suspension form of Taméfproved for treatment of children
as young as one year old was not currently availbbt was expected to be available in the 22023 flu season. We do not expect the cu
production issues to have a material effect oneawnings.

We manufacture AmBisome and DaunoXome afamilities in San Dimas, California. Our only foulation and manufacturing faciliti
are in San Dimas, California; although we own a ofiacturing facility in Ireland that performs cerajuality control testing, labeling and
packaging, and we use third parties as alternatrand suppliers to fill and freeze dry certaindbegts of product. In the event of a natural
disaster, including an earthquake, equipment fajlsirike or other difficulty, we may be unablaéplace this manufacturing capacity in a
timely manner and would be unable to manufacturd&saeme and DaunoXome to meet market needs.

We may not be able to obtain materials necessary taanufacture our products.

Many of the materials that we utilize irr @perations are made at only one facility. Fomeplke, we depend on single suppliers for high
quality amphotericin B, daunorubicin HCI, distedphosphatidylcholine and high quality cholesteezch of which is used in the
manufacture of one or more of our liposomal proguBecause the suppliers of key components andiadateust be named in the new drug
application filed with the FDA for a product, sifjnant delays can occur if the qualification of@wnsupplier is required. If supplies from our
suppliers were interrupted for any reason, we cbeldinable to ship AmBisome, Viread, Vistide or Baxiome, or supply any of our
products in development for clinical trials.
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We have limited experience in manufacturing producs and may not be able to develop adequate manufacing capacity.

For some of our potential products, we wikd to develop further our production technoledie use on a larger scale in order to
conduct clinical trials and produce such producstcbmmercial sale at an acceptable cost. We cdrenogrtain that we will be able to
implement any of these developments successfully.

The manufacturing process for pharmacelypicaducts is highly regulated, and regulators mlayt down manufacturing facilities that
they believe do not comply with regulations. TheAcurrent Good Manufacturing Practices are extenegulations governing
manufacturing processes, stability testing, red@eping and quality standards. In addition, our ufi@cturing operations are subject to
routine inspections by regulatory agencies andlaimégulations are in effect in other countries.

Our business may give rise to product liability clams not covered by insurance or indemnity agreemest

The testing, manufacturing, marketing asd of AmBisome, Viread, Vistide and DaunoXome, af s products in development,
involve substantial risk of product liability claginThese claims may be made directly by consurheedthcare providers, pharmaceutical
companies or others. A successful product liabdiaim against us could require us to pay substbathounts, which could impair o



financial condition and our ability to clinicallg$t and to market our products.

Additionally, we are required by governnamegulations to test our products even after tieye been sold and used by patients. As a
result of such tests, we may be required to, or degrmine that, we should recall products alreadiie market. Subsequent testing and
product recalls may increase our potential exposupgoduct liability claims.

Our internal research programs and our efforts to dotain rights to new products from third parties may not yield potential products
for clinical development.

Our long term success depends on our kiliher to identify either internal research pargs potential product candidates that may be
developed into new pharmaceutical products or tainmew products or product candidates througimbes from third parties.

A significant portion of the research thag will conduct will involve new and unproven tecthogies. Research programs to identify
product candidates require substantial technigential and human resources whether or not suntlidates are identified. Our research
programs may appear to be a promising route tdifgiery potential product candidates yet fail telgd product candidates for clinical
development for a number of reasons, including:

. the research methodology used may not be succéssfidntifying potential product candidates;

. potential product candidates may on further stuglgtown to have unduly harmful side effects or atigristics that indicate
they are unlikely to be effective drugs;

. we may be unable to develop larger scale manuiagtunethods that are efficient, cost-effective angable of meeting
stringent regulatory standards;

. others may hold intellectual property rights thetvent us from developing, making or selling cera@ioducts.

We may be unable to obtain suitable prodaotlidates or products from third parties for mmber of reasons, including:

. we may be unable to purchase or license such comgisaan terms that would allow us to make an appt#preturn from the
product;
. competitors may be unwilling to assign or licensedpict rights to us;
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. we may be unable to identify suitable productsrodpct candidates within our areas of expertise; or
. product candidates that we acquire may not be a&pprby regulatory authorities due to problems \tligir safety or
effectiveness.

If we are unable to develop suitable patdprroduct candidates through internal researolggams or obtain rights to new products from
third parties, our future revenue growth will suffe

Our use of hazardous materials, chemicals, virusesd radioactive compounds exposes us to potentigbilities.

Our research and development involves tinérolled use of hazardous materials, chemicatases and various radioactive compounds.
Although we believe that our safety procedureshfordling and disposing of such materials complyhie standards prescribed by state and
federal regulations, we cannot completely eliminthterisk of accidental contamination or injuryrfrdthese materials. In the event of such an
accident, we could be held liable for significaatthges or fines.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our corporate headquarters, including aincipal executive offices and certain of our resbdacilities, are located in Foster City,
California. At this location, we lease approximgt260,000 square feet of space in eight proximdtedgted buildings. One of the subleases
covering approximately 59,000 square feet of sjpatieis group of buildings expires in December 2@08l there are no renewal options. The
remaining leases expire in March and September 2666ve have an option to renew all of these lefisdw/o additional five-year periods.

We also occupy facilities in San Dimas,ifoahia. At this location, we lease approximateB21500 square feet of space, which houses
research and development activities, manufactwimgcertain administrative functions under leakaséxpire in May and November 2003,
with two five-year renewal options. In addition, ¥ease an adjacent warehouse facility with abol@@Bsquare feet of space that we use for
product distribution and administrative functiomsler a lease that expires in April 2006, with tvdditional five-year extensions.

In addition, we lease approximately 85,860are feet of space for our sales and markegggilatory, finance, information technology
and human resource operations in Europe and Aisstiatluding a prepaid, 9-year lease for our 13,000 square foot manufactiai



distribution facility in Ireland. The other leadasve various expiration dates.

We believe that our facilities are adequeaté suitable for at least our current and nean-feture needs.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

On August 11, 1997, we entered into aesaitint with Elan Corporation (the successor to Tipedome Company, Inc.) in which we
each agreed to dismiss all legal proceedings imwglpatents related to our liposomal formulatioraofphotericin B. In the settlement
agreement, Elan agreed not to sue us in connewttbrthe worldwide production and sales of AmBisoamal gave us rights to use some of
their patents. Under the terms of the settlememedment, we are required to make payments basédh@isome sales over the next several

years.

We are also a party to various other legtibns that arose in the ordinary course of oginass. We do not believe that any of these

other legal actions will have any significant impan our business.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITI ES HOLDERS
None
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PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON STOCK AND RE LATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Our common stock is traded on The NasdagkIWlarket under the symbol "GILD." The followingtie sets forth for the periods
indicated the high and low intiday sale prices per share of our common stock @Ndsdaqg Stock Market. These prices represent tijuot
among dealers without adjustments for retail mgr&;unark-downs or commissions, and may not repteseres of actual transactions.

High Low

2001

First Quarte! $ 20.8¢ $ 12.4¢
Second Quarte $ 30.9¢ $ 14.41
Third Quartel $ 3178 $ 22.8¢
Fourth Quarte $ 36.8¢ $ 27.2¢
2000

First Quarte! $ 212t $ 11.1¢
Second Quarte $ 19.1: $ 10.82
Third Quartel $ 29.5: $ 16.5(
Fourth Quarte $ 27.6¢ $ 15.2¢

On February 22, 2001 and on March 8, 28@2Company implemented two-fone stock splits in the form of stock dividendsl. ghare

and per share amounts for all periods presenteel heen restated to reflect both of these splits.

As of February 28, 2002, we had 193,999 &1dies of common stock outstanding held by appratdly 510 stockholders of record. We
have not paid cash dividends on our common staaesbur inception and we do not anticipate paymgia the foreseeable future.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

GILEAD SCIENCES, INC.
SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA (1)(2)
(in thousands, except per share date



Years Ended December 31,

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
OPERATIONS DATA:
Total revenue $ 233,76¢ $ 195,55 $ 168,97¢ $ 151,11¢ $ 132,25¢
Total costs and expens 354,45¢ 247,87. 239,83t 230,63: 220,48(
Loss from operation (120,689 (52,319 (70,859 (79,517 (88,227)
Income/(loss) before cumulative effect of change
accounting principlt 51,18: (43,106 (66,48¢) (44,75%) (72,899
Cumulative effect of change in accounting princi|
3) 1,08¢ (13,670 — — —
Net income/(loss 52,27: (56,77¢) (66,48¢) (44,759 (72,899
Amounts per common shi—basic:(4)
Income/(loss) before cumulative effect of char
in accounting principl $ 027 $ 029 $ 039 $ 0.27) $ (0.4¢€)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting
principle 0.01 (0.07) — — —
Net income/(loss) per sh—basic $ 0.2¢ $ 0.3)) $ (0.39) $ 0.27) $ (0.4¢€)
I I I I I
Shares used in per share calcule—basic (4) 190,24! 182,09¢ 171,30! 164,06( 157,72
I I I I I
Amounts per common shi—diluted:(4)
Income/(loss) before cumulative effect of char
in accounting principl $ 028 % 029 % 0.39 $ 027 $ (0.4¢)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting
principle 0.01 (0.09) — — —
Net income/(loss) per shi—diluted $ 0.2¢ $ 031 $ 0.39) $ 0.27) $ (0.4¢)
I I I I I
Shares used in per share calcule—diluted (4) 202,32: 182,09¢ 171,30! 164,06( 157,72¢
I I I I I
December 31,
2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
DATA:
Cash, cash equivalents and marketable
securities $ 582,85. $ 512,87¢ $ 294.39: % 348,74 $ 387,36:
Working capital 627,64 535,56( 324,10« 359,55! 396,81
Total asset 794,78t 678,09¢ 436,80¢ 487,76« 516,98
Long-term obligations 38¢ 2,23¢ 5,25¢ 8,88: 9,65¢
Convertible subordinated de 250,00 250,00( 79,53 80,00( 80,00(
Accumulated defici (453,73) (506,009 (449,23) (382,74 (337,989
Total stockholders' equity(* 452,43 351,12 297,29: 333,69¢ 357,72¢

@)

During 2001, we completed the sale of our oncolaggets and related technology to OSI and recordet-@perating gain of

$157.8 million. We also recorded a non-operating ga2001 of $8.8 million from the sale of our gércent interest in Proligo.
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)

®)

Periods prior to the year ended December 31, 1898 heen restated to reflect the merger with NeX&tarmaceuticals, Inc. on
July 29, 1999, which was accounted for as a podadirigterests.

Gilead adopted Statement of Financial Accountirap&ards Nos. 133 and 138, collectively referrealst&FAS 133Accounting for

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activitida the first quarter of 2001. The change was anted for as a change in accounting
principle. Effective in the first quarter of 200Bjlead adopted the SEC's Staff Accounting Bullétm 101 (SAB 101)Revenue
Recognition in Financial Statementand the change was also accounted for as a clageounting principle.



4 On February 22, 2001 and on March 8, 2002, the Gompmplemented tw-for-one stock splits in the form of stock dividends!.
share and per share amounts for all periods presédmtve been restated to reflect both of thestsspli

(5) No cash dividends have been declared or paid o@dmepany's common stock.

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Overview

Gilead was incorporated in Delaware on R2e€1987. We are an independent biopharmaceutitapany focused on the discovery,
development and commercialization of antiviralgjlzacterials and antifungals to treat life-thre@tgrinfectious diseases. We are a
multinational company, with revenues from five apprd products and marketing operations in ten ec@mmtCurrently, we market Viread™
(tenofovir disoproxil fumarate) for the treatmeftV infection, AmBisome® ((amphotericin B) lipose for injection), an antifungal agent,
DaunoXome® (daunorubicin citrate liposome injectiandrug approved for the treatment of Kaposite@aa, and Vistide® (cidofovir
injection) for the treatment of cytomegalovirus (€Metinitis. Hoffmann-La Roche Inc. markets Tamif!' (oseltamivir phosphate) for the
treatment of influenza, under a collaborative agret with Gilead. We are seeking to add to ourtexjgportfolio of products through our
clinical development programs, internal discovemygrams and an active product acquisition anddersing strategy. Our internal discovery
activities include identification of new moleculargets, target screening and medicinal chemibtrgddition, we are currently developing
products to treat hepatitis B virus and bacteridétions. We also have expertise in liposomal dielgvery technology that we use to develop
drugs that are safer, easier for patients to ttdeand more effective.

In December 2001, we completed the satmiobncology assets to OSI Pharmaceuticals, Ing.transaction valued at up to
$200.0 million in cash and OSI stock. This transexctvill allow us to focus on and continue to sg#ren our core expertise in infectious
diseases. See Note 4 to the consolidated finasteitdments for further information.

On February 22, 2001 and on March 8, 2@&ad completed two-for-one stock splits, effedtethe form of a stock dividend, to
stockholders of record as of February 2, 2001 afdwary 14, 2002, respectively. Accordingly, abushand per share amounts for all periods
presented have been restated to reflect both eéthglits.

In the year ended December 31, 2001, Giekgpted Statement of Financial Accounting Starsibials. 133 and 138, collectively
referred to as SFAS 13Bgccounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedgirgivities, which resulted in a cumulative effect of change i
accounting principle. In the year ended DecembefBQ0, Gilead adopted the Securities and Exch@ogemission's Staff Accounting
Bulletin No. 101 Revenue Recognition in Financial Statemeiaiso resulting in a cumulative effect of chang@écounting principle.
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On July 29, 1999, Gilead entered into drlmss combination with NeXstar Pharmaceuticals, (NeXstar). The business combination
has been accounted for as a pooling of interestsranhistorical consolidated financial statemaftSilead for all periods prior to the
business combination have been restated to inthedfinancial position, results of operations aadhcflows of NeXstar.

Certain prior period amounts have beerassified to conform to the current presentation.
Forward-Looking Statements and Risk Factors

The following discussion contains forwaod#ing statements that involve risks and uncerisnGilead's actual results could differ
materially from those discussed in any forward-iogkstatements. Factors that could cause or cendrito such differences include, but are
not limited to, those discussed in this sectionyel as under the caption "Business," includingskRFactors" in Part I. All forward-looking
statements included in this document are basedformation currently available to Gilead, and wsuase no obligation to update any such
forward-looking statements. The following discussstould be read in conjunction with the consoéddtnancial statements and notes
included elsewhere in this report.

AmBisome Sales. We rely on sales of AmBisome for a significanttion of our operating income. There are lowéceu products that
compete with AmBisome; a product that was recemplgroved that competes with AmBisome, a produdtttteaFDA has deemed
approvable; and products being developed that aoaigpete with AmBisome in the future. If these otbducts achieve further market
acceptance, or if the products in development becoommmercially available, revenues from sales oBisame would likely decrease,
resulting in a reduction of operating income.

Viread Sales. In the future, we also expect to rely on salegiread for a portion of our operating incomenAmber of drugs to treat
HIV infection and AIDS are currently sold or areadvanced stages of clinical development, includingproducts currently sold in the U.S.
Among the companies that are significant competitoithe HIV/AIDS market are GlaxoSmithKline, BostMyers Squibb, Hoffmann-La
Roche, Pfizer, Merck, Boehrin¢-Ingelheim and Abbott Laboratories. Given the broathge of competitors and depth of their resourités



too early to determine if Viread will achieve sificant market penetration, particularly for usdrieatment naive patients given that the data
supporting Viread's U.S. approval is in a treatmexquterienced patient population.

Market Acceptance of Products.The ability of our products to achieve and aumsinarket acceptance will depend on a number of
factors, including: the receipt and scope of regulaapprovals; the availability of public and pate insurance and reimbursement for our
products; the safety, efficacy, tolerability andicof our products; and how our products compaedtopetitive products. If our products do
not achieve and sustain market acceptance, outsedwperations will suffer. Tamiflu is in a neslass of drugs that represent a new
approach to treating and preventing the flu. Ireorfdr Tamiflu to achieve market acceptance, ouketing partner, Roche, must change
attitudes toward the treatment and prevention fidiémza.

Regulatory Process. The U.S. Food and Drug Administration and fgneigencies could reject or limit the commercidioraof our
products for a number of reasons including: if tdesagree with the results or designs of our dihidals; if they believe our products have
unacceptable efficacy, toxicity or tolerability; ibthey believe our products cannot be safely effidiently manufactured on a commercial
basis. If these agencies reject or limit the conumasization of our products, our financial resulteuld be adversely affected. The clinical
trials required for regulatory approval of our puots are extremely expensive, and it is difficolt fis to accurately predict or control the
amount or timing of these expenses from quartgueoter. In addition, regulatory agencies couldinegus to conduct additional
unanticipated clinical trials on our products, tost of which could be substantial.
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Medicaid and other Governmental Reimbursgraad Discount Programs. Our business may be adversely affected by eedse in
pricing pressures, both in the U.S. and abroads& peessures can arise from rules and practiceswofged care groups, judicial decisions
and governmental laws and regulations related tdiddee, Medicaid and health care reform, pharmacaueimbursement and pricing in
general. The U.S. has enacted legislation thatimegjus to pay a set rebate or offer a discounddioproducts that are reimbursed by
Medicaid, purchased as outpatient medicines byiceRublic Health Service entities and certain ftafg or sold to certain other federal
purchasers including the Veterans' Administratlarrecent years, new legislation has been propwstite U.S. at the federal and state levels
that would effect major changes in the health egistem, either nationally or at the state leveksehproposals have included prescription
drug benefit proposals for Medicare beneficiarrgsiduced in Congress. Although there has been.Bofdderal reform legislation, some
states have enacted health care reform legisldfamnher federal and state developments are pesgilthough we cannot predict the exact
nature of legislative health care reforms, the ltesaf our operations would be adversely affecfathtional or state governments require us to
sell our marketed products at lower prices.

Compulsory Licensing and Generic Competitio In a number of developing countries, governnuéfitials and other groups have
suggested that pharmaceutical companies should drags for HIV infection available at a low cost.dome cases, governmental authorities
have indicated that where pharmaceutical compalue®t do so, their patents might not be enforaetbprevent generic competition. Some
major pharmaceutical companies have greatly redpdeds for HIV drugs in certain developing couedilf certain countries do not permit
enforcement of our patents, sales of Viread indtmmintries could be reduced by generic competifdternatively, governments in those
countries could require that we grant compulsargrises to allow competitors to manufacture andfseit own versions of Viread in those
countries, thereby reducing our Viread sales, ocewdd respond to governmental concerns by redymiiegs for Viread. In either case, our
results of operations would be adversely affected.

Collaborations. We depend on collaborations for the developraedtcommercialization of certain products andémenue, includin
the collaboration with Fujisawa for sales of AmBisoin the United States and Canada, the collaloratith Roche for sales of Tamiflu
worldwide, and the collaboration with Cubist foettlinical development of Cidecin. These collabiore could fail for a number of reasons,
including if our partners do not devote sufficieesources to the development, commercializatiananketing of our products, or if disputes
arise with our partners. We will also seek add#iarollaborations. If our collaborations fail onile are unable to establish additional
collaborations, our financial results would be adety affected.

Foreign Currency Fluctuations. A significant majority of our product salesdisnominated in foreign currencies. Increases irvihee
of the U.S. Dollar against these foreign currenaigbe past have reduced, and in the future mayag, our U.S. Dollar return on these sales
and negatively impact our financial condition. We dot in the past hedge our exposure to the impifttictuating foreign exchange rates on
forecasted sales. Effective January 2002, we hagarbto use forward contracts to hedge a percenfapga forecasted international sales,
primarily those denominated in the euro currence. 8 hedge accounts receivable balances denominafi@eign currencies, which
minimizes but does not eliminate our exposure toency fluctuations between the date a sale isrdecband the date that cash is collected.
Additionally, to mitigate the impact of currencytedluctuations on our cash outflows for certairefgn currency-denominated raw materials
purchases, we enter into foreign exchange forwandracts to hedge our foreign currency-denominatsunts payable.

Uncertain Financial Results. We expect that our financial results will coni to fluctuate from quarter to quarter and thiahs
fluctuations may be substantial. The fluctuatioas be caused by
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many factors that are beyond our control, includhgrisk factors listed above. We have never Ipgefitable on a full-year operating basis
and we may never achieve or sustain operatingtphility. As of December 31, 2001, our accumulateficit was $453.7 million.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Gilead's discussion and analysis of itarfirial condition and results of operations are dhag®n its consolidated financial statements,
which have been prepared in accordance with actauptinciples generally accepted in the United&taThe preparation of these financial
statements requires us to make estimates and judgriat affect the reported amounts of assetsilias, revenues and expenses, and
related disclosure of assets and liabilities. Owm@going basis, we evaluate our estimates, inctuthose related to revenue recognition, bad
debts, inventories, accrued clinical and preclindogenses, and contingencies. We base our essiroatristorical experience and on various
other market specific assumptions that are beli¢wdxk reasonable under the circumstances, thiéss@$uvhich form the basis for making
judgments about the carrying values of assetsiahilities that are not readily apparent from otheurces. Actual results may differ frc
these estimates under different assumptions orittomsl

Gilead believes the following critical acexing policies affect its more significant judgnieand estimates used in the preparation of its
consolidated financial statements:

. We record estimated reductions to revenue for drplaeturns of expired products, Medicaid reimborsets and customer
incentives such as cash discounts for prompt payrispected returns for our marketed drugs are rgdigdow because the
shelf life for these products ranges from 24 mofithd/iread up to 36 months for AmBisome in the UfSonditions become
more competitive for any of the markets served loydrugs or if other circumstances change, we rakg &ctions to increase
our product return estimates or we may offer custoimcentives. Each action could result in an im@etal reduction of future
revenue at the time the return estimate is changéttentives are offered.

. We also maintain an allowance for doubtful accofimt®stimated losses resulting from the inabitifyour customers to make
required payments. If the financial condition of customers were to deteriorate, resulting in gmaiiment of their ability to
make payments, additional allowances may be reduire

. We write down our inventory based on quality cohtewiews of our individual raw material batchese \@enerally do not
maintain inventory reserves based on estimatededxsznce or risk of competition primarily because ghelf life of the
products is long. However, if our current assummiiabout future demand and competition were togdhand if actual market
conditions are less favorable than those projedayethanagement, additional inventory write-downs rbayequired.

. We record accruals for estimated clinical and pnéxal study costs. These costs are a significantponent of research and
development expenses. Management accrues costinfoal studies performed by contract researclanizations based on
estimates that 25% to 30% of the work is for upfrowsts with the remaining activity generally osteaight-line basis over the
life of the individual contract or study. This estite may or may not match the actual services pa€go by the organizations
as determined by patient enroliment levels andadlactivities. We monitor patient enroliment lesvahd related activity to the
extent possible, however, if management has uniil@eged activity levels associated with variougigts at a given point in
time, we could record significant research and bigraent expenses in future periods.
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Results of Operations
Revenue

We had total revenue of $233.8 million tlee year 2001, $195.6 million for the year 2000 $069.0 million for the year 1999. Included
in total revenue are net product sales, royaltgrime and contract revenue, including revenue frsaarch and development (R&D)
collaborations.

Net product sales revenue was $191.0 mifiiw 2001, compared with $149.7 million for 200@z5139.9 million for 1999. Our
revenues have been primarily derived from salesnoBisome, which represented 86% of total produlgssa 2001, 94% of total product
sales in 2000 and 92% of total product sales iP1B@ported sales of AmBisome were $164.5 millim@001, an increase of 17% over
AmBisome sales of $141.1 million in 2000. Excludihg impact of the decline in foreign currencidatree to the U.S. dollar in 2001, sales
of AmBisome in 2001 would have increased 20%. Aigigant majority of Gilead's product sales is demated in foreign currencies. We
not in the past hedge our exposure to the impatttctuating foreign exchange rates on forecasédeiss Effective January 2002, we have
begun to use forward contracts to hedge a percemtgur forecasted international sales, primatiyse denominated in the euro currency.
We do hedge accounts receivable balances denomhimafereign currencies, which reduces our exposmu@irrency fluctuations between
date a sale is recorded and the date that casliésted. Sales of AmBisome were $129.2 milliod#99. Excluding the impact of the decline
in foreign currencies relative to the U.S. dolla2000, sales of AmBisome in 2000 would have ireeda®21% versus 1999 reported sé



With the expected increase in competition, we waxpect AmBisome sales for 2002 to remain relafiielt versus 2001 reported levels.
This assumes foreign currency exchange rates remansistent levels throughout 2002 when compr@01.

In 2001, we also recognized $15.6 millionviread sales, representing 8% of total produletss&ales of DaunoXome and Vistide were
$4.1 million and $6.6 million, respectively, in 20an 2000, Gilead recognized product sales reven$d.4 million from sales of
DaunoXome and $4.2 million from sales of Vistide 1999, DaunoXome sales were $4.8 million and Wéstales were $5.9 million. We
expect Viread sales to increase in 2002 and beeogneater percentage of total revenues althougtaweot predict with any certainty what
our actual Viread sales will be in 2002.

We recorded royalty revenue of $23.0 millio 2001, compared with $24.6 million in 2000 &id.4 million in 1999. During this three-
year period, the most significant source of royadtyenue was from sales of AmBisome in the UnitedeS by Fujisawa under a-promotior
arrangement with Gilead. During the fourth quaaet999, we began recognizing royalty revenues fRujisawa's sales of AmBisome in the
month following that in which the related produates occur. Prior to the fourth quarter of 1999 re@gnized this royalty revenue in the
month the sales occurred. Royalty revenue fronmsBuja was $17.1 million in 2001, compared with $18ilion in 2000 and $8.3 million in
1999. The 1999 amount represents royalties froomddths of Fujisawa sales of AmBisome.

We also recorded royalty revenue of $4.Bigniin 2001 and $9.6 million in 2000 related tles of Tamiflu. Tamiflu is an orally
administered compound developed to treat and ptewerh influenza in humans. Gilead co-developedniflu with F. Hoffmann-La
Roche Ltd. and Hoffmann-La Roche Inc. (collectivétpche). Roche owns the worldwide commercial 6gbtTamiflu, and is required to
pay Gilead a royalty on net sales of the producOttober 1999, the FDA approved Tamiflu for theatment of influenza in adults, and
Roche began selling the product commercially. e royalty revenue from Roche in the quarterofelhg the quarter in which the related
Tamiflu sales occur. Accordingly, Gilead began ggiring royalties from Tamiflu in the first quartef 2000. The significant declines in
royalty revenue can be attributed to the signifityalower incidence of flu for the 2000/2001 seasm the resulting product returns to
Roche. We expect Tamiflu royalties to increase sonat in 2002 as a result of broader market penetraburing the second half of 2000,
Tamiflu was approved in the U.S. for the preventioadults and as a treatment for influenza in
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children, and approved in Japan as a treatmemflaenza in adults. As of February 2001, Rochefliad for European regulatory approval
of Tamiflu for the treatment of influenza in aduisd children and prevention in adolescents anttsadtis unclear when and if this approval
will be granted.

Substantially all of the remaining net ribyaevenue recognized in 2001, 2000 and 1999 sgmts royalties from sales of Vistide by
Pharmacia S.A. (Pharmacia) outside the United Statefuture periods, royalties from sales of \dstare expected to be relatively flat or
decline slightly.

In December 1999, the Securities and Exgha@ommission issued Staff Accounting Bulletin 101 (SAB 101)Revenue Recognition
in Financial Statementg&imong other things, SAB 101 describes the SEC 'Stpffsition on the recognition of certain nonrefainlé up-front
fees received in connection with collaboration agrents. We previously recognized nonrefundablenigolgy access fees received in
connection with collaboration agreements as revevhen received or when collectibility was probalaied when the technology had been
transferred. Effective January 1, 2000, we chamygdnethod of accounting for these fees to recagtiiem as the related manufacturing
obligation is fulfilled or on a straight-line bagiser the term of the related research and devedopoollaboration, manufacturing or supply
arrangement, as appropriate, as this method bashesathe effort provided. We believe the changecitounting principle is preferable based
on guidance provided in SAB 101. The cumulativeefbf the change in accounting principle was réedrin the fourth quarter of 2000,
retroactively effective as of January 1, 2000, efeded revenue that will be recognized as conteaanue over the remaining term of the
research and development, manufacturing or suppiyngements, as appropriate. For the year endeenitear 31, 2000, the impact of the
cumulative change in accounting principle was twease the net loss by $13.7 million. We recognadditional contract revenue of
$3.5 million in 2001 and $2.9 million in 2000, in@rdance with SAB 101, related to up front feescivinad been received in prior years.
The $3.5 million recognized in 2001 was relatetinto collaborative relationships: $2.9 million redtto an initial licensing fee from
Sumitomo and $0.6 million related to an initiakise fee from Pharmacia. The $2.9 million recoghire2000 was related to three
collaborative arrangements: $1.6 million from Swmib; $0.6 million from Pharmacia; and $0.7 milli@lated to an initial licensing fee fra
Roche. The remaining $7.3 million of SAB 101 rethtkeferred revenue at December 31, 2001 results e Sumitomo and Pharmacia
collaborations, and is expected to be recognizesbagact revenue over the next eleven years. Tibere remaining deferred revenue related
to the Roche initial license fee as of December28D1.

Total contract revenue was $19.8 millior2@01, compared with $21.3 million in 2000 and $18illion in 1999. The primary source of
contract revenue in 2001 was from our licensinthefSELEX process patent estate to Archemix. Trogided $8.5 million of contract
revenue in 2001. Other sources of contract revén@801 include a $2.0 million milestone paymennfrRoche relating to the development
of Tamiflu under an R&D collaboration agreementeEsn Gilead and Roche and $3.3 million recognipedvbrk associated with marketing
agreements. The single most significant sourcepnfract revenue in 2000 and 1999 was milestone patgrfrom Roche under the R&D
collaboration agreement. We recorded contract reeémm Roche of $11.2 million in 2000 and $14.9ion in 1999. The $11.2 million of
contract revenue from Roche in 2000 included $91Bom in milestone payments related to Roche castiph regulatory filings and approv.
for Tamiflu in the U.S. and Japan, $0.9 millionR&D expense reimbursements, and $0.7 million resyfrom the adoption of SAB 101



discussed above. The 1999 amount included $12IBmdf milestone payments and $2.1 million of R&Embursements. R&D
reimbursements from Roche in 2001 decreased coehpa2000, and reimbursements in 2000 similarlye@sed relative to 1999, as Tam
development efforts ramped down while Roche's corialézation activities increased. As of Decembiy 3001, Gilead is entitled to
additional milestone payments of up to $9.6 milligpon Roche achieving certain developmental andlagary milestones. While we may
earn milestone payments under the Roche agreem2a0R, we expect expense reimbursements und&atiee
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agreement to be minimal in 2002. Such reimbursesnérdny, will approximate our actual related sasicurred.

In October 2001, we entered into an agre¢méh Archemix Corporation relating to our SELEe&chnology. Under this agreement, we
gave Archemix the exclusive rights to the SELEXagass, including therapeutic and other commercipliggtions to the extent not already
licensed under pre-existing agreements. Archemik fgaus $9.0 million in 2001 and is required ty ps $8.5 million in 2002. As required
by our license agreement with the University Tedbgy Corporation, we paid 5% of the $9.0 millionypgent to, and will pay 5% of the
$8.5 million payment to, the University Technola@grporation. We also received a warrant to purcl38&€e000 shares of Archemix comn
stock, the value of which is not material. As regdiby our license agreement with the Universitghfmlogy Corporation, we transferred !
of this warrant to the University Technology Corgtion.

In March 2000, we entered into an agreemétiht EyeTech Pharmaceuticals, Inc. relating tee&dl's proprietary aptamer EYEOQO1,
formerly known as NX 1838. Currently in early ctial trials, EYE0O1 is an inhibitor of vascular etidsial growth factor, or VEGF, which
known to play a role in the development of certgdhthalmic diseases. Under the terms of the agnegBgeTech received worldwide rights
to all therapeutic uses of EYEOO1, and, if the piids successfully commercialized, EyeTech wilf pa royalties on worldwide sales of the
product. EyeTech also will be responsible for eflgarch and development costs. We provided clisigablies of the product to EyeTech
through March 2001. We received a $7.0 million tgnf licensing fee from EyeTech in April 2000, wiilkas been recognized as revenue
ratably over the one-year supply agreement pefAiadordingly, $5.2 million of the license fee waswoeded as contract revenue in 2000, and
the remainder recognized as revenue in the firattquof 2001. We are also entitled to additiorssicpayments from EyeTech of up to
$25.0 million if and when EyeTech reaches certaitt 801 development milestones. Additionally, we reed a warrant to purchase 791,667
shares of EyeTech series B convertible preferrecksexercisable at a price of $6.00 per shareptive at which the stock was issued to ¢
investors.

In November 1999, Gilead and Somalogic, émtered into an agreement under which Gileadjasdito Somalogic a sole and exclusive
license to certain intellectual property, includpatents and patent applications. Under the tefrtteecagreement, Somalogic was required to
pay Gilead a total of $2.5 million in two nonrefuatide installments. The second installment totale@ #illion and was received in
November 2000 and recorded as contract revenue nggeipt. The first installment of $1.5 million weeceived and recognized as cont
revenue in November 1999.

Cost and Expenses

Cost of goods sold was $43.8 million in 20€ompared with $33.5 million in 2000 and $29.%iom in 1999. As a percentage of net
product sales, cost of goods sold was 23% in 2BB% in 2000 and 21% in 1999.

In connection with most of our Europeandurct sales, we price our products in the curreridhi@country into which the products are
sold (Payment Currencies). A significant majorifyoar manufacturing cost is in U.S. Dollars. A deelin the value of the Payment
Currencies relative to the U.S. Dollar will negativimpact gross margins since our manufacturirgiswill remain approximately the same
while our revenues, which are reported in U.S. &sllwill decline. In 2001 and 2000, the gross nmangas negatively impacted by these
factors, as discussed in the product sales segtidar the caption "Revenues" above. Excludingripgaict of foreign exchange rates on
reported sales revenue, cost of sales as a pegeeoitaet product sales would have been approxiyna8 in 2001, consistent with 2000
levels. Our cost of sales percentage on an anmsé has been in the 20% to 23% range in recens.yEacept for the potential impact of
unpredictable
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and uncontrollable changes in Payment Currenclatve to the U.S. Dollar, we expect the cost odg®sold as a percentage of net product
sales in 2002 to remain materially consistent wi#h 2001 rate. In future years, changes in ther@atumix of our product sales, such as the
recent commercial launch of Viread for HIV infeetjccould impact this relationship.

In 2001 and 2000, research and developR&iD) expenses exceeded 50% of our total costeeapdnses. In 1999, R&D expenses
represented approximately 46% of our total costsepenses. The major components of R&D expensesst@f personnel costs, including
salaries and benefits, clinical studies performgddntract research organizations, materials apglss, and overhead allocations consisting
of various support and facilities related costst @gearch and development activities are alsoraeguhinto three main categories: resea



clinical development and pharmaceutical developniResearch costs typically consist of preclinicad toxicology work. Clinical
development costs include Phase |, II, and lllickhtrials as well as expanded access progrananfifteutical development costs consist of
product formulation and chemical analysis. Durif@92, we spent approximately $37.2 million on reska$117.6 million on clinical
development and $30.8 million on pharmaceuticabtipment activities. This compares to spendingd@®@of approximately $27.0 million

on research, $78.9 million on clinical developmamt $26.4 million on pharmaceutical developmenviets. Spending in 1999 consisted of
$27.3 million on research, $59.8 million on clididavelopment and $23.8 million on pharmaceutiealedopment activities.

In total, R&D expenses for 2001 were $188illion, compared with $132.3 million for 2000 agd10.9 million for 1999. The
$53.3 million increase in spending in 2001 verst@®was attributable in part to the recognitiosd®.6 million of a $13.0 million up-front
payment and $5.5 million of clinical milestone pamts to Cubist under the European licensing agreefoeCidecin. In addition, our
expenses associated with the Phase 1l clinicalstand expanded access programs for Viread forikfBttion and the Phase Ill clinical
programs for adefovir dipivoxil for HBV infectiomcreased approximately $18.2 million and $13.3iamllrespectively, during the year.
Based on current budgeted programs, we expect Rgreses in 2002 to be approximately $140 millio8160 million, or 15% to 25%
lower than 2001, reflecting the sale of our oncglagsets to OSI in December 2001 and the decrekesiaty of activity associated with the
U.S. and European expanded access programs fad/ifes a result of this expected decrease, R&Ddipgras a percentage of our total
costs and expenses is expected to be below 50%.

R&D spending levels for 2000 also increageer 1999 levels. Major development projects if®Mhcluded Viread and adefovir
dipivoxil for HBV infection. We incurred increasedsts for both of these programs which were in hidglinical trials. Additionally, we
made up-front payments in the fourth quarter of®@@Pin-license two oncology products from Glaxoi®niKline and Southern Research
Institute, the rights to both of which have beebsaguently assigned to OSI as part of the sal@dcology assets in December 2001.
These increases more than offset significantly foewpenses in 2000 for the development of adeftipivoxil for HIV infection, a program
we discontinued in the fourth quarter of 1999. Aiddially, in 1999, we reduced the R&D workforceBoulder by 30 employees upon
completing the merger with NeXstar.

Recent industry reports indicate that gbaymaceutical product generally takes 10 to 15sym average of 12 years) to research,
develop and bring to market a new prescription wigdiin the U.S. These averages are generally stemsiwith the projects that we develop
internally, although our recent product developntanglines have been on a more accelerated basig. development in the U.S. is a
process that includes several steps defined bifit#e The process begins with the filing of an lalitbrug Application (or IND) which, if
successful, allows opportunity for clinical studytioe potential new medicine. Clinical developmsypically involves three phases of study:
Phase |, Il, and lll, and generally accounts foagearage of seven years of a drug's total developtimee. The most significant costs
associated with clinical development are the Phiasgals as they tend to be the longest and latgtudies conducted during the drug
development process. We currently have products
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in development that are in Phase Il studies. Teassful development of our products is highlyeutain. An estimation of completion da
and R&D expenses can vary significantly for eaaidpct and are difficult to predict. For a more cdetg discussion of the risks and
uncertainties associated with completing develogmesducts, see the "Risk Factors" section of Iteove.

Selling, general and administrative (SG&Xpenses were $125.1 million in 2001, compared $82.0 million in 2000 and
$99.4 million in 1999. The increase in expense&0idl versus 2000 is primarily due to Gilead's iasegl global marketing efforts and the
expansion of our sales force to support the comialdezinch of Viread for HIV infection. In 2002, vexpect SG&A expenses to be
approximately $180 million to $190 million, or 458 55% higher than 2001 levels, primarily due te ifhicrease in marketing activities
associated with the launch of Viread in the U.2l Baropean Union, but also our preparation forctiamercial launch of adefovir dipivoxil
for HBV infection.

The major factor contributing to the desea 2000 SG&A expenses from 1999 levels wasrtbleision of $18.3 million of merger-
related expenses in 1999. These merger-relatechsgpgrimarily consisted of transaction costsuiticlg professional fees, filing fees and
printing costs; employee severance costs; and tite-down of certain NeXstar property and equipntbat was not expected to be used in
future operations. Total employee severance cd#5.8 million relate to the termination of 70 emyptes, the majority of which were from
our Boulder, Colorado facility. Excluding mergempexses, SG&A expenses in 2000 were essentiallgdtapared with 1999. Higher general
and administrative (G&A) expenses in 2000 wereeiffs/ savings in sales and marketing expensesintheased G&A spending in 2000
included costs to implement new and upgraded indbion technology systems and legal costs incurrennection with new collaboration
agreements and various corporate projects. Satemarketing expenses in 2000 reflect cost savimdisé U.S. from the elimination in the
second half of 1999 of duplicate positions and fioms within the combined Gilead and NeXstar orgation. Sales and marketing expenses
in 1999 included costs to expand our sales andetiagkcapacity in anticipation of the then-planiedchmercial launch of adefovir dipivoxil
for HIV infection, which was discontinued in theufth quarter of 1999.

Litigation Settlement and Related Exper

We incurred litigation settlement and rethexpenses of $1.3 million in 2001, $1.4 milliar2D00 and $1.5 million 1999. In 1997 we
reached a settlement with Elan Corporation, plarfEthe successor company to The Liposome Compamyich both companies agreed



dismiss all legal proceedings involving AmBisoméde@&d's liposomal formulation of amphotericin B.dém the terms of the settlement
agreement, we made an initial payment to Elan & $iillion and are required to make additional papts through 2006, based on
AmBisome sales. The payments are subject to cartaimum and maximum amounts. A $10.0 million acuing charge was recorded in
1997 representing the net present value of alféuttinimum payments we are required to make. Werdeagn expense each quarter based on
the difference between all future minimum paymemtd the amount previously accrued. These amountstiia been significant. We do not
expect the difference between the future minimuchrmaximum payments to Elan to be material.

Gain on Sale of Oncology Assets

In December 2001, we completed the satmiobncology assets, pipeline of clinical stageodmgy products and related intellectual
property, as well as our Boulder, Colorado operegjoncluding clinical research and drug developnpensonnel, infrastructure and faciliti
to OSI. The pipeline of clinical candidates incladéX 211 (liposomal lurtotecan), GS 7836 (a nud®snalogue) and GS 7904L (a
liposomal thymidylate synthase inhibitor). On thesing date, we received $130.0 million in cash @81 common stock valued at
approximately $38.8 million. The Company recordetba-operating gain of $157.8 million in the fougtharter of 2001 as a result of this
transaction. In addition, we recorded income ta{e®3.3 million in connection with this transaction
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Gain on Sale of Unconsolidated Affiliate

In August 2001, we also sold our 49 perdaeterest in Proligo L.L.C. (Proligo) to Degussar@aration for $14.3 million in cash. Proligo
was a joint venture between Gilead and SKW Ameritras focused on the manufacturing of oligonudbed. SKW Americas, a subsidiary
of Degussa Corporation, held the remaining 51 pereeProligo. The proceeds, net of Gilead's invesit in Proligo, are reflected as an
$8.8 million gain on the sale of unconsolidatediafe.

Interest Income and Interest Expel

We recorded interest income of $25.6 millio 2001, compared with $17.6 million in 2000 &id.4 million in 1999. The increase in
2001 over 2000 was due to higher average balariéeseasted funds. In December 2000, we receivedapmately $241.8 million from the
issuance of convertible subordinated notes, ndebf issuance costs. The increase in 2000 overW88%lue to higher interest rates on our
investment portfolio. We expect interest incom@@02 to be materially consistent with 2001 leveals tb the receipt of $130 million in cash
from the sale of our oncology assets in Decemb@i 26ffset by lower interest rates on our portfafdixed income securities.

We incurred interest expense of $14.0 aorilin 2001, compared with $4.4 million in 2000 &&5 million in 1999. The significant
increase in 2001 over 2000 is due to the full y#anterest on our $250.0 million 5% convertibldetdinated notes. Interest expense for :
consisted primarily of interest on the $79.5 miili6.25% convertible notes, which were convertecbtmmon stock in August 2000. The
decrease in 2000 from 1999 levels occurred primmaglcause of the August 2000 debt conversion.dataxxpense for 1999 included a full
year of interest on the $79.5 million 6.25% condetnotes. We expect interest expense in 2002rt@m consistent with 2001 expel
levels as we again incur a full year of expenséher$5250.0 million 5% convertible subordinated sote

Income Taxe

Our provision for income taxes was $4.1lionl $1.2 million and $0.9 million in 2001, 200061999, respectively. In all periods, we
recorded income tax expense associated with indmneour foreign subsidiaries. The significant i&@se in income tax expense in 2001
resulted principally from the gain on the sale of oncology assets to OSlI, for which we recordgut@gmately $3.3 million of federal and
state alternative minimum taxes.

Equity in Loss of Unconsolidated Affilic

In 2001, we recorded $2.1 million as ouniggin the loss of our unconsolidated affiliatepRyo, prior to the date of the sale of our
49 percent interest. In 2000, we recorded $2.9anikhs our equity in the loss of Proligo. This egemted our 49 percent share of Proligo's
loss for the thirteen-month period ended DecemitePB00. During the fourth quarter of 2000, Prolapanged its fiscal year-end to
December 31 from November 30. For 1999, we recosded million equity in the loss of Proligo for fiscal year ended November 30, 19

Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle

In the year ended December 31, 2001, Gielgbted SFAS 132\ccounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedgirgivities, which
resulted in a cumulative effect of change in actiogrprinciple of $1.1 million. In the year ende@&mber 31, 2000, Gilead adopted the
Securities and Exchange Commission's Staff Accagriulletin No. 101Revenue Recognition in Financial Statememésulting in a
cumulative effect of change in accounting principi€$13.7) million. See Notes 2 and 3 to the ctidated financial statements for further
discussion
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash, cash equivalents and marketable iesuntaled $582.9 million at December 31, 2004 from $512.9 million at December 31,
2000. The increase of $70.0 million was primariedo the $130.0 million cash and $38.8 milliofG81 common stock received as part of
the sale of our oncology assets to OSI in Decergb@t. Other major sources and uses of cash inclpeEeds from issuances of stock
under employee stock plans of $36.3 million anccpeals of $14.3 million from the sale of our intéiesProligo, offset by capital
expenditures of $26.3 million and cash used to fomdoperating activities.

Our accounts receivable balance at DeceBibhe2001 was $74.2 million compared to $48.8 orillat December 31, 2000. The growth
was primarily due to the year-over-year increaseeiproduct sales for AmBisome and also the instides of Viread in the U.S. In certain
countries where payments are typically slow, primdreece, Spain, Portugal and Italy, our accouetgivable balances are significant. In
most cases, these slow payment practices refleqiabe at which governmental entities reimbursecostomers. This, in turn, may increase
the financial risk related to certain of our custsm Sales to customers in countries that tene telatively slow paying have in the past
increased, and in the future may further incretieeaverage length of time that accounts receivat@deutstanding. At December 31, 2001,
our past due accounts receivable for Greece, Spamgal and Italy totaled approximately $28.7lionil, of which approximately
$9.9 million was more than 120 days past due. Atdbber 31, 2000, past due receivables for thesetrees were $19.3 million, of which
approximately $10.9 million was more than 120 dagst due. To date, we have experienced only méokessts with respect to the collection
of our accounts receivable and believe that all gas accounts receivable, including those due tastomers in these four countries, are
collectible. We continually seek to improve ourleotion processes to ensure that we fully coll@sbants due to us based on our product
sales and that collections are timely.

Significant changes in working capital aigri2001 included an $18.7 million increase in irteepn In addition, accounts payable
increased $8.5 million as a result of an increaseur raw material purchases and the increasedfusetract manufacturers. Substantially all
of this growth in inventory and accounts payablimisupport of the recent U.S. and European lawfisfiread. Other changes in working
capital include an increase in accrued liabilit€$11.5 million. Accrued clinical and preclinicakpenses increased by $6.0 million, prime
due to the advanced and accelerated Phase litaliials for adefovir dipivoxil for HBV infectionAccrued compensation has also increased
from $10.0 million at December 31, 2000 to $14.1iam at December 31, 2001, principally due to éxpansion of our sales force in support
of the Viread launch. Other accrued liabilitiesreesed $5.5 million in 2001, consisting principaifytransaction costs and income taxes
payable arising from the sale of our oncology &sseOSI.

Other noncurrent assets decreased $4.@mit $24.2 million at December 31, 2001 from #2&iillion at December 31, 2000. The
decrease was due to the sale of our 49 percen¢stti@ Proligo. Our investment in Proligo at Debem31, 2000 was approximately
$6.9 million and approximately $4.8 million as bétdate of the sale. The decrease was partiabgiffy increases resulting from the
$2.4 million unrecognized portion of the $13.0 ioifl license fee payment to Cubist and the $1.lioniNValuation of a warrant to purchase
stock in EyeTech recognized in accordance with SEBS The $2.4 million balance resulting from thebt payment is included in other
noncurrent assets at December 31, 2001 becays®iffo January 2002, Gilead terminated its rigirider the agreement with respect to a
preclinical oral formulation of daptomycin beingvééoped by Cubist, or if Cubist discontinued depehent of that oral formulation, Gilead
would have been entitled to receive a refund of #mount from Cubist.

We made capital expenditures of $26.3 oiilin 2001, $15.6 million in 2000 and $12.5 million1999. These expenditures were
primarily for facilities improvements to accommoelaur growth, as
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well as for laboratory and manufacturing equipm@itthe $26.3 million spent in 2001, approximat®0fs to 60% was research and
development related. We expect our capital spending002 to decrease somewhat compared with 280844, however the percentage
allocated for research and development should repisistent with the previous year.

In August 2000, we redeemed our 6.25% cudifle subordinated debentures at a cash pricd @3B per $1,000 principal amount of
debentures outstanding, plus accrued interest,hwhis the redemption price provided for in the inafjdebenture indenture. Upon
redemption, the entire $79.5 million in principah@unt of the debentures outstanding at that time aeaverted into 7,135,156 newly issued
shares of Gilead common stock by August 15, 20@0eiDed debt issuance costs of $1.6 million rel&tettie debentures were charged to
additional paid in capital in connection with theneersion of the debentures into common stock.

On December 13, 2000, we issued $250.0omitf 5% convertible subordinated notes due Deeertib, 2007 in a private offering. The
notes are currently convertible into a total oftad 0,178,116 shares of Gilead common stock at5624. per share. The $24.5625 conversion
price was higher than our common stock price ahtites' issuance date. The notes are redeemabtele or in part, at our option, at any
time on or after December 20, 2003, at specifiel@mgption prices plus accrued interest. Debt issiansts of $8.2 million incurred



connection with the issuance of the notes wererdetbas other noncurrent assets, and are beindiaebto interest expense on a straight-
line basis over the contractual term of the notes.

Through April 2001, we maintained a $10i0iom unsecured line of credit that bears intewrgsa floating rate with a major financial
institution. Under the terms of the line of creeit were required to maintain certain financialostind there were limitations on our ability
to incur additional debt or to engage in certagngicant transactions. The line of credit, whideluded a foreign exchange facility, expire:
April 2001. We renewed the foreign exchange factlirough April 2002, but did not renew the linecoédit. There are no required financial
ratios or limitations on debt or other transactiander the foreign exchange facility.

We do not have any "special purpose" @tithat are unconsolidated in our financial statémé&Ve are also not involved in any non-
exchange traded commodity contracts accounted fairazalue. We have no commercial commitmentdhwétlated parties, except for
employee loans. We have contractual obligatiorthérform of a litigation settlement, capital anceriing leases, notes payable and clinical
research organization contracts.

We believe that our existing capital resest which includes all fixed income and equityusiies, supplemented by net product sales
and contract and royalty revenues, will be adeqtmsatisfy our capital needs for the foreseealtieré. Our future capital requirements will
depend on many factors, including:

. the commercial performance of AmBisome, Viread ang of our products in development that receiveketaing approval,
. the progress of our research and development gffort
. the scope and results of preclinical studies aimical trials,
. the cost, timing and outcome of regulatory reviews,
. the rate of technological advances,
. determinations as to the commercial potential efpyaducts under development,
. administrative expenses,
. the status of competitive products,
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. the establishment of manufacturing capacity odtpiarty manufacturing arrangements,
. the expansion of sales and marketing capabilities,
. our possible geographic expansion, and
. the establishment of additional collaborative ietaghips with other companies.

We may in the future require additionalding, which could be in the form of proceeds froquiéy or debt financings or additional
collaborative agreements with corporate partnésuidh funding is required, we cannot assure yatiitiwill be available on favorable terms,
if at all.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In July 2001, the Financial Accounting Stards Board (FASB) issued Statements of Finanaiabénting Standards No. 14usiness
CombinationgSFAS 141), and No. 14500dwill and Other Intangible AssgSFAS 142). SFAS 141 eliminates the pooling-offiests
method of accounting for business combinations gixime qualifying business combinations that werigiated prior to July 1, 2001.

SFAS 141 further clarifies the criteria to recogniatangible assets separately from goodwill. Tdguirements of SFAS 141 are effective for
any business combination accounted for by the @seimethod that is completed after June 30, 200detJSFAS 142, goodwill and
indefinite lived intangible assets are no longepeied but are reviewed annually (or more freglyeihimpairment indicators arise) for
impairment. Separable intangible assets that arde®mmed to have an indefinite life will contineebie amortized over their useful lives (but
with no maximum life). The amortization provisiooSSFAS 142 apply to goodwill and intangible assetguired after June 30, 2001. As we
have not accounted for any business combinatiodsruhe purchase method of accounting, the adopfi@FAS 141 on July 1, 2001 did not
have a material impact on the Company's finan@altfpn or results of operations and the adoptio8FAS 142 on January 1, 2002 will not
have a material impact on the Company's finan@altfn or results of operations.

In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS ‘Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of L-Lived Asset. SFAS 144 establishes



single accounting model for assets to be dispobeg sale whether previously held and used or neslyuired. SFAS 144 retains the
presentation of discontinued operations in thenmegtatement, but broadens the presentation tode@ component of an entity. SFAS 144
is effective for fiscal years beginning after Ded®m15, 2001 and the interim periods within. Thegbn of SFAS 144 on January 1, 2002
will not have a material impact on the Companyiaificial position or results of operations.

Market Risk Disclosures
Foreign Currency Exchange Ri

Our operations include manufacturing arldssactivities in the United States as well asssafgivities in Europe and Australia. As a
result, our financial results could be significgraffected by factors such as changes in foreigrenay exchange rates or weak economic
conditions in the foreign markets in which we dsite our products. Our operating results are ex¢pds changes in exchange rates between
the U.S. Dollar and various foreign currencies, st significant of which are the Euro, the BhitRound and the Australian Dollar. When
the U.S. Dollar strengthens against these currenttie relative value of sales made in the respeftireign currency decreases. Conversely,
when the U.S. Dollar weakens, the relative amoahssich sales increase. Overall, we are a netwexcef foreign currencies and, therefore,
benefit from a weaker U.S. Dollar and are adveraéigcted by a stronger U.S. Dollar relative tosthdoreign currencies in which we transact
significant amounts of business.
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To mitigate the impact of changes in cucseexchange rates on cash flows from our foreigneticy sales transactions, we enter into
foreign exchange forward contracts to hedge owidor currency-denominated accounts receivable. thatdilly, to mitigate the impact of
currency rate fluctuations on our cash outflowsdentain foreign currency-denominated raw matepalshases, we enter into foreign
exchange forward contracts to hedge our foreigreoat/-denominated accounts payable.

The following table summarizes the noticaalounts, average currency exchange rates anebafais of our open foreign exchange
forward contracts at December 31, 2001. The cotsttzave maturities of one year or less with oneption. One hedge contract intended to
hedge raw materials purchases in the first quaftef03, with a notional amount of $3.7 million aaadl insignificant fair value at
December 31, 2001, has a maturity of 13 monthsrageerates are stated in terms of the amount efgorcurrency per U.S. Dollar. Fair
values represent estimated settlement amountscanii®er 31, 2001 (notional amounts and fair valoe&.S. thousands):

Fair Value

Currency Notional Amount Average Rate December 31, 2001

Australian Dollar $ 1,26( 1972¢ % (6)
British Pounc 7,54¢ 0.691¢ (38)
Danish Krone 46 8.484+ Q)
Euro 63,18’ 1.133¢ (875)
Norwegian Krone 15C 9.110¢ (©)
Swiss Franc 122 1.691( (2

A significant majority of our product salissdenominated in foreign currencies. Increasdbenvalue of the U.S. Dollar against these
foreign currencies in the past have reduced, atlgeifiuture may reduce, our U.S. Dollar returntoese sales and negatively impact our
financial condition. We did not in the past hedge exposure to the impact of fluctuating foreigrlgange rates on forecasted sales. Effective
January 2002, we have begun to use forward costtadtedge a percentage of our forecasted interratsales, primarily those denominated
in the euro currency.

Interest Rate Ris

Our portfolio of available-for-sale investnt securities and our fixed-rate liabilities ceeah exposure to interest rate risk. With respect
to the investment portfolio, we adhere to an invesit policy that requires us to limit amounts irtedsn securities based on maturity,
industry group, investment type and issuer, extmpdecurities issued by the U.S. government. Tdesgof our investment policy, in order of
priority, are as follows:

1. Safety and preservation of principal and diveratiien of risk;
2. Liquidity of investments sufficient to meet casbvil requirements; and
3. Competitive after-tax rate of return.
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The following table summarizes the expectedurities and average interest rates of ourestdoearing assets and fixeate liabilities a
December 31, 2001 (dollars in thousands).

Years ending December 31,
Fair Value

December 31,

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 Thereafter Total 2001
Assets
Available-for-sale securitie $ 282,94 $ 142,67¢ $ 73,751 — — — $ 499,37 $ 499,37
Average interest rate 4.9(% 5.8(% 4.9%%
Liabilities
Minimum litigation settlement, including curre
portion $ 1,281 $ 1,39¢ $ 151¢ $ 1,64¢ $ 43t — 3 6,27 $ 6,27¢
Discount rate 8.5(% 8.5(% 8.5(% 8.5(% 8.5(%
Long-term obligations, including current portir
1) $ 11,96 $ 10,35 $ 7,092 $ 7,27¢ $ 4,14: $ 1,28¢ $ 42,11: $ 42,11t
Average interest rate 8.7(% 15.2(% 21.0% 21.0(% 21.0(% 21.0(%
Convertible subordinated debentu — — — — — $ 250,000 $ 250,000 $ 382,81:
Interest rate 5.0(%
1) Long-term obligations consist of capital lease®rafing leases (net of noncancelable subleasegjebitsecured by property, plant and equipment.ifiteeest portion of

payments due is included.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES A BOUT MARKET RISK

Quantitative and qualitative disclosurewhnarket risk is included under the caption "MarRésk Disclosures" in Item 7.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The financial statements required by ttamiare set forth beginning at page 64 of thismepo

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTAN TS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
Not applicable.
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PART IlI
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE RE GISTRANT

The information required by this Item comireg our directors and executive officers is inmated by reference to the sections of our
Definitive Proxy Statement filed with the SEC puastito Regulation 14A in connection with the 200#Aal Meeting (the Proxy Statement)
under the headings "Nominees", "Executive Officenstd "Compliance with Section 16(a) of the Secesittxchange Act of 1934."

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this Item isanporated by reference to the sections of oury8iatement under the headings "Executive
Compensation" and "Compensation Committee Report."

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL O WNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The information required by this Item isanporated by reference to the section of our P@tagement under the heading "Security
Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Managsth



ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS

The information required by this Item isanporated by reference to the sections of ourP8&iatement under the headings
"Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insideri€igetion,” "Certain Transactions" and "Executiven@pensation."”
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PART IV
ITEM 14. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES AN D REPORTS ON FORM 8-K

(@) The following documents are filed as part of thisri 10-K:

@ Schedule Il is included on page 104 of this repslttother schedules are omitted because they atreegjuired or the required
information is included in the financial statemeoitsiotes thereto.

(2)  Exhibits

The following exhibits are filed herewithiacorporated by reference:

Exhibit Exhibit
Footnote Number Description of Document
(22) 2.1 Asset Purchase Agreement between Registrant an®kxBiaceuticals, Inc. dated as of November 261.;
(21) 3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporatiothe Registrant, as amend:
(2) 3.2 Bylaws of the Registrant, as amended and restatadhvB0, 199¢
4.1 Reference is made to Exhibit 3.1 and Exhibit
4) 4.2 Amended and Restated Rights Agreement dated astob& 21, 1999 between the Registrant and
ChaseMellon Shareholder Services, LI
(20) 4.2 Agreement and Plan of Merger dated February 289 b§%nd among Registrant, Gazelle Acquisition Sub,
Inc. and NeXstar Pharmaceuticals, |
(20) 4.4 Indenture dated as of December 18, 2000 betweeRdbestrant and Chase Manhattan Bank and Trust
Company, National Association, including thereia forms of the note:
(20) 4.5 Registration Rights Agreement dated as of Decerh®eP000 between the Registrant and J.P. Morgan
Securities Inc., Chase Securities Inc., Lehmant&nstinc. and Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorpora
(5) 10.1 Form of Indemnity Agreement entered into betweenRlegistrant and its directors and executive affic
(5) 10.z Form of Employee Proprietary Information and InvemtAgreement entered into between Registrant and
certain of its officers and key employe
(5) 10.Z Registrant's 1987 Incentive Stock Option Plan afated agreement
(5) 10.4 Registrant's 1987 Supplemental Stock Option Plahralated agreemen:
(29) 10.5 Registrant's Employee Stock Purchase Plan, as adévidrch 30, 199¢
(21) 10.€ Registrant's 1991 Stock Option Plan, as amendedesmtated April 5, 200(
(5) 10.7 Form of Nor-Qualified Stock Option issued to certain executffecers and directors in 199
(6) 10.¢ Vintage Park Research and Development Net Leasmthpetween Registrant and Vintage Park Associates
dated March 27, 1992 for premises located at 384B,and 353 Lakeside Drive, Foster City, Califonwith
related addendum, exhibits and amendm
%) 10.€ Letter Agreement, dated as of September 23, 198tele@ Registrant and IOCB/REGA, with exhibits with
certain confidential information omitte
(6) 10.1C Vintage Park Research and Development Net Leasathypetween Registrant and Vintage Park Associates
dated September 16, 1993 for premises locatedsat 8eside Drive, Foster City, California with rede
exhibits.
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(7 10.11 Amendment Agreement, dated October 25, 1993 betRegistrant and IOCB/REGA, and related license
agreements and exhibits with certain confidentitdrimation omitted
(21) 10.12 Amendment Agreement, dated December 27, 2000 batRegistrant and IOCB/REG;
(2) 10.1: Loan Agreement, dated as of October 1, 1994 amauisRant and Mark L. Perry and Melanie Pfia.
(18) 10.1¢ Registrant's 1995 Non-Employee Directors' StockidppPlan, as amended January 26, 1999, and redtatad

of stock option gran



(8) 10.1¢ Vintage Park Research and Development Lease bpemeen Registrant and WCB Sixteen Limited
Partnership dated June 24, 1996 for premises lbedt833 Lakeside Drive, Foster City, Califorr
(8) 10.1¢ Amendment No. 1 to Vintage Park Research and Dpuetnt Lease by and between Registrant and WCB
Seventeen Limited Partnership dated June 24, 1@9@rémises located at 335 Lakeside Drive, Fostigr C
California.
(8) 10.17 Amendment No. 2 to Vintage Park Research and Dpuetnt Lease by and between Registrant and WCB
Seventeen Limited Partnership dated June 24, 1@9@&rémises located at 344B, 346 and 353 LakesideD
Foster City, California
9) 10.1¢ License and Supply Agreement between RegistranPaiadmacia & Upjohn S.A. dated August 7, 1996 with
certain confidential information omitte
9) 10.1¢ Development and License Agreement between RegistrahF. Hoffmann-La Roche Ltd. and Hoffmann-La
Roche Inc. dated September 27, 1996 with certaificential information omittec
(19) 10.2C Amendment No. 3 to Vintage Park Research and Dpustnt Lease by and between Registrant and Spieker
Properties, L.P. dated August 14, 1998 for premizested at 355 Lakeside Drive, Foster City, Califa.
) 10.21 NeXstar Pharmaceuticals, Inc.'s 1993 Incentive KSRian, adopted February 8, 1993, as amer
(13) 10.22 NeXstar Pharmaceuticals, Inc.'s 1995 Director @pRtan, adopted July 25, 19¢
(14) 10.2: Vestar, Inc. 1988 Stock Option Plz
(14) 10.2¢ Lease, dated March 26, 1987, between Vestar, httMajestic Realty Co. and Patrician Associates, amd
Amendment No. 1 thereto and Amendment No. 2 thedetted as of June 8, 19¢
(12) 10.2¢  Third Amendment, dated January 11, 1996, betwegpstla Realty Co. and Patrician Associates, Ind. the
Registrant, to Lease, dated March 26, 1987, betWesiar, Inc. and Majestic Realty Co. and Patrician
Associates, Inc
(15) 10.2¢ Assignment and Royalty Agreement, dated Decembet 290, effective as of June 2, 1989, between Vesta
Inc. and City of Hope National MedicalCent
(12) 10.27 License Agreement, effective as of August 12, 18@8ween Vestar, Inc. and The Regents of the Usityeof
California.
(14) 10.2¢ Agreement by and between Fujisawa USA, Inc. andarebic., dated August 9, 1991, and AmendmentINo.
thereto, dated as of May 17, 19!
(13) 10.2¢ Amendment No. 2 to agreement between Fujisawa WAand Vestar, Inc., dated as of April 3, 1995,
between Fujisawa USA, Inc. and Vestar, Inc. wittiaia confidential information omitte:
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(12) 10.3C Amendment No. 3 to Agreement between Fujisawa UB&,and the Registrant, dated March 4, 1996, ¢o th
Agreement by and between Fujisawa USA, Inc. andarebc., dated August 9, 19¢
(14) 10.31 Lease, dated April 13, 1992, between Vestar, Ind.Majestic Realty Co. and Patrician Associates,
(12) 10.32 First Amendment to Lease, dated April 10, 1993wken Majestic Realty Co. and Patrician Associdtes,
and Vestar, Inc. amending Lease, dated April 19218etween Majestic Realty Co. and Patrician Aistes,
Inc. and Vestar, Inc
(11) 10.3% License and Distribution Agreement, dated Septer@be997, by and between Sumitomo Pharmaceuticals
Co., Ltd. and NeXstar Pharmaceuticals, Inc. withaie confidential information omitte:
(16) 10.3¢ Settlement Agreement, dated August 11, 1997, byaamahg NeXstar Pharmaceuticals, Inc., FujisawaAJ,S.
Inc. and The Liposome Company, Inc. with certainfitential information omittec
an 10.3¢  Amendment, dated April 30, 1998, between Sumitoinar@aceuticals Co., Ltd. and NeXstar Pharmacesi
Inc. to the License and Distribution Agreementeda®eptember 26, 1996, between Sumitomo and NeXstar
Pharmaceuticals, In
10.3¢ The Corporate Plan for Retirement Select —Basic Plan Documen
10.37 The Corporate Plan for Retirement Select —Adoption Agreement
10.3¢ Addendum to the Gilead Sciences, Inc. Deferred Gorsation Plar
21.1 Subsidiaries of the Registra
23.1 Consent of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent Auditt
23.2 Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Indeperfigditors.
24.1 Power of Attorney. Reference is made to Signataget

1)

()

(3)

(4)

Filed as an exhibit to Registrant's Annual ReparForm 10K/A for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1998l ianorporated here

by reference.

Filed as an exhibit to Registrant's Quarterly ReparForm 10-Q for the quarter ended December 834 ,1and incorporated herein by

reference.

Filed as an exhibit to NeXstar Pharmaceuticals,dr@@uarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quartetesl June 30, 1997, and
incorporated herein by reference.

Filed as an exhibit to Registrant's Current ReporForm 8-K filed on October 22, 1999, and incogbed herein by reference.



(5) Filed as an exhibit to Registrant's Registraticate@hent on Form-1 (No. 3:-55680), as amended, and incorporated here
reference.

(6) Filed as an exhibit to Registrant's Quarterly ReparForm 10Q for the quarter ended September 30, 1993, amdgdncated herein k
reference.

@) Filed as an exhibit to Registrant's Annual ReparForm 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31,4,%hd incorporated herein by
reference.

(8) Filed as an exhibit to Registrant's Quarterly ReparForm 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 188é,incorporated herein by
reference.

9) Filed as an exhibit to Registrant's Quarterly ReparForm 10Q for the quarter ended September 30, 1996, amdgdncated herein k
reference.
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(10) Filed as an exhibit to Registrant's Current ReporForm 8-K filed on March 9, 1999, and incorpodaiterein by reference.

(11) Filed as an exhibit to NeXstar Pharmaceuticals,dreorm 10-K for the fiscal year ended Decemberl®96, and incorporated herein
by reference.

(12) Filed as an exhibit to NeXstar Pharmaceuticals,drieorm 10-K for the fiscal year ended Decemberd395, and incorporated herein
by reference.

(13) Filed as an exhibit to NeXstar Pharmaceuticals,dreorm 10-Q for the quarterly period ended Seper80, 1995, and incorporated
herein by reference.

(14) Filed as an exhibit to NeXstar Pharmaceuticals,dreorm 10-K for the fiscal year ended Decemberl®94, and incorporated herein
by reference.

(15) Filed on March 22, 1991 as an exhibit to NeXstaarRtaceuticals, Inc.'s Registration Statement omF&#2 (File No. 33-39549), and
incorporated herein by reference.

(16) Filed as an exhibit to NeXstar Pharmaceuticals,drtorm 10-Q for the quarterly period ended Sepe80, 1997, and incorporated
herein by reference.

(17) Filed as an exhibit to NeXstar Pharmaceuticals,drieorm 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 18388 jncorporated herein by
reference.

(18) Filed as an exhibit to Registrant's Form 10-K/Atlee year ended December 31, 1998, and incorpohatesin by reference.

(19) Filed as an exhibit to Registrant's Form 10-K far year ended December 31, 1998, and incorporateihhby reference.

(20) Filed as an exhibit to Registrant's Registraticate3hent on Form S-3 (No. 333-54350), as amendednaorporated herein by
reference.

(21) Filed as an exhibit to Registrant's Form 10-K far year ended December 31, 2000, and incorporateihhby reference.

(22) Filed as an exhibit to Registrant's Current ReporForm 8-K filed on January 4, 2002, and incorfetderein by reference.

(b) Reports on Form 8-K

The Registrant did not file any reportsFammm 8-K during the fourth quarter of 2001. On Jayw, 2002, the Registrant filed a Current

Report on Form 8-K relating to the completion af gale of its oncology assets, pipeline of clingtage oncology products and related
intellectual property, as well as its Boulder, Gafio operations, including clinical research andydievelopment personnel, infrastructure
and facilities, to OSI Pharmaceuticals, Inc. Thent8-K includes an unaudited pro forma condensedaidated balance sheet as of
September 30, 2001 presented as if the transawdidroccurred as of that date and unaudited prod@endensed consolidated statements of
operations for the year ended December 31, 200@hendine months ended September 30, 2001, presastiéthe transaction had occurred
January 1, 2000 and January 1, 2001, respectively.
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REPORT OF ERNST & YOUNG LLP, INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Gilead Sciences, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of Gilead Sciences, Inc. and subsidiasie$ December 31, 2001 and 2000,
and the related consolidated statements of opestgtockholders' equity, and cash flows for eddhethree years in the period ended
December 31, 2001. Our audits also included thenfifal statement schedule listed in Item 14(ahisf Annual Report on Form 10-K. These
financial statements and schedule are the resplitysitd the management of Gilead Sciences, Incr @gponsibility is to express an opinion
on these financial statements and schedule basedraudits. We did not audit the financial statataef Proligo L.L.C., a limited liability
company, the investment in which is reflected m élccompanying consolidated financial statementguke equity method of accounting.
The investment in Proligo L.L.C. represents 1.0%arisolidated total assets at December 31, 20@0thenCompany's equity in the net loss
of Proligo L.L.C. is $2,858,000 and $4,656,000 @9@ and 1999, respectively. The 2000 and 1999 ¢ishstatements of Proligo L.L.C. have
been audited by other auditors whose report has faerished to us; insofar as our opinion on the®and 1999 consolidated financial
statements relates to data included for Proligo.Lit is based solely on their report.

We conducted our audits in accordance with audi&tagdards generally accepted in the United Statesse standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assarabeut whether the financial statements are fregaterial misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence stipgdhe amounts and disclosures in the finarsteements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and &ignifestimates made by management, as well asatirgj the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits and thertef other auditors provide a reasonable basisdir opinion.

In our opinion, based on our audits and the repioother auditors, the consolidated financial steets referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the consolidated financial posibf Gilead Sciences, Inc. and subsidiaries ateb#er 31, 2001 and 2000, and the
consolidated results of their operations and tb&sh flows for each of the three years in the pegicded December 31, 2001, in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted m thmited States. Also in our opinion, the finansi@tement schedule referred to above,
when considered in relation to the basic finansiatements taken as a whole, presents fairly) imatierial respects, the information set forth
therein.

As discussed in Notes 2 and 3 to the consolidatedh€ial statements, effective January 1, 2001Cim@pany changed its method of
accounting for derivative instruments and hedgictivaies, and, effective January 1, 2000, chanigechethod of accounting for non-
refundable up-front fees received in connectiomwitllaboration agreements.

ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Palo Alto, California

January 25, 2002, except as to the
paragraph titled "Stock Split" of Note 1,
as to which the date is March 8, 2002
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

To the Board of Directors and
Members of Proligo LLC:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated badasheets and the related consolidated statemieopei@tions, of members' equity and of
cash flows present fairly, in all material respetite financial position of Proligo LLC and its sidiaries at December 31, 2000 and
November 30, 1999 and 1998, and the results of tpeirations and their cash flows for the thir-months ended December 31, 2000, the
year ended November 30, 1999, and the period Audyst998 to November 30, 1998, respectively, imf@onity with accounting principle
generally accepted in the United States of Amefitese financial statements are the responsilofithe Company's management; our
responsibility is to express an opinion on thesarftial statements based on our audits. We cordiocteaudits of these statements in
accordance with auditing standards generally aedeptthe United States of America, which requira tve plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether thecfalatatements are free of material misstatenfemaudit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and diselssn the financial statements, assessing theuatiog principles used and significant
estimates made by management, and evaluating #ralbfinancial statement presentation. We beligng our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Broomfield, Colorado
January 12, 2001
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GILEAD SCIENCES, INC.
Consolidated Balance Sheets

(in thousands, except per share amounts)

December 31,

2001 2000
Assets
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivalel $ 162,33¢ $ 197,29:
Marketable securitie 420,51 315,58t
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doub#fttounts of $2,579 in 2001 and $2,300 in
2000 74,22¢ 48,81«
Inventories 39,28( 20,56:
Prepaid expenses and ot 11,40( 11,54«
Total current asse 707,75¢ 593,79¢
Property, plant and equipment, | 62,82¢ 55,17
Other noncurrent asse 24,19¢ 29,127
$ 794,78t $ 678,09¢

Liabilities and stockholders' equity
Current liabilities:

Accounts payabl $ 19,17« $ 11,60¢
Accrued clinical and preclinical expens 15,93¢ 9,92t
Accrued compensation and employee ben 14,68¢ 9,99¢
Other accrued liabilitie 24,82¢ 19,32:
Deferred revenu 3,99¢ 4,35k

Long-term obligations due within one ye 1,492 3,03¢



Total current liabilities 80,117 58,23¢

Long-term deferred revent 7,252 10,73(
Accrued litigation settlement expenses due afterywar 4,591 5,76¢
Long-term obligations due after one ye 38¢ 2,23¢
Convertible subordinated de 250,00( 250,00(

Commitments and contingencies (see accompanyires)
Stockholders' equity
Preferred stock, par value $.001 per share, issualsleries; 5,000 shares authorized; none
outstanding — —
Common stock, par value $.001 per share; 500,08 stauthorized; 193,041 shares issued
outstanding at December 31, 2001 and 188,575 shemugesd and outstanding at December 3.

2000 19z 18¢
Additional paic-in capital 898,53: 857,84
Accumulated other comprehensive income (1 7,44¢ (907)
Deferred compensatic — 3
Accumulated defici (453,73) (506,009
Total stockholders' equi 452,43 351,12:
$ 794,78t $ 678,09¢

See accompanying notes
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GILEAD SCIENCES, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Operations
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Year Ended December 31,

2001 2000 1999
Revenues
Product sales, ni $ 190,97( $ 149,70¢ $ 139,89(
Royalty revenue, n¢ 22,96¢ 24,59 10,43:
Contract revenu 16,35: 18,31¢ 18,65¢
Contract reveni—SAB 101 3,47¢ 2,94( —
Total revenue 233,76¢ 195,55! 168,97¢
Costs and expense
Cost of goods sol 43,76¢ 33,51 29,54¢
Research and developmt 185,55: 132,33¢ 110,87:
Selling, general and administrati 125,14: 82,02: 99,41¢
Total costs and expens 354,45¢ 247,87 239,83t
Loss from operation (120,689 (52,319 (70,859
Gain on sale of oncology ass 157,77: — —
Gain on sale of unconsolidated affili: 8,75¢ — —
Interest incom 25,59 17,63¢ 16,43¢
Interest expens (13,980 (4,365 (6,519
Income (loss) before provision for income taxesligggn loss of unconsolidated
affiliate and cumulative effect of change in acdingprinciple 57,445 (39,049 (60,947)
Provision for income taxe 4,13¢ 1,19¢ 88¢

Equity in loss of unconsolidated affilia 2,13( 2,85¢ 4,65¢



Income (loss) before cumulative effect of changadoounting principls 51,18: (43,106 (66,48¢)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting princi 1,08¢ (23,670) —
Net income (loss $ 52,27 % (56,77¢ $ (66,48¢)

I I I

Amounts per common sh«basic:

Income (loss) before cumulative effect of changadoounting principls $ 027 $ (0.29 % (0.39)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting princi 0.01 (0.07) —
Net income (loss) per sh—Dbasic $ 0.2¢ $ 031 $ (0.39)
I I I

Shares used in per share calcule—basic 190,24! 182,09¢ 171,30¢
I I I

Amounts per common sh—diluted:

Income (loss) before cumulative effect of changadoounting principls $ 0.2t % 0.29 $ (0.39
Cumulative effect of change in accounting princi 0.01 (0.07) —
Net income (loss) per shi—diluted $ 0.2¢ $ 0.3) $ (0.39)
I I I
Shares used in per share calcule—diluted 202,32: 182,09¢ 171,30!
I I I
See accompanying notes
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GILEAD SCIENCES, INC.
Consolidated Statement of Stockholders' Equity
(in thousands)
Accumulated
Common Stock Other
Additional Comprehensive Total
Preferred Paid-In Income Deferred Accumulated Stockholders'
Stock Shares Amount Capital (Loss) Compensation Deficit Equity

Balance at January 1,19 $ 1 166,25 $ 166€ 716,84( $ (337) $ (229 $ (382,746 $ 333,69
Net loss — — — — — — (66,48¢) (66,48¢)
Unrealized loss on
available-for-sale
securities, net — — — — (1,602) — — (1,602)
Foreign currency
translation adjustmel — — — — (588) — — (58¢)
Comprehensive los — — — — — — — (68,67€)
Employee stock purchas
plan — 401 — 3,07¢ — — — 3,07¢
Option exercises, n — 5,01z 5 26,13t — — — 26,14(
Warrant exercises, n — 12¢ — 80 — — — 80
Conversion of 1,133,78¢
shares of preferred stocl ) 4,53t 5 4) — — — —
Conversion of convertibl
subordinated debenture: — 42 — 467 — — — 467
Amortization of deferred
compensatiol — — — — — 151 — 151
Compensatory stock
transactions — — — 2,35¢ — — — 2,35¢

Balance at December 31,

1999 — 176,37 176 748,94 (2,527 (74) (449,23) 297,29;
Net loss — — — — — — (56,77¢) (56,77¢)
Unrealized gain on
available-for-sale
securities, net — — — — 2,071 — — 2,071

Foreign currency



translation adjustment

Comprehensive loss

Employee stock purchas

plan
Option exercises, net

Warrant exercises, net

Conversion of convertibl
subordinated debenture:
Amortization of deferred

compensatiol
Compensatory stock
transactions

Balance at December 31,
2000

Net income
Unrealized gain on
available-for-sale
securities, net
Foreign currency
translation adjustmel

Unrealized gain on cash

flow hedges, net

Comprehensive incomr

Employee stock purchas

plan

Option exercises, net

Tax benefits of employe

stock plans

Amortization of deferred

compensatiol
Compensatory stock
transactions

Balance at December 31,
2001

— — — — (448) — — (448)
= = = = = = = (55,15()
— 40¢ — 3,947 — — — 3,947
= 4,63 5 26,50+ = = = 26,50¢
— 25 — — — — — —
= 7,131 8 77,93¢ = = = 77,947
— — — — — 71 — 71
— — — 513 — — — 512
— 18857t 18¢ 857,84° (901) ©) (506,009) 351,12
— — — — — — 52,271 52,27:
— — — — 7,73¢ — — 7,73¢
= = = = 577 = = 577
— — — — 37 — — 37
= = = = = = = 60,62(
— 36¢ 5,357 — — — 5,357
= 4,09¢ 4 30,95( = = = 30,95¢
— — — 1,50( — — — 1,50(
— — — — — 3 — 3
— — — 2,87¢ — — — 2,87¢
$ — 193,04 $ 192 $ 898,53! $ 7,445 $ — 3 (453,73) $ 452,43
. s & & _________§ _______N N |

See accompanying notes
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Operating activities:

Net income (loss

GILEAD SCIENCES, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(in thousands)

Year Ended December 31,

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to rmeshcused in operating

activities:

Depreciation and amortization

Net effect of change in accounting princi
Compensation expense from stock option transactions
Gain on sale of oncology assets, net of securiéesived
Gain on sale of unconsolidated affiliate

Equity in loss of unconsolidated affiliate

Litigation settlement charges
Net provision for doubtful accoun

Tax benefits from employee stock plans

2001 2000 1999
$ 52,27 $ (56,770 $ (66,48¢)
14,69: 12,00¢ 12,627
(1,089) 10,73 —
165 51z 2,35¢
(118,929 — —
(8,754) — —
2,13( 2,85¢ 4,65¢
572 667 754
(170) 30 88¢
1,50( — —

Net unrealized (gain) loss on foreign currency $earions



29¢ (1,615 2,84¢
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (25,482 (3,947) (7,04))
Inventories (18,719 397 (4,409
Prepaid expenses and other assets (2,739 76€ (349
Long-term prepaid royalties — (11,367 —
Accounts payable 8,45¢ 2,232 1,447
Accrued liabilities 11,49t 5,77¢ (11,389
Deferred revenue (excluding net effect of changacicounting
principle) (3,837 (47¢) 1,55¢
Net cash used in operating activit (88,137) (38,207 (62,55()
Investing activities:
Purchases of marketable securities (377,72Y (229,867) (186,99))
Sales of marketable securities 143,68 29,49( 101,94:
Maturities of marketable securities 136,85( 134,24( 83,67:
Capital expenditures (26,329 (15,627 (12,47Y
Proceeds from sale of oncology assets 130,00( — —
Proceeds from sale of unconsolidated affiliate 14,30( — —
Investment in unconsolidated affiliate — (2,450) (2,450)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi 20,78( (84,207) (16,307
Financing activities:
Proceeds from issuances of common stock 36,31; 30,45; 29,29t
Repayments of long-term debt (2,76)) (3,156) (5,320)
Proceeds from issuance of convertible subordinat¢els, net of issuance
costs — 241,75( —
Net cash provided by financing activiti 33,55( 269,04! 23,97t
Effect of exchange rate changes on ¢ (1,15)) 3,641 752
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis (34,959 150,28: (54,12%
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of 197,29:. 47,01 101,13¢
Cash and cash equivalents at end of $ 162,33¢ $ 197,29: $ 47,01:
I I I
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Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Interest paid $ 12,71C  $ 5417 $ 6,23¢
Income taxes paid 1,77¢ 497 527
Non-cash investing and financing activitie:
OSI common stock received upon sale of oncologgtass $ 38,84¢ $ — % —
Common stock issued upon conversion of debentures — 79,53: 467
Reclassification of deferred debt issuance costslttitional paid-in capital
upon conversion of subordinated debenti — 1,58¢ —

See accompanying notes
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GILEAD SCIENCES, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2001



1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOU NTING POLICIES
Overview

Gilead was incorporated in Delaware on R2el987. We are an independent biopharmaceutitapany focused on the discovery,
development and commercialization of antiviralgjlzacterials and antifungals to treat life-thre@tgrinfectious diseases. We are a
multinational company, with revenues from five apprd products and operations in ten countries.ebtlyr, we market Viread for the
treatment of HIV infection, AmBisome, an antifungalent, DaunoXome, a drug approved for the treatwfekaposi's Sarcoma, and Vistide
for the treatment of cytomegalovirus (CMV) retisitHoffmann-La Roche Inc. markets Tamiflu for theatment of influenza, under a
collaborative agreement with Gilead. We are seetaradd to our existing portfolio of products thgbuour clinical development programs,
internal discovery programs and an active prodogtisition and in-licensing strategy. Our interdicovery activities include identification
of new molecular targets, target screening and orelichemistry. In addition, we are currently depéng products to treat hepatitis B virus
and bacterial infections. We also have expertidgposomal drug delivery technology that we useewelop drugs that are safer, easier for
patients to tolerate and more effective.

As more fully described in Note 5, on JA8; 1999, Gilead entered into a business combimétice Merger) with NeXstar
Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (NeXstar). The business coatioin was accounted for as a pooling of interaststhe historical consolidated financial
statements of Gilead for all years prior to theilbess combination have been restated to includérihecial position, results of operations
and cash flows of NeXstar. No material adjustmemee necessary to conform the accounting polici¢seotwo companies. Costs of the
Merger were charged to operations in 1999.

The accompanying consolidated financiakstents include the accounts of the Company amwhtdly and majority-owned
subsidiaries. Significant intercompany transactioage been eliminated. Certain prior period amobate been reclassified to be consistent
with the current presentation.

Stock Split

On February 22, 2001 and on March 8, 2@i&ad completed two-for-one stock splits, effedtethe form of a stock dividend, to
stockholders of record as of February 2, 2001 afdary 14, 2002, respectively. Accordingly, abushand per share amounts for all periods
presented have been restated to reflect both séthglits.

Changes in Accounting Principles

Gilead adopted Statement of Financial Actimg Standards (SFAS) Nos. 133 and 138, collelstiraferred to as SFAS 13Bccounting
for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activit, in the first quarter of 2001. The change was aotsd for as a change in accounting
principle. See Note 3, "Derivative Financial Instrents." Effective in the first quarter of 2000, &itl adopted the SEC's Staff Accounting
Bulletin No. 101 (SAB 101)Revenue Recognition in Financial Statemeatsd the change was also accounted for as a clmageounting
principle. See Note 2.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of these financial statesesquires us to make estimates and judgmentstieat the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses, and relatadodigre of assets
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and liabilities. On an on-going basis, we evaluateestimates, including those related to reveraegnition, bad debts, inventories, accrued
clinical and preclinical expenses, and contingendiée base our estimates on historical experiendea various other market specific
assumptions that are believed to be reasonable timeleircumstances, the results of which formlthsis for making judgments about the
carrying values of assets and liabilities thatravereadily apparent from other sources. Actualltesnay differ significantly from these
estimates under different assumptions or conditions

Revenue Recognition

Product sales revenue is recognized upssagg of legal title of the inventory and satigtacof all of the Company's performance
obligations. The Company does not provide its qusis with a general right of product return. Howettee Company will accept returns of
product that has expired or is deemed to be damaigéefective when delivered. Provisions are madeléubtful accounts, estimated proc
returns, cash discounts and government discountsednates.

Contract revenue for research and developieaecorded as earned based on the performago@ements of the contract.
Nonrefundable contract fees for which no furtherfgrenance obligations exist, and there is no caitig involvement by Gilead, a



recognized on the earlier of when the paymentseareived or when collection is assured.

Revenue from non-refundable fupnt license fees where we continue involvemertdulgh development collaboration or an obligatio
supply product, is recognized as the manufactuwlrmation is fulfilled or ratably over the developnt period or the period of the
manufacturing obligation, as appropriate.

Revenue associated with substantive pedno® milestones is recognized based upon the arhant of the milestones, as defined in
the respective agreements. Revenue under resaataleselopment cost reimbursement contracts iggrézed as the related costs are
incurred.

Advance payments received in excess of atmsa@arned are classified as deferred revenue.

Royalty revenue from sales of AmBisomeeisagnized in the month following that in which t@responding sales occur. Royalty
revenue from sales of Vistide and Tamiflu is redegd when received, which is the quarter followihg quarter in which the corresponding
sales occur.

Research and Development Costs

Major components of R&D expenses consigtestonnel costs, including salaries and benefitscal studies performed by contract
research organizations, materials and suppliespaechead allocations consisting of various adrraiive and facilities related costs. Our
research and development activities are also seghireto three main categories: research, clirdegkelopment and pharmaceutical
development. Research costs typically consist @€lprical and toxicology work. Clinical developmerttsts include Phase |, Il, and IlI
clinical trials as well as expanded access progr&inarmaceutical development costs consist of mtddumulation and chemical analysis.
We record accruals for estimated clinical and pnéxdl study costs. These costs are a significantponent of research and development
expenses. Management accrues costs for clinicdiestyperformed by
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contract research organizations based on estirtte&te25% to 30% of the work is for upfront costshithe remaining activity generally on a
straight-line basis over the life of the individwaintract or study. This estimate may or may nachthe actual services performed by the
organizations as determined by patient enrollmeveils and related activities. We monitor patiembment levels and related activity to the
extent possible, however, if management has uniil@aed activity levels associated with variougigts at a given point in time, we could
record significant research and development expgeinsiture periods.

Advertising Expenses

The Company expenses the costs of advegtisicluding promotional expenses, as incurredighiising expenses were $16.5 million in
2001, $8.4 million in 2000, and $7.9 million in 299

Stock-Based Compensation

In accordance with the provisions of SFAS 23,Accounting For Stock-Based Compensatitme Company has elected to follow
Accounting Principles Board Opinion (APB) No. Z%;counting For Stock Issued To Employeasd Interpretation No. 44 (FIN 44),
Accounting for Certain Transactions Involving St@dmpensatic—an Interpretation of APB Opinion No. #baccounting for its employee
stock option plans. Under APB 25, if the exercigegof the Company's employee and director stqatlons equals or exceeds the fair value
of the underlying stock on the date of grant, nmpensation expense is recognized. See Note 14ddopna disclosures of stock-based
compensation pursuant to SFAS 123.

Per Share Computations

For 2001, basic net income per common sisasemputed based on the weighted average nunfilsenunon shares outstanding during
the period. Diluted net income per common shar@@@1 includes the effects of approximately 12.liom stock options and warrants, but
does not include the effect of the $250.0 milliéa Bonvertible notes which would convert to appraadiety 10.2 million shares, as their efl
is antidilutive. For all periods presented prio2@01, both basic and diluted loss per common slr@&eomputed based on the weighted
average number of common shares outstanding dtivingeriod. The convertible notes, stock optiorg\warrants, as well as the convertible
debentures that were previously outstanding, weckided from the computation of diluted loss pearshas their effect is antidilutive for the
periods presented prior to 2001. All share andshare amounts for all periods presented have lestated to reflect the stock splits of
February 22, 2001 and March 8, 2002.

Cash and Cash Equivalent:



The Company considers highly liquid invesins with insignificant interest rate risk and eaning maturity of three months or less at
the purchase date to be cash equivalents. Gilegdentar into overnight repurchase agreements unbigh it purchases securities with an
obligation to resell them the following day. Setigs purchased under agreements to resell aredextat face value and reported as cash anc
cash equivalents. Under the Company's investmditypd@ may enter into repurchase agreements §epith major banks and authorized
dealers provided that such repos
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are collateralized by U.S. government securitigh wifair value of at least 102% of the fair vabiesecurities sold to Gilead.
Marketable Securities

Management determines the appropriateititzed®on of our marketable securities at the tiofigourchase and reevaluates such
designation at each balance sheet date. All o€ttrapany's marketable securities are classifiedaitable-for-sale and carried at estimated
fair values and reported in either cash equivalentaarketable securities. At December 31, 2004h @eand cash equivalents include
$121.2 million of securities designated as avadldbt-sale ($137.6 million at December 31, 200Q)réalized gains and losses on available-
for-sale securities are excluded from earningsrapdrted as a separate component of stockholdgrisyelnterest income includes interest,
dividends, amortization of purchase premiums asdalints, and realized gains and losses on satexofities. The cost of securities sold is
based on the specific identification method. Weutady review all of our investments for other-thEmporary declines in fair value. When
we determine that the decline in fair value of mrestment below our accounting basis is other-teamporary, we reduce the carrying value
of the securities we hold and record a loss iratineunt of any such decline. No such reductions baea required during the past three
years.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Gilead is subject to credit risk from iwr{folio of cash equivalents and marketable seieiBy policy, the Company limits amounts
invested in such securities by maturity, industrgugp, investment type and issuer, except for stesrissued by the U.S. government. Gilead
is not exposed to any significant concentrationsreflit risk from these financial instruments, heerewe do hold 924,984 shares of OSI
common stock as a result of the sale of our ongodmgets to OSI (see Note 4). These shares, Vidih ealue of $42.3 million at
December 31, 2001, represent our entire portfdlimarketable equity securities. The goals of thenany's investment policy, in order of
priority, are as follows: safety and preservatiéprincipal and diversification of risk; liquiditgf investments sufficient to meet cash flow
requirements; and competitive after-tax rate afnret

Gilead is also subject to credit risk framaccounts receivable related to product salesafority of the Company's trade accounts
receivable arises from sales of AmBisome, primatilpugh sales to our European subsidiaries andresples to our distributors in Europe.
In certain countries where payments are typicatiwsprimarily Greece, Spain, Portugal and Italyr eccounts receivable balances are
significant. In most cases, these slow paymenttigescreflect the pace at which governmental exgtiteimburse our customers. This, in turn,
may increase the financial risk related to certdiour customers. Sales to customers in countnigsténd to be relatively slow paying have in
the past increased, and in the future may furthenease, the average length of time that accoentvable are outstanding. To date, we have
experienced only modest losses with respect tadhection of our accounts receivable and belidat &ll past due accounts receivable,
including those due from customers in these fountes, are collectible. We continually seek t@iove our collection processes to ensure
that we fully collect amounts due to us based arpooduct sales and that collections are timely.p&dgorm credit evaluations of our
customers' financial condition and
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generally have not required collateral. To datehaee experienced only modest credit losses wipaet to our accounts receivable.
Inventories

Inventories are recorded at the lower aft @@ market, with cost determined on a first-irstfout basis. Management periodically
reviews the composition of inventory in order teritify obsolete, slow-moving or otherwise unsaleatdms. If such items are observed and
there are no alternate uses for the inventoryCitnapany will record a write-down to net realizabédue in the period that the units are
identified as impaired. Historically, inventory w&idowns have been insignificant and consisterit midnagement's expectations.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment is statezbat less accumulated depreciation and amortizalepreciation and amortization are
recognized using the strai-line method. Estimated useful lives are as follc



Description Estimated Useful Life (in years)

Building and leasehold improvemel 20
Laboratory and manufacturing equipm 4-10
Office and computer equipme 2-6

Office and computer equipment includes tediged computer software. All of the Company'sitajzed software is purchased. The
Company has no internally developed computer soéwaeasehold improvements and capitalized leageipeent are amortized over the
shorter of the lease term or the item's useful life

Other Noncurrent Assets

Other noncurrent assets at December 311, R@fudes $11.0 million of prepaid royalties ptodhe Institute of Organic Chemistry and
Biochemistry of the Academy of Sciences of the GzZRepublic and Rega Stichting (IOCB/REGA), as dised under the "IOCB/REGA"
caption of Note 7. Also included in other noncutrassets at December 31, 2001 are deferred delaiiss costs of $6.9 million, net of
accumulated amortization of $1.3 million, relatedtie $250.0 million 5% subordinated convertibléesdGilead issued in December 2000.
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Long-Lived Assets

The carrying value of long-lived asseteeigiewed on a regular basis for the existenceaifar circumstances both internally and
externally that may suggest impairment. Specifi,eptal indicators of impairment include:

. a significant decrease in the fair value of antasse

. a significant change in the extent or manner incllan asset is used or a significant physical obhémgn asset;

. a significant adverse change in legal factors @ahénbusiness climate that affects the value cisset;

. an adverse action or assessment by the U.S. FabBraig Administration or another regulator;

. an accumulation of costs significantly in excesthefamount originally expected to acquire or catstan asset; and
. operating or cash flow losses combined with a hystd operating or cash flow losses or a projectiofiorecast that

demonstrates continuing losses associated withamie-producing asset.

Should there be indication of impairmehg Company will confirm this by comparing the estied future cash flows expected to result
from the use of the asset and its eventual digpodib the carrying amount of the asset. In esiimgathese future cash flows, assets are
grouped at the lowest level for which there arenifiable cash flows that are largely independdrthe cash flows generated by other asset
groups. If the sum of the expected future cashgléamdiscounted and without interest changeskstiean the carrying amount of the asset,
an impairment loss, measured as the excess ohthgng value of the asset over its fair value) W recognized. The cash flow estimates
used in such calculations are based on managerbest'sstimates, using appropriate and customanngstions and projections at the time.

Other Current Accrued Liabilities

At December 31, 2001 and December 31, 200@r accrued liabilities included $2.4 millionaxfcrued litigation settlement costs. See
the Legal Proceedings discussion in Note 13.

Foreign Currency Translation, Transactions and Contacts

Adjustments resulting from translating flmancial statements of the Company's foreign gligges into U.S. dollars are excluded from
the determination of net income and are accumuiatadseparate component of stockholders' equigy fdreign exchange transaction losses
are reported as a selling, general and administratipense in the consolidated statements of apesaiSuch losses were $1.4 million in
2001, $0.5 million in 2000 and $0.5 million in 1999

The Company hedges certain of its foreigmency exposures related to outstanding tradeusmtsaeceivable and firmly committed
purchase transactions with foreign exchange forwardracts. In general, these contracts do notsxfite Company to market risk because
gains and losses on the contracts offset gainsoasds on the transactions being hedged. The Carnspan
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exposure to credit risk from these contracts isrection of changes in interest and currency exchaatgs and, therefore, varies over time.
Gilead limits the risk that counterparties to thesetracts may be unable to perform by transadirg with major U.S. banks. The Compe



also limits its risk of loss by entering into cats that provide for net settlement at maturityerefore, the Company's overall risk of loss in
the event of a counterparty default is limitedite amount of any unrecognized and unrealized gairautstanding contracts (i.e., those
contracts that have a positive fair value) at the @f default. The Company does not enter intawdpéve foreign currency transactions and
does not write options.

In accounting for hedges of accounts rextd®, the Company's aggregate net foreign curreraogaction gain or loss is reported as a
selling, general and administrative expense. Roithe adoption of SFAS 133 on January 1, 2001Cimpany recognized the net unrealized
gain or loss on outstanding forward contracts basethe difference between the contract exchartgearad the market exchange rate at each
balance sheet date. With respect to hedges ofyficainmitted purchase transactions, unrealized gaiddosses on the underlying forward
contracts were deferred and reported as a compohém related transaction in the period in whitabccurred. At December 31, 2001, the
Company has net unrealized losses on its opergfomichange forward contracts of $0.9 million.

The Company had forward exchange cont@dstanding of $72.3 million at December 31, 200d $53.8 million at December 31,
2000. The contracts have maturities of one yedess with one exception. One hedge contract inbaldedge raw materials purchases in
the first quarter of 2003, with a notional amouh$8.7 million and no fair value at December 31020has a maturity of 13 months.

The Company presently does not hedge ttswestment in any of its foreign subsidiariesieEfive January 2002, we have begun to use
forward contracts to hedge a percentage of oucésted international sales, primarily those denataihin the euro currency.

See Note 3 for a further discussion of\ggive financial instruments and our adoption oASFL33.
Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company's financial instruments congistcipally of cash and cash equivalents, marketaécurities, accounts receivable, certain
other non-current assets, forward foreign exchaogeracts, accounts payable, loiegm obligations and convertible subordinated nd@ast
and cash equivalents, marketable securities amehfdrforeign exchange contracts that hedge accoeotsvable are reported at their
respective fair values on the balance sheet. Forfeaeign exchange contracts that hedge firmly catbahpurchases are recorded at fair
value, net of the related deferred gain or lossyltimg in a reported net balance of zero. Manageiinelieves the remaining financial
instruments, with the exception of the convertdldordinated notes, are reported on the balanet ahamounts that approximate current
values. The fair value of the convertible subortidanotes at December 31, 2001 was $382.8 milliehtle fair value at December 31, 2000
was $211.6 million. The carrying value at the ehdaxrh period was $250 million. The fair value @&Bmber 31, 2001 was determined by
obtaining a quote from a market maker for the notée fair value at December 31,
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2000 was obtained by multiplying the number of seanto which the notes can be converted, by thelpge market price of Gilead's
common stock at December 31, 2000, plus accruedeistt

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In July 2001, the Financial Accounting Stards Board (FASB) issued SFAS No. 1Blisiness CombinatiofSFAS 141), and No. 14
Goodwill and Other Intangible AsselSFAS 142). SFAS 141 eliminates the pooling-offiesés method of accounting for business
combinations except for qualifying business comtiams that were initiated prior to July 1, 2001 A&-141 further clarifies the criteria to
recognize intangible assets separately from gobddiwik requirements of SFAS 141 are effective for usiness combination accounted for
by the purchase method that is completed after 30n2001. Under SFAS 142, goodwill and indefitiked intangible assets are no longer
amortized but are reviewed annually (or more frejyef impairment indicators arise) for impairmefSeparable intangible assets that are
deemed to have an indefinite life will continuéb®amortized over their useful lives (but with neaximum life). The amortization provisions
of SFAS 142 apply to goodwill and intangible assetguired after June 30, 2001. As Gilead has rawated for any business combinations
under the purchase method of accounting, the amopfiSFAS 141 on July 1, 2001 did not have a netenpact on the Company's financ
position or results of operations and the adopdib8FAS 142 on January 1, 2002 will not have a nedtenpact on the Company's financial
position or results of operations.

In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS BgEounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Longdd Assets SFAS 144 establishes a
single accounting model for assets to be disposbg eale whether previously held and used or neglyuired. SFAS 144 retains the
presentation of discontinued operations in thenmeatatement, but broadens the presentation tode@ component of an entity. SFAS 144
is effective for fiscal years beginning after Det®m15, 2001 and the interim periods within. Thegbn of SFAS 144 on January 1, 2002
will not have a material impact on the Companyiaficial position or results of operations.

2. CUMULATIVE CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE

In December 1999, the Securities and Exgh&@ommission issued Staff Accounting Bulletin 101 (SAB 101)Revenue Recognition
in Financial StatementAmong other things, SAB 101 describes the SEC 'Staéfsition on the recognition of certain nonrefainid uj-front



fees received in connection with collaboration agrents. The Company previously recognized nonrefolledechnology access fees rece

in connection with collaboration agreements asmaeavhen received or when collectibility was prdbabnd when the technology had been
transferred. Effective January 1, 2000, Gilead gedrits method of accounting for these fees togeize them as the related manufacturing
obligation is fulfilled or on a straight-line bagiser the term of the related research and devedopoollaboration, manufacturing or supply
arrangement, as appropriate, as this method bdshesathe effort provided. Management believesttange in accounting principle is
preferable based on guidance provided in SAB 101.

The cumulative effect of the change in actimg principle was recorded in the fourth quaae2000, retroactively effective as of
January 1, 2000, as deferred revenue that wilebegnized as contract revenue over the remainmgaéthe research and development,
manufacturing or supply arrangements, as appreptatr the year ended December 31, 2000, the metdnof the change in
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accounting principle was to increase the net lgs$1®.7 million, or $0.06 per share. The loss catssof a $13.7 million cumulative effect of
the change as of January 1, 2000, net of $2.9amibf related deferred revenue that was recograsezbntract revenue during the year 2000.
An additional $3.5 million of contract revenue wasognized in 2001 and the remainder of the $7IBomielated deferred revenue balance
as of December 31, 2001, is expected to be recedmig revenue in fiscal years 2002 through 2012.

3. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

On January 1, 2001, Gilead adopted SFAS TB8 standard requires that Gilead recognizeeaaiVdtives as either assets or liabilities
measured at fair value. If the derivative is deatgd as, and meets the definition of, a fair valedge, the changes in the fair value of the
derivative and of the hedged item attributablentotiedged risk are recognized in earnings. If grevdtive is designated as, and meets the
definition of, a cash flow hedge, the effectivetimrs of changes in the fair value of the derivatre recorded in other comprehensive
income and are recognized in the income statembenwhe hedged item affects earnings. Ineffectoréigns of changes in the fair value of
cash flow hedges are recognized in earnings imnedgdicSFAS 133 also classifies warrants to purcltagpital stock of a non-public
company, which include a net exercise feature asateves, and as such upon adoption are to berdedan the balance sheet at fair value
with an offsetting amount recorded in the resultsperations. Subsequent changes in the fair \@ltiee warrants are required to be
remeasured at each balance sheet date, with chentesfair value of the warrants recorded in hssof operations.

Gilead sells product and purchases raw miaddénternationally in both US dollars and locatrency. Forecasted and actual foreign
currency risks are hedged with forward currencytieats, generally with maturities of 12 monthsesd. These derivative instruments are
employed to eliminate or minimize certain foreignrency exposures that can be confidently identified quantified. Forward contracts
hedging non-functional currency assets and lia¢dliare not SFAS 133 designated hedges and chanfaésvalue are recognized
immediately in earnings. In accordance with SFAS, Iidges related to anticipated foreign currenoghmases of raw materials designated
and documented at the inception of the respectddgd are designated as cash flow hedges and edfaateffectiveness quarterly. As the
terms of the forward contract and the underlyimg$action are matched at inception, forward congfiiectiveness is calculated by
comparing the fair value of the contract to thengj®in the forward value of the underlying hedgethi with the effective portion of the gain
or loss on the derivative instrument reported esraponent of other comprehensive income in stoaédrsl equity and reclassified into
earnings in the same period or periods during wttiehhedged transaction affects earnings. Upontetopf SFAS 133, we recorded a fair
value of $0.6 million related to forward contrapteviously not reflected in the balance sheet aedgnized a cumulative transition
adjustment to other comprehensive income of $0lkomifor the effective component of the hedge. Sahtially all values reported in other
comprehensive income at December 31, 2001 wilkbkassified to earnings within 12 months. Any raaicchanges in fair value of the
instruments or other ineffectiveness are recognimedediately in selling, general and administragxpense. Ineffectiveness during 2001
was not significant.

Gilead holds warrants to purchase stodkwomnon-public companies. These warrants havexetise features and under SFAS 133 are
classified as a derivative instruments. Upon adoptGilead
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recorded the fair value of one of these warran§latM with an offsetting adjustment to cumulatél&nge in accounting principle.

During the year ended 2001, a $1.4 millmss on hedging contracts has been recognizecimtdome statement and a $0.6 million
reduction in the fair value of derivatives has besgognized in other comprehensive income. At Ddx81, 2001, the fair value of
derivatives recognized in other comprehensive ire@mot material.

4. SALE OF ONCOLOGY ASSETS

On December 21, 2001, Gilead completed#he of its oncology assets, pipeline of clinicahdidates in oncology and all rela



intellectual property, as well as our Boulder, Caltp operations, including clinical research angydievelopment operations, infrastructure
and facilities, to OSI Pharmaceuticals, Inc (O%he three clinical development candidates sold$b &e: NX 211 (liposomal lurtotecan),
GS 7836 (a nucleoside analogue) and GS 7904L dadipal thymidylate synthase inhibitor). As consadien, Gilead received $130.0 milli
in cash and 924,984 shares of OSI common stocledlatapproximately $38.8 million as of DecemberZD1. The number of shares iss
to Gilead was determined by dividing $40.0 millimnthe average closing sale price of OSI commockshor the 5 days preceding
December 21, 2001. We are also entitled to additipayments from OSI of up to $30.0 million in eitltash or a combination of cash and
OSI common stock if and when OSlI reaches certareldpment milestones for NX 211, the most advarafeétie oncology product
candidates sold to OSI. Based upon the Decemb&(®1, net book value of the oncology assets so&bd¥ million, transaction costs of
$3.2 million, and $2.8 million related to the a@rakion of approximately 78,000 options to purch@agead common stock, the Company
realized a pretax gain of $157.8 million in thertbuguarter of 2001. The carrying value of the $farred assets relates primarily to certain
property and equipment. OSI assumed all of Gileawk®logy-related clinical and preclinical obligats, as well as various lease obligations.
Under a related manufacturing agreement, we wiltipce for OSI liposomal formulations of NX 211 a&8 7904L, the two liposomal
products sold to OSI, at our manufacturing facilityfsan Dimas, CA.

5. ACQUISITION OF NEXSTAR

On July 29, 1999, the Company acquiredfahe outstanding common stock of NeXstar Pharmmécas under an agreement dated ¢
February 28, 1999. As a result, NeXstar becamedallyvbwned subsidiary of Gilead. In connection witte Merger, Gilead issued a total of
44.8 million shares of Gilead common stock to NaXststockholders as consideration for all shafesmmon stock of NeXstar. In addition,
holders of options and warrants outstanding atithe of the merger to purchase an aggregate obappately 2.2 million shares of NeXstar
common stock would receive, upon exercise of sydions and warrants, the same fraction of a shia@lead common stock. Holders of
$80.0 million principal amount of 6.25% convertilsiebordinated debentures of NeXstar received tie to convert the debentures into
approximately 7.2 million shares of Gilead commtotk. The Merger qualified as a tax-free reorgaivraand was accounted for as a
pooling of interests.
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The table below presents the separate 6388ts of operations for Gilead and NeXstar fer pleriods prior to the merger and combined
results after the merger (in thousands):

Merger-related

Gilead NeXstar adjustments Total
Year ended December 31, 1€
Revenues $ 24,65¢ $ 14432( $ — 3 168,97¢
Net income (loss (73,539 25,35! (18,309)(a) (66,48¢)

(@  Merger-related costs

(b)  Adjustment required to conform accounting policeXstar's policy was to capitalize certain patemt ademark costs, while it was
Gilead's policy to charge such items to sellingiegal and administrative expense in the periodriiecl The accompanying financial
statements have been restated for all periodstbattall patent and trademark costs are expensiggased.

As a result of its merger with NeXstar, @empany incurred merger-related costs consistingaasaction costs (primarily professional
fees, filing fees, printing costs and other relathdrges), employee severance costs and the vaite-df certain NeXstar assets that would
not be used in continuing operations. The followtaigle shows the details of the merger-relatedscastl accruals at December 31, 1999 (in
thousands):

Charged to Expense Through December 31, 1999
December 31, 1999 Utilized Accrual Balance
Merger transaction cos $ 12,21 $ 12,19¢ $ 18
Employee severanc 5,30¢ 2,821 2,48¢
Write-down of NeXstar asse 53€ N/A N/A
Other 244 244 —
Total $ 18,30 $ 15,26: $ 2,50¢

All employees for which severance costsensscrued had been terminated as of December 99, $8bstantially all remaining accrued
severance costs were paid to former employees bgrbieer 31, 2000. All merger transaction costs wélieed by December 31, 200
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6. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE SECURITIES

The following is a summary of available-&ale securities. Estimated fair values of avaddbl-sale securities are based on prices
obtained from commercial pricing services (in thens):

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
December 31, 2001
U.S. treasury securities and obligations of U.Segoment
agencie: $ 64,89¢ $ 854 $ 41 % 65,71:
Certificates of depos 6,09: 7 — 6,10(
Corporate debt securitii 265,53: 3,53¢ (717) 268,34¢
Corporate equity securitie 38,84¢ 3,45¢ — 42,30¢
Asse-backed securitie 58,30¢ 1,15¢ (2 59,46:
Other debt securitie 99,757 — — 99,757
Total $ 533,43t $ 9,007 $ (760) $ 541,68!

December 31, 200!
U.S. treasury securities and obligations of U.Segoment

agencie $ 57,93¢ $ 93 $ (1285 $ 57,90¢
Certificates of depos 132 1 — 13z
Corporate debt securiti 190,60« 504 (252 190,85¢
Asse-backed securitie 43,75: 34¢ (58) 44,04
Other debt securitie 160,20: — — 160,20:

Total $ 452,63( $ 947 $ (435 $ 453,14;

Other debt securities consist primarilynainey market funds.

The following table presents certain infation related to sales of available-for-sales sgear(in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2001 2000 1999
Proceeds from sal¢ $ 143,68: $ 29,49 $ 101,94
Gross realized gains on sa $ 1,282 % 62 $ 92
Gross realized losses on s¢ $ 59 $ (14¢) $ (475)

At December 31, 2001, $223.5 million of empany's portfolio of marketable securities (agalg $59.5 million of asset-backed
securities and $42.3 million of equity securitibap a contractual maturity of less than one yedi$&16.4 million of the portfolio has a
contractual maturity greater than one year buttleass three years. None of the estimated matufitise Company's asset-backed securities
exceed three years. Marketable equity securit@ssisting of OSI common stock, are expected toviadable for sale during the first half of
2002.
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7. COLLABORATIVE ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS
Cubist Pharmaceuticals

In January 2001, Gilead entered into ae@gent with Cubist Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (Cub&dgting to Cubist's antibacterial compound
daptomycin, including Cidecin™, an intravenous fafation of the compound that is currently in Phiiselinical trials for treatment of
bacterial infections. Under the terms of the agmemimGilead paid Cubist an upfront license feeld.8 million and received exclusi



commercial rights to the compound in sixteen Euaopeountries (Gilead's territory) as well as tightito develop the compound for
commercialization in this territory. Research aedalopment expense has been charged for $10.@mdfithe $13.0 million payment. The
$2.4 million balance is included in other noncutrassets at December 31, 2001 because if, prigartoary 2002, Gilead terminated its rights
under the agreement with respect to a precliniclformulation of daptomycin being developed byt or if Cubist discontinued
development of that oral formulation, Gilead wohbd/e been entitled to receive a refund of this athéom Cubist. Subsequent to

January 2002, this refundable amount is reducedblsabn a monthly basis over a four-year period iarating amortized to research and
development expense. Cubist will continue to bpaasible for worldwide clinical development of Caile and the preclinical oral
formulation. Gilead will be responsible for botlyuatory filings and marketing and selling of theguct within Gilead's territory. Gilead
also agreed to make additional payments to Cubigp o $30.7 million if certain clinical and regtibry milestones related to Cidecin and the
oral formulation are reached. Through 2001, thifabese milestones had been met and Gilead paidriflion related to those milestones.
These payments have been recorded as researcleaidmiment expense. Additionally, if Cidecin is segsfully commercialized in Gilead's
territory, Gilead will pay Cubist a royalty on reztles of the product.

Archemix

In October 2001, we entered into an agre¢méh Archemix Corporation relating to our SELEechnology. Under this agreement, we
gave Archemix the exclusive rights to the SELEXagass, including therapeutic and other commercipliegtions to the extent not already
licensed under pre-existing agreements. Archemik fgeus $9.0 million in 2001 and is required ty ps $8.5 million in 2002. As required
by our license agreement with the University Tedbgy Corporation, we paid 5% of the $9.0 millionypgent to, and will pay 5% of the
$8.5 million payment to, the University Technola@grporation. We also received a warrant to purcl38&€e000 shares of Archemix comnmr
stock, the value of which is not material. As regdiby our license agreement with the Universitghifmlogy Corporation, we transferred !
of this warrant to the University Technology Corgtion.

EyeTech

In March 2000, Gilead entered into an agw® with EyeTech Pharmaceuticals, Inc. relatinGitead's proprietary aptamer EYEQOL.
Currently in early clinical trials, EYEOOL is arhibitor of vascular endothelial growth factor, oE&F, which is known to play a role in the
development of certain ophthalmic diseases. Urttetdrms of the agreement, EyeTech received watlelwghts to all therapeutic uses of
EYEOO01, and, if the product is successfully comnadimed, EyeTech will pay Gilead royalties on wavide sales of the product. EyeTech
also will be responsible for all research
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and development costs. Gilead will provide clinisapplies of the product to EyeTech through Mar@bl2 Gilead received a $7.0 million up-
front licensing fee from EyeTech in April 2000, whiwas recognized as revenue ratably over the eaesupply agreement period.
Accordingly, $5.2 million of the license fee wasweded as contract revenue under the agreemefdih 2nd the remainder of the license
was recognized as revenue in 2001. Gilead is aistheel to additional cash payments from EyeTechmfo $25.0 million if and when
EyeTech reaches certain EYEOO1 development milestokdditionally, Gilead received a warrant to fage 791,667 shares of EyeTech
series B convertible preferred stock, exercisabiemice of $6.00 per share, the price at whiehstiock was issued to other investors. See
Note 3 for a description of the accounting treathuérthe warrant

Fujisawa

The Company's rights to market AmBisomesatgiect to an agreement between the Company gishwa Healthcare, Inc., as
successor to Fujisawa USA, Inc. (Fujisawa). Unberterms of the Fujisawa agreement, as amendedaiaj and the Company co-promote
AmBisome in the United States, Fujisawa has soléetimg rights to AmBisome in Canada and the Compgaas exclusive marketing rights
to AmBisome in the rest of the world, provided @empany pays royalties to Fujisawa in connectio wales in most significant Asian
markets, including Japan. In connection with Ugdes, Fujisawa purchases AmBisome from the Compangst. For sales in Canada,
Fujisawa purchases AmBisome at cost plus a spdgiecentage. Fujisawa collects all payments fioensele of AmBisome in the United
States and Canada. The Company receives 20% aBlugis gross profits from the sale of AmBisoménsWnited States. Gross profits
include a deduction for cost of goods sold, giviimg Company a current effective royalty rate ofragpnately 17% of Fujisawa's net sales of
AmBisome in the United States. In connection with agreement between the Company and Fujisawad3ieorded royalty revenue of
$17.1 million in 2001, $13.5 million in 2000 and.3$8nillion in 1999.

Sumitomo

In September 1996, the Company and Sumitehamaceuticals Co., Ltd. (Sumitomo) entered am@greement (Sumitomo License)
pursuant to which Sumitomo agreed to develop antteh&mBisome in Japan. Under the terms of the $umo License, Sumitomo paid t
Company an initial $7.0 million licensing fee (lesghholding taxes of $0.7 million) in October 1986d a $3.0 million milestone payment
(less withholding taxes of $0.3 million) in MarcB98. Sumitomo also is required to make additiomaghpents to the Company if certain
clinical and commercial milestones are met andatpthe Company royalties on all Japanese AmBisatessUnder the Sumitomo License,
Gilead is obligated to provide a certain quantibAmBisome to Sumitomo at no charge. AmBisome syt approved for marketing in
Japan



Subsequent to the cumulative effect ofd@nge in accounting principle that was recordéet@fe in the first quarter of 2000 resulting
from the adoption of SAB 101, Gilead is recognizihg initial license fee over the remaining freppy arrangement period, which is
currently expected to be over the next five ye@he net impact of the change in accounting prircfpl the Sumitomo License was to
increase the net loss in 2000 by $3.4 million. Thmulative effect of the change in accounting pplecwas a charge of $5.0 million.
Contract revenue of $1.6 million related to theidhi
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licensing fee from Sumitomo was recognized as eshievenue in 2000 and $2.8 million was recognaedontract revenue in 2001. The
remaining $0.6 million of related deferred reveati®ecember 31, 2001 will be recognized as contexenue over the remaining free sug
obligation period.

Hoffmann-La Roche

In September 1996, Gilead entered intollalboration agreement with F. Hoffmann-La Roche. laidd Hoffmann-La Roche Inc.
(collectively, Roche) to develop and commerciattzerapies to treat and prevent viral influenza @oehe Agreement). Under the Roche
Agreement, Roche received exclusive worldwide sgbtGilead's proprietary influenza neuraminidasgbitors. Prior to 1999, Roche made
license fee and developmental milestone paymetahrtg $16.3 million. During 1999, Gilead recogrdza total of $12.8 million of addition
milestone payments due to the commencement oficettaical trials in Japan, the filing of an apgdtion to market Tamiflu in the European
Union, and the filing and subsequent approval toketal amiflu in the United States. During 2000,6aill recognized $9.6 million of contract
revenue from milestone payments from Roche relet@miflu milestones achieved during the year. fitilestones included filing for
regulatory approval in Japan for treatment of iefiza, the Japanese approval of the applicatiorilitige for U.S. regulatory approval for the
prevention of influenza, and the receipt of sucprapal in the U.S. In 2001, we recognized a $2.Miani milestone payment for the filing of
an application to market Tamiflu as a prophylarishe European Union.

Subsequent to the cumulative effect ofd@nge in accounting principle that was recordéet@fe in the first quarter of 2000 resulting
from the adoption of SAB 101, Gilead recognizedittigal license fee over the remaining researath development period, which ended in
the first quarter of 2000. The net impact of tharae in accounting for the initial license fee wasn. The cumulative effect of the change in
accounting principle related to the Roche licersevias a $0.7 million charge to results of openatiovhich was offset by additional contract
revenue of $0.7 million also recognized in thetfigarter of 2000. There is no remaining defermenue related to the Roche initial license
fee as of December 31, 2001.

As of December 31, 2001, Gilead is entiteeddditional cash payments from Roche of up t6 $8illion upon Roche achieving
additional developmental and regulatory milestotregaddition, Roche is required to pay Gilead rtgalon net product sales. Gilead began
receiving royalties from Roche's sales of Tamifidhie first quarter of 2000. We recorded a tot&d4b million of Tamiflu royalties in the
year 2001 and $9.6 million of royalties in 2000. Nemiflu royalties were recorded in 1999. The Compiecognizes royalty revenue frc
Roche in the quarter following the quarter in whibh related Tamiflu sales occur.

Under the Roche Agreement, Roche also neisds the Company for its related R&D costs unigeprogram by funding such costs
quarterly and generally in advance, based on anafdget. Reimbursements are included in conteasgnue as the Company incurs the
related R&D costs. Amounts incurred by the Compangxcess of amounts funded may also be reimbussdajiect to Roche's approval. In
this event, revenue is not recognized until suglr@al has been obtained. Conversely, if amountddd by Roche exceed the Company's
related R&D costs, the Company may be require@pay such excess funding to Roche. The Companydedaontract revenue for R&D
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reimbursements related to the Roche Agreementmbapnately $0.1 million in 2001, $0.9 million ir0R0 and $2.1 million in 1999. R&D
costs related to the Roche Agreement approximatesimbursement revenue in each year presentedrandcluded in R&D expenses.

Pharmacia

In August 1996, the Company and Pharmaoip@ation (Pharmacia) entered into a License ampl$ Agreement (Pharmacia
Agreement) to market Vistide in all countries odésthe United States. Under the terms of the Praaagreement, Pharmacia paid Gilead
an initial license fee of $10.0 million.

Subsequent to the cumulative effect ofdii@nge in accounting principle recorded effectivéhie first quarter of 2000, Gilead is
recognizing the initial license fee on a straighelbasis over the supply arrangement period, wisisixteen years from the agreement date.
The net impact of the change in accounting prircfpl the Pharmacia Agreement was to increasegh®ss in 2000 by $7.3 million. The
cumulative effect of the change in accounting pplecrelated to the initial license fee from Phacimavas a $7.9 million charge to results of
operations, and additional contract revenue of $tiléon was recognized in 2000 subsequent to tomanting change. The remaini



$7.3 million of related deferred revenue is expattebe recognized on a straight-line basis asraontevenue over the remaining supply
period, or twelve years beginning January 2001.

During the second quarter of 1997, Vistides approved for marketing in the European UniotthieyEuropean Commission, which
triggered an additional cash milestone paymentl&f@million by Pharmacia to the Company. Also assailt of achieving this milestone, in
the second quarter of 1997, Pharmacia purchas88,786 shares of Series B Convertible PreferredkStar approximately $40.0 million, or
$35.28 per share. The preferred stock automaticaltyerted into 4,535,144 shares of common stodi®89. For additional information
about the preferred stock, see Note 14. Underettmest of the Pharmacia Agreement and related agrésroevering expanded access
programs for Vistide outside of the United Stafe#ead is responsible for maintaining the cidofquatent portfolio and for supplying to
Pharmacia bulk cidofovir used to manufacture thisfied Vistide product. Gilead is entitled to reeed royalty based upon Pharmacia's sales
of Vistide. Gilead receives a portion of the royalpon shipping either bulk drug substance or Westo Pharmacia, and the remainder upon
Pharmacia's sale of Vistide to third parties. Aoyalties that Gilead receives before the produsbld to third parties are recorded as defe
revenue until such third-party sales occur. At Delger 31, 2001, the Company has recorded on itabalsheet approximately $3.1 million
of such deferred revenue ($2.2 million at Decen®#ier2000). The Company recognized royalty revenam sales of Vistide outside of the
United States by Pharmacia of $1.4 million in 2081L5 million in 2000 and $2.0 million in 1999.
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Somalogic

In November 1999, Gilead and Somalogic, (Bomalogic) entered into an agreement wherebga@iassigned to Somalogic under a
sole and exclusive license, certain intellectuapprty related to the SELEX process for diagngatigposes, including patents and patent
applications. Under the terms of the agreement,gbamgic was required to pay Gilead a total of $2illion in two nonrefundable
installments. The first $1.5 million was paid inWmnber 1999 and was included in contract revenuthéoyear ended December 31, 1999.
The remaining $1.0 million, which was reported aefedred revenue at December 31, 1999, was receiveédecorded as contract revenue in
2000. Gilead has no ongoing research or fundinyatibns under the agreement.

Schering A.G.

In 1993, the Company entered into a collatiee research agreement (Schering Research Agregand license agreement (Schering
License Agreement) with Schering A.G. Under theeBicly Research Agreement, Schering A.G. has funesghrch at Gilead for the
discovery and development of aptamerasgvo diagnostic agents. The level of funding under #ygeement varied annually, from a high of
$2.4 million to $0.3 million received and recordesicontract revenue in 1999. The Schering Resdanaement expired in 1999 and the
Company does not expect to receive any additioainents thereunder.

Under the Schering License Agreement, Sehek.G. has the right to develop and commerciadipiamers am vivo diagnostic agents
or radiotherapeutics discovered and developed uhdeBchering Research Agreement. Schering A.&gisired to make milestone and
royalty payments to the Company upon commerciatinand sale of any products developed under theboration with the Company. The
milestone payments for any one product total $61om and are triggered by the filing of an Invigsttional New Drug application, the
initiation of Phase Il clinical trials, the filingf an NDA and approval of a product for commersale. The Schering License Agreement,
which was still in effect as of December 31, 208drmits the Company to develop and commercializanaprs discovered under the Sche
Research Agreement outside the fieldnofivo diagnostic agents or radiotherapeutics, subjeaiytalty payments to Schering A.G.

GlaxoSmithKline

In December 2000, Gilead entered into arergent with Glaxo Wellcome, now GlaxoSmithKlindd&®) giving Gilead the rights to C
7904L, a novel anti-tumor compound. Gilead was tgirg GS 7904L in a liposome and was evaluating fireclinical studies. Under the
agreement, Gilead had exclusive worldwide rightdaeelop and commercialize GS 7904L for all indmag other than malaria. Gilead paid
Glaxo an upfront fee that was included in R&D exgeeim 2000. In December 2001, this compound wagrassto OSI as part of the sale of
oncology assets.

In May 1998, Gilead entered into a thred-pallaboration with Glaxo in which (a) Glaxo réeed a non-exclusive right to use Gilead's
proprietary SELEX process for target validatior); @lead received exclusive rights (subject to ®laxight to elect to participate in such
activities) to develop and commercialize NX 21lipasomal formulation of Glaxo's proprietary topaiserase | inhibitor (lurtotecan); and
(c) Glaxo acquired 1,457,028 shares of Gilead comstock for
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$10.0 million in a private offering. In December020 the collaboration and license agreement wasfreddUnder the revised terms of
agreement, Glaxo waived its right to participat¢hia development and commercialization of NX 21d ésiright to receive royalties, givir



Gilead exclusive rights to the compound. In Decen2@®1, this compound was also assigned to OShaaopthe sale of oncology assets.
IOCB/REGA

In 1991 and 1992, Gilead entered into ageres with the Institute of Organic Chemistry ariddBemistry of the Academy of Sciences
of the Czech Republic and Rega Stichting (IOCB/REG#ating to certain nucleotide compounds discetieat these two institutions. Under
the agreements, Gilead received the exclusive t@ghtanufacture, use and sell these nucleotide oamgs, and Gilead is obligated to pay
IOCB/REGA a percentage of net revenues receivad Bales of products containing the compounds, stifijeninimum royalty payments.
The products covered by the agreement includedéstdefovir dipivoxil and Viread, but exclude TmiGilead currently makes quarterly
payments to IOCB/REGA based on a percentage oifdé¢isind Viread sales. If marketing approval is nezk from the FDA for adefovir
dipivoxil, Gilead would be obligated to pay additad amounts to IOCB/REGA upon future sales of ghnaduct.

In December 2000, the agreements with IGREEZA were amended to provide for a reduced royalty on future sales of adefovir
dipivoxil or Viread, in return for an upfront paymtefrom Gilead of $11.0 million upon signing theregment. This payment was recorded
long-term prepaid royalty and is classified in athencurrent assets on the balance sheet at Dec&hp2001. It is being recognized as
royalty expense over the expected commercial fiféiead and will be recognized as royalty expeosger the expected commercial life of
adefovir dipivoxil when and if FDA approval is obtad and sales of the product commence. Amortirasfche $11.0 million payment was
not significant through December 31, 2001.

Southern Research Institute

In December 2000, Gilead entered into aremgent with Southern Research Institute giving&ilworldwide rights to develop and
commercialize GS 7836, an anti-tumor compound®@iktad was evaluating in preclinical studies. Uritherterms of the agreement, Gilead
paid Southern Research Institute an upfront feéghwivas included in research and development exp@n000. In December 2001, this
compound was assigned to OSI as part of the salaaiflogy assets.

8. INVENTORIES

Inventories are summarized as follows lfimusands):

December 31,

2001 2000
Raw materials $ 18,08¢ $ 9,641
Work in proces: 10,00¢ 7,781
Finished good 11,19( 3,13¢

$ 39,28( $  20,56:
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9. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment consist efftllowing (in thousands):

December 31,

2001 2000

Building and improvements (including leasehold im@ments $ 55,65¢ $ 55,87

Laboratory and manufacturing equipm 32,867 34,16"
Office and computer equipme 22,574 21,51
Capitalized leased equipme 13,79 13,53(
Construction in progres 6,23¢ 2,961

131,12¢ 128,04t
Less accumulated depreciation and amortize (68,300 (72,877)

$ 62,82¢ $ 55,17«



10. INVESTMENT IN AND SALE OF UNCONSOLIDATED AFF ILIATE

In July 1998, the Company established Booli.L.C., a Delaware limited liability company (#igo), as a wholly owned subsidiary and
transferred all of the assets of the NeXstar TeldgyoProducts division to Proligo. Proligo suppliasleic acid and peptide synthesis
products to the pharmaceutical and biopharmacdinidastry for sale and use as laboratory resesrapents and in therapeutic and
diagnostic products.

On August 15, 1998, the Company sold a Hitésest (Interest) in Proligo to SKW Americas, I(8KW). As payment for the Interest,
the Company received $15.0 million in cash and% #&erest in PerSeptive Biosystems GmbH, a compahkiamburg, Germany (Hamburg
Company), which specializes in the manufactureusfeoside phosphoramidite monomers. The 49% irttearése Hamburg Company had a
fair market value of approximately $5.5 million.dddition, SKW agreed to pay the Company $3.0 amilin guaranteed payments
(discounted at 8.5% for gain recognition purposes) up to $20.5 million in performance-based miless over the next four years. Gilead
received the full $3.0 million of guaranteed paytserom SKW over the past three years. In 199%4gilalso received a performance-based
milestone payment of $1.0 million that was includedontract revenue. As part of the original tesi®n, the Company contributed
$4.9 million and its 49% interest in the Hamburg'@any to Proligo. The Company recorded a $22.lionifjain in connection with this se
in 1998. SKW contributed $5.1 million and the reniag 51% interest in the Hamburg Company to Prol&jso in connection with this
transaction, the Company and Proligo agreed traigerwould manufacture oligonucleotides requirgdiie Company at cost plus a fixed
percentage. The Company purchased oligonucledtidesProligo for a total of $0.5 million up throu@®00. No purchases were made in
2001. The purchases up through 2000 were chargeé&fexpense.

In January 2000 and October 1999, Gileadent&o additional cash investments in Proligo ftotal of $5.0 million to maintain its 49%
ownership interest in Proligo. Gilead had no commaitts to provide additional funding to Proligo beg@anuary 2000.

The Company accounted for its investmerrioligo using the equity method of accounting. kebook value of its investment was
$6.9 million at December 31, 2000 and is reportedther
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noncurrent assets on the Company's consolidateddmbkheet. In 2001, Gilead recorded $2.1 mill®equity in the loss of Proligo prior to
the date of the sale. In 2000, we recognized $2l®mequity in Proligo's net loss, representing d9% share of Proligo's loss for the
thirteen-month period ended December 31, 2000.Agutie fourth quarter of 2000, Proligo changedistsal year end to December 31 from
November 30. In 1999, Gilead recorded $4.7 milkgpity in the loss of Proligo for Proligo's fisgedar ended November 31, 19

During 2001, Gilead sold its 49% interesProligo to Degussa Corporation for $14.3 milliorcash. The proceeds, net of Gilead's
investment in Proligo, are reflected as an $8.8anilgain on the sale of unconsolidated affiliate.

11. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

Long-term obligations consist of the foliog (in thousands):

December 31,

2001 2000

Capital lease obligations: monthly installmentserast rates ranging

from 7.98% to 21.029 $ 1,466 $ 3,617
Fixed rate debt: monthly installments through 208R;ured by

equipment; interest rates ranging from 11.49% t80% 41k 1,76(
Total lon¢-term obligations 1,881 5,272
Less current portio (1,492 (3,039
Long-term obligations due after one ye $ 38¢ % 2,23¢

Maturities of long-term obligations, inciagd capital lease obligations, are as follows fiousands):

Year

2002 $ 1,61¢
2003 23¢



2004 10€

2005 74
2006 74
Thereafte 12
2,11¢

Less amount representing inter (237)
Total $ 1,881
]

The terms of the various debt agreemeisire the Company to comply with certain finaneat operating covenants. At Decembel
2001, the Company was in compliance with all sumreaants.
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12. CONVERTIBLE SUBORDINATED NOTES AND DEBENTURES

On December 13, 2000, Gilead issued $23bmbf 5% convertible subordinated notes due Deler 15, 2007 in a private offering to
J.P. Morgan & Co., Lehman Brothers and Morgan &tablean Whitter, which resold the notes to privastitutional investors. The notes are
convertible into a total of up to 10,178,116 share&ilead common stock at $24.5625 per share.$PHe5625 conversion price is higher tl
Gilead's common stock price on the note's issue déte notes are redeemable in whole or in patieabption of the Company, at any time
on or after December 20, 2003, at specified rediemptrices plus accrued interest. Debt issuances @fs58.2 million incurred in connection
with the issuance of the notes were recorded & attncurrent assets, and are being amortizeddest expense on a straidime basis ove
the contractual term of the notes.

During the third quarter of 1997, Gileaslusd $80.0 million of 6.25% convertible subordidatebentures due 2004 in a private offering
to SBC Warburg Inc. and Oppenheimer & Co., Inc.ichvltesold the debentures to a group of privatestwrs. The debentures were issued
pursuant to an indenture and were convertibleantital of up to 7,179,376 shares of Gilead comstook at $11.14 per share. The
debentures were redeemable in whole or in patieadption of the Company, at any time on or aftegust 10, 2000, at specified redemption
prices plus accrued interest. Gilead called thedlves for redemption on August 15, 2000 at a pask of $1,030 per $1,000 principal
amount of debentures outstanding, plus accruedestievhich was the redemption price provided fiathie original debenture indenture. The
entire $79.5 million in principal amount of the @eltures outstanding at that time was convertedrit85,156 newly issued shares of Gilead
common stock prior to August 15, 2000. Deferredtdehuance costs of $1.6 million that related ndebentures were charged to additional
paid in capital in connection with the conversidriihe debentures into common stock.

13. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Leases Arrangements

The Company has entered into various lemgrtnoncancelable operating leases for facilitigsdster City and San Dimas, California.
The leases expire on various dates in 2003 and. Z4th of the leases has two five-year renewaboptiwith the exception of one lease in
Foster City that expires in 2003 and contains mewal options. The Company has operating leasesafes, marketing and administrative
facilities in Europe and Australia with variousrtes, and miscellaneous equipment leases.

Rent expense net of sublease income uhdeEompany's operating leases totaled approxim@fedy0 million in 2001, $8.6 million in
2000 and $7.9 million in 1999.

The Company has entered into capital lesisance equipment purchases and facilities anpments. Title to assets acquired under
lease lines of credit resides with the lessor. Thmpany has the option to purchase the assete anthof the lease terms at fair market v
The leases have remaining terms of up to threesydaDecember 31, 2001, no additional amounts \agedlable under these agreements.
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Aggregate noncancelable future minimumalkepayments under operating and capital leasegfragigregate future minimum rentals to
be received by the Company under noncancelableasds, are as follows (in thousands):

Operating Leases, Net of
Years ending December 31, Noncancelable Subleases Capital Leases



2002 $ 10,347 $ 1,291

2003 10,11 111
2004 6,98¢ 10€
2005 7,202 74
2006 4,06¢ 74
Thereafte 1,27¢ 12
$ 39,99¢ 1,66¢

| |

Less amount representing inter (202)
Total capital lease obligatiol 1,46¢€
Less current portio (1,199
Capital lease obligations due after one y $ 26¢
I

At December 31, 2001, the Company has pgl&6e5 million in a bank escrow deposit to secgragate future payments due under one
of its facilities leases.

Contingent Liability

Gilead has subleased certain of its faedjtprimarily in California, through 2003. If anythe sublessees default on their obligations
under these subleases, the Company would be piyrliakile to the original lessor. The total amodoe under these leases as of
December 31, 2001 is $1.4 million.

Line of Credit

Through April 2001, we maintained a $10i0iam unsecured line of credit that bears intergsa floating rate with a major financial
institution. Under the terms of the line of credie were required to maintain certain financialosand there were limitations on our ability
to incur additional debt or to engage in certagmBicant transactions. The line of credit, whidkeluded a foreign exchange facility, expire:
April 2001. We renewed the foreign exchange fagilitut did not renew the line of credit. There aocerequired financial ratios or limitations
on debt or other transactions under the foreigmamge facility.

Legal Proceedings

On August 11, 1997, the Company and Elarp@mation, plc (Elan, the successor company tollihesome Company, Inc.) reached a
settlement (Settlement Agreement) in which both panmies agreed to dismiss all legal proceedingdwing AmBisome, Gilead's liposomal
formulation of amphotericin B. In the Settlementrégment, Elan granted the Company immunity frorhiautonnection with the worldwide
production and sales of AmBisome and a worldwidatrto use two of
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their patents. Under the terms of the Settlememe&ment, Gilead made an initial payment to Ela$ilo8 million and was required to make
payments beginning in 1998 based on AmBisome salesthe next several years. Because the paymenssibject to certain minimum and
maximum amounts, the Company recorded accountiaggel in 1997 of $11.8 million, of which $10.0 moill represented the net present
value of all future minimum payments and $1.8 miilrepresented the initial cash payment. Beginmirk98, Gilead records an expense
each quarter based on the difference betweentaliefuminimum payments and the expense recordefldid.1n addition, beginning in 1998,
the Company is recognizing as cost of goods s@dlifierence between the minimum and maximum paysyémany. Gilead does not expect
the difference between its future minimum and maximpayments to Elan to be material.

The Company is involved from time to tinmdégal proceedings arising in the ordinary cowfsiés business. In the opinion of
management, none of these matters is expected/éochanaterial adverse effect on the financial pawsior operations of the Company based
on factors currently known to management.

14. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Stock Split

On February 22, 2001 and on March 8, 2@i2ad completed tw-for-one stock splits, effected in the form of a stoskd®nd, to



stockholders of record as of February 2, 2001 afuary 14, 2002, respectively. Accordingly, alishand per share amounts for all periods
presented have been restated to reflect both séthglits.

Preferred Stock

The Company has 5,000,000 shares of aa#tpreferred stock issuable in series. The Comp&unard of Directors (Board) is
authorized to determine the designation, poweefepences and rights of any such series. The Coytmreserved 400,000 shares of
preferred stock for potential issuance under tledéePred Share Purchase Rights Plan.

In June 1997, the Company issued 1,133si&6es of Series B Convertible Preferred Stocki¢fedl Stock) to Pharmacia for
approximately $40.0 million, or $35.28 per shara.Joly 15, 1999, the average of the closing prid8itead's common stock for the thirty
days then ended was $12.45. This event triggeredutomatic conversion of the Preferred Stock owneBharmacia into the Company's
common stock. Accordingly, the Preferred Stock ested into 4,535,144 shares of common stock aice pf $8.82 per share on July 16,
1999. There was no preferred stock outstandindg Becember 31, 2001.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

Under Gilead's Employee Stock Purchase @&®P), employees can purchase shares of Gileaohon stock based on a percentage of
their compensation. The purchase price per shast egual at least the lower of 85 percent of theketavalue on the date offered or the date
purchased. A total of 6,320,000 shares of commackdtave been reserved for issuance under the E&RH.
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December 31, 2001, 4,300,708 shares of the totmesheserved had been issued under the ESPP,{@23%hares as of December 31, 20
Stock Option Plans

In December 1987, Gilead adopted the 188@ritive Stock Option Plan and the SupplementalkSBption Plan for issuance of
common stock to employees, consultants and sdeatifvisors. In April 1991, the Board approved ghanting of certain additional
nonqualified stock options with terms and condisieubstantially similar to those granted underl®®7 Supplemental Stock Option Plan.
None of the options described above had exercisepthat were less than the fair value of the dyuhg stock on the date of grant. T
options vest over five years pursuant to a forndeteermined by the Board and expire after ten y@éwsshares are available for grant of fu
options under any of these plans.

In November 1991, Gilead adopted the 19@tkKOption Plan (1991 Plan) for issuance of commstock to employees and consultants.
Options issued under the 1991 Plan shall, at therelion of the Board, be either incentive stockoms or nonqualified stock options. In
May 1998, the 1991 Plan was amended such thaixdreise price of all stock options must be at leggtal to the fair value of Gilead's
common stock on the date of grant. The options @est five years pursuant to a formula determingthle Board and expire after ten years.
In May 2001 the stockholders approved an Amendreetite 1991 Plan that increased the total numbautiforized shares under the plan
from 43,000,000 to 47,000,000. At December 31, 2@tdre were 11,911,158 shares available for grafuiture options under the 1991 Plan.

In November 1995, Gilead adopted the 196B6-Employee Directors' Stock Option Plan (Direct®lan) for issuance of common stock
to nonemployee Directors pursuant to a predetermineddtanThe exercise price of options granted undetiectors' Plan must be at le
equal to the fair value of Gilead's common stockhendate of grant. The options vest over five géanm the date of grant in quarterly five
percent installments and expire after ten yearDédember 31, 2001, there were 463,200 sharesablafor grant of future options under
Directors' Plan.

Stock plans assumed by Gilead in the mesitarNeXstar include the 1988 Stock Option Pla@88 Plan), the 1993 Incentive Stock
Plan, and the 1995 Director Option Plan (colledsivBleXstar Plans). Options pursuant to the 19&®ISOption Plan and the 1993 Incentive
Stock Plan that were issued and outstanding aslpP9, 1999 have been converted into options tolpse Gilead common stock as a result
of the Merger and remain subject to their origiteains and conditions. No shares are availablerfmtgpf future options under any of the
NeXstar Plans

NeXstar's 1988 Plan allows certain optiofdars to execute cashless exercises of optiorschshless exercise transaction, the option
holder specifies how many shares will be exercesstithe Company issues the specified number oéshkess the number that would be
required to cover the exercise price based onaineélue of the stock on the exercise date. Du2idgl, 2000 and 1999, several option
holders performed cashless exercises. As a rasugh, option awards are considered to be varialdetharefore, the Company recognized
compensation expense of $0.6 million in 2001, $0ifon in 2000 and $2.3 million in 1999. Of the@Damount, $0.5 million relates to
exercised
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options and the remaining $0.1 million relatesptians that remain outstanding under the 1988 Bid»ecember 31, 2001.

The following table summarizes activity endll Gilead and NeXstar stock option plans fateaf the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2001. All option grants presentethéntéble had exercise prices not less than thedhie of the underlying stock on the grant
date (shares in thousands):

Year ended December 31,

2001 2000 1999

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Average Average average

Exercise Exercise Exercise

Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price

Outstanding, beginning of ye 21,67: $ 11.0¢ 22,52« $ 8.3¢ 2262 % 6.1¢
Granted 6,70¢ 21.11 6,06/ 17.1¢ 6,67¢ 13.71
Forfeited (2,596 16.1C (2,209 10.9¢ (1,489 8.4C
Exercised (4,09¢) 7.5¢ (4,709 5.7¢ (5,2972) 5.3¢
Outstanding, end of ye. 21,68t $ 14.2¢ 21,67: $ 11.0¢ 22,52¢ $ 8.34
I I I I N
Exercisable, end of ye 9,02: $ 9.6z 8,45 $ 7.31 9,10¢ $ 5.64
Weighted average fair value of options grar $ 14.2¢ $ 11.2¢ $ 8.3¢

The following is a summary of Gilead opSasutstanding and options exercisable at Decenthe2@1 (options in thousands):

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted
Average Weighted
Remaining Average Weighted
Options Contractual Exercise Options Average
Range of Exercise Prices Outstanding Life in Years Price Exercisable Exercise price
$1.94-$6.81 4,80¢ 5.01 $ 5.4¢€ 3,60¢ $ 5.2t
$6.94-$14.16 4,95; 5.9¢ $ 10.5: 3,11t $ 9.5¢
$14.6(-$14.81 5,77¢ 83t $ 14.72 1,31C $ 14.6¢
$15.0-$34.33 6,152 8.9¢ $ 23.6¢ 98¢ $ 19.0C
Total 21,68¢ 724 % 14.2¢ 9,022 $ 9.62
— —
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14. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Pro Forma Disclosures
The table below presents the combinednu&me (loss) and basic and diluted net income)(lestscommon share if compensation cost

for the Gilead and NeXstar stock option plans dr@dESPP had been determined based on the estifaatealue of awards under those pl:
on the grant or purchase date.

Year Ended December 31,

2001 2000 1999
Pro forma net income (loss) (in thousan $ 2,19C $ 91,779 $ (93,81¢)
Pro forma net income (loss) per common s—basic $ 0.01 $ (0.50 $ (0.55)
Pro forma net income (loss) per common s—diluted $ 0.01 $ (0.50 $ (0.585)

Fair values of awards granted under theksbption plans and ESPP were estimated at grgmirchase dates using a Bl-Scholes



option pricing model. The Company used the multggéon approach and the following assumptions:

Year Ended December 31,

2001 2000 1999

Expected life in years (from vesting dat

Stock options 1.9t 1.8¢ 1.8¢

ESPP 1.2¢ 1.4t 1.21
Discount rate

Stock options 4.€% 6.2% 5.€%

ESPP 4.7% 5.5% 5.C%
Volatility 83% 84% 67%
Expected dividend yiel 0% 0% 0%

The weighted average estimated fair vafUeSPP shares purchased was $11.57 for 2001, §&.@600 and $4.06 for 1999.
Preferred Share Purchase Rights Plan

In November 1994, the Company adopted &efszl Share Purchase Rights Plan. The plan prevaitehe distribution of a preferred
stock purchase right as a dividend for each shia@lead common stock. The purchase rights arecnoently exercisable. Under certain
conditions involving an acquisition or proposedusiiion by any person or group of 15% or morehaf Company's common stock, the
purchase rights permit the holders (other tharl&% holder) to purchase Gilead common stock ata 8i8count from the market price at
that time, upon payment of a specified exerciseggper purchase right. In addition, in the evertesfain business combinations, the purc
rights permit the purchase of the common stocknadi@quirer at a 50% discount from the market paicéhat time. Under certain conditions,
the purchase rights may be redeemed by the Boantidte, but not in part, at a price of $.0025 parcpase right. The purchase rights have
no voting privileges and are attached to and auticaily trade with Gilead common stock.
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In October 1999, the Board of Directorsrappd an amendment to the purchase rights planaff@dment provided, among other
things, for an increase in the exercise price flat under the plan from $15 to $100 and an exéensf the term of the plan from
November 21, 2004 to October 20, 20

Acceleration of Stock Options

In December 2001, we completed the satmiobncology assets to OSI. As part of this tratisacwe accelerated approximately 78,000
options to purchase Gilead common stock with aevafu$2.8 million. See Note 4 for further discussio

15. COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

The following reclassification adjustmeatg required to avoid doubt®munting net realized gains (losses) on salesafrgges that wer
previously included in comprehensive income priothie sales of the securities (in thousands):

Year ended December 31,

2001 2000 1999
Net gain (loss) on sales of securities includeuhtarest income $ 1228 3 84 % (389
| | ]

Other comprehensive incorr
Net unrealized gain (loss) arising during the y $ 896( $ 1981 $ (1,989
Reclassification adjustme (1,22%) 84 38:

Net unrealized gain (loss) reported in other comensive incom: $ 7,73t $ 2071 $ (1,602

The balance of accumulated other comprebeinscome (loss) as reported on the balance sfwsists of the following components (in
thousands):

December 31,



2001 2000

Net unrealized gain on availa-for-sale securitie $ 8241 $ 512
Net unrealized gain on cash flow hed 37 —
Net foreign currency translation lo (83€) (1,417)

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) $ 744 % (907)

16. DISCLOSURES ABOUT SEGMENTS OF AN ENTERPRISEAND RELATED INFORMATION

The Company has determined that it has oné/reportable segment because management haizedythe business along its functio
lines.
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Product sales consist of the followingtfiousands):
Year ended December 31,
2001 2000 1999
AmBisome $ 164,530 $ 141,11¢ $ 129,17°
Viread 15,58¢ — —
Other 10,85! 8,591 10,71:

$ 190,97 $ 149,70¢ $ 139,89(

The following table summarizes revenuemfexternal customers and collaborative partnergdmgraphic region. Revenues are
attributed to countries based on the location efdisstomer or collaborative partner (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2001 2000 1999
United State: $ 63,88¢ $ 37,47¢ $ 28,38¢
United Kingdom 28,53: 23,827 19,25¢
Germany 19,25¢ 21,34( 21,64
Italy 18,78 16,97¢ 16,29:
Spain 18,28 15,07« 14,62t
France 16,77¢ 9,52¢ 8,341
Switzerlanc 7,721 21,53 15,76
Other European countrit 40,49¢ 32,05:¢ 31,50(
Other countrie! 20,03: 17,74¢ 13,15¢
Consolidated total revenu $ 233,76¢ $ 195,55 $ 168,97¢

] ]

At December 31, 2001, the net book valuthefCompany's property, plant and equipment was8h@illion. Approximately 94% of
such assets were located in the United Stateseaé@ber 31, 2000, the net book value of propelant@nd equipment was $55.2 million,
and approximately 95% of such assets were locatétki United States.

Product sales to any one distributor in1261@l not exceed 10% of total revenues. Produetsdal one distributor accounted for
approximately 12% of total revenues in 2000 and 11%999. Total revenues from Fujisawa Healthchre, which included product sales
and royalties, were approximately 15% of total reves in 2001, 13% in 2000, and 11% in 1999. Rev&froen Roche, including royalties,
milestone payments and reimbursement of researthl@relopment expenses, did not exceed 10% ofrtahues in 2001 or in 1999, but
did account for approximately 11% of total revenine2000.
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17. INCOME TAXES

The Company has no deferred provisionriooine taxes. The current provision for income taxesisted of the following (in
thousands):

Year ended December 31,

2001 2000 1999

Current provision
Federal $ 280C $ — $ 65
State 50€ 21 30
Foreign 82¢ 1,17¢ 798

$ 413% $ 119¢ $ 88t

Foreign pre-tax income (loss) was $(67.8)an in 2001, $(40.3) million in 2000 and $2.0 liiwn in 1999.

The difference between the provision faretaon income and the amount computed by applyiedederal statutory income tax rate to
income before provision for income taxes, equitioss of unconsolidated affiliate and the cumukfect of a change in accounting
principle is explained below (in thousands):

Year ended December 31,

2001 2000 1999
Income (loss) before provision for income taxesiggn loss of
unconsolidated affiliate and the cumulative effgich change in
accounting principlt $ 57,447 $ (39,049 $ (60,947
& . |
Tax at federal statutory ra $ 1953 $ (13,27) $ (20,720
(Benefitted) unbenefitted loss (29,339 13,617 21,074
Federal alternative minimum tax 2,80( — —
Other 1,142 85¢ 534
$ 4,13t % 1,19¢ $ 88¢

At December 31, 2001, the Company had fé@ral net operating loss carryforwards of $418ilion and state net operating loss
carryforwards of $25.0 million. The federal net mgigng loss carryforwards will expire at variougetabeginning in 2010 through 2020, if |
utilized. The state net operating loss carryfonsasill expire at various dates from 2002 through 20f not utilized. In addition, the
Company had federal and state tax credit carryfatsaf approximately $27.2 million and $15.3 mitlicespectively, which expire in the
years 2003 through 202

Utilization of net operating losses anddiiemay be subject to an annual limitation duewmership change limitations provided in the
Internal Revenue Code and similar state provisidhs annual limitation may result in the expiratiof the net operating losses and credits
before utilization.
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17. INCOME TAXES (Continued)

Deferred income taxes reflect the net téeces of temporary differences between the cagyimounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the amounts usethfome tax purposes. Significant componentfi@f@ompany's deferred tax assets and
liabilities as of December 31, 2001 and 2000 ar®kmsws (in thousands):

December 31,




2001 2000

Net operating loss carryforwar $ 142,400 $ 166,50(
Research and other crec 37,30( 35,40(
Capitalized R&D for Californie 14,40( 17,10(
Other, ne 18,60( 9,60(

Total deferred tax assets 212,70( 228,60(
Valuation allowanct (212,700 (228,600)
Net deferred tax assets recogni $ — 3 —

The valuation allowance decreased by $a#li#n for the year ended December 31, 2001, aedeased by $34.4 million for the year
ended December 31, 2000. Approximately $33.8 nnilbbthe valuation allowance at December 31, 2@Mdtes to the tax benefits of stock
option deductions, which will be credited to additl paid-in capital when realized.

18. RETIREMENT SAVINGS PLAN

As of December 31, 2001, the Company maistane retirement savings plan under which elegérhployees may defer compensation
for income tax purposes under Section 401(k) ofternal Revenue Code. Prior to January 1, 2002a@ maintained two separate
retirement savings plans. One plan primarily coddogmer NeXstar employees (NeXstar Plan), andbther plan primarily covered Gilead's
remaining eligible employees (Gilead Plan). Undher NleXstar Plan, employee contributions could moeed 15% of eligible annual
compensation. In addition, the NeXstar Plan inctld€Company match of 50% of employee contributigm$éo a maximum of 6% of
contributions up to an annual maximum Company maf@2,500. At December 31, 2000, approximately$8illion, representing 13,857
shares of Gilead common stock, was held by the ia>an in trust for plan participants. Effectdenuary 2001, the NeXstar Plan was
terminated and combined with the Gilead Plan. Tages of Gilead common stock held by the NeXstan Rlere subsequently liquidated
the proceeds were deposited into the various ativestment options available under the Gilead plinder the Gilead Plan, employees may
contribute up to 15% of their eligible annual comgegtion. Effective January 1, 2000, Gilead begakimgamatching contributions under the
Gilead Plan. The Company contributes up to 50%nafraployee'’s first 6% of contributions up to anwimaximum Company match of
$2,500. The Company's total matching contribution for thHee&l Plan was $1.2 million in 2001, a combined®$illion in 2000 for both
plans and $0.5 million in 1999 for the NeXstar Plan
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19. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Through December 31, 2000, the Chairma@Bilefad's Board of Directors was a senior advis@rtonvestment fund that owns a
controlling interest in PharmaResearch Corporatiorpntract research organization that performgécees in connection with clinical studies.
Gilead's payments to PharmaResearch Corporatios $&.2 million in 2000 and $6.7 million in 1999.

20. QUARTERLY RESULTS (UNAUDITED)

The following table is in thousands, exge@t share amounts:

1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter

2001(1)(3)(4)(5)
Total revenue $ 57,83t $ 50,687 $ 50,91t $ 74,33
Total costs and expens 83,63¢ 84,58: 86,98: 99,25¢
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of changadoounting
principle (22,817 (32,387 (25,19¢) 131,57
Cumulative effect of change in accounting princi 1,08¢ — — —
Net loss (21,729 (32,389 (25,19¢) 131,57
Amounts per common sh«basic:

Income (loss) before cumulative effect of changadoounting

principle $ (0.12) $ 0.1 $ (0.19) $ 0.6¢

Cumulative effect of change in accounting princ 0.01 — — —

Net income (loss) per sh—basic $ (0.1 $ 0.1 $ 0.19) $ 0.6¢

Amounts per common shi—diluted:



Income (loss) before cumulative effect of changadoounting

principle $ 0.12) $ 0.17) $ 0.19) $ 0.62
Cumulative effect of change in accounting princ 0.01 — — —
Net income (loss) per shi—diluted $ 0.1 $ 0.19) $ 0.19 $ 0.6
I I I I
1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter
2000(2)(3)
Total revenue $ 47,71.  $ 50,12¢ $ 4523¢ $ 52,47¢
Total costs and expens 52,16: 55,76¢ 66,03( 73,91¢
Loss before cumulative effect of change in accogntirinciple (3,277 (4,03¢€) (17,419 (18,385
Cumulative effect of change in accounting princi (13,670 — —
Net loss (16,94 (4,036 (17,414 (18,38%)

Basic and diluted amounts per shi
Loss before cumulative effect of change in accagnti

principle $ (0.03 $ (0.02) $ (0.09 % (0.10
Cumulative effect of change in accounting princi (0.07) — — —
Net loss $ (0.10) $ 0.09) $ 0.09 $ (0.10

Q) In the year ended December 31, 2001, Gilead ad&fédb133 and reported a cumulative effect of a ghan accounting principle in
the first quarter of 2001.
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(2) In the year ended December 31, 2000, we adopted IRABand reported a cumulative effect of a changecounting principle. The
accounting change was adopted in the fourth quaft2®00, effective as of the first quarter of 208Ad the first three quarters of 2(
were restated to retroactively reflect the change.

?3) On February 22, 2001 and on March 8, 2002, Gilesdpteted two-for-one stock splits, effected in fiblen of a stock dividend, to
stockholders of record as of February 2, 2001 ariutrary 14, 2002, respectively. Accordingly, alishand per share amounts for all
periods presented have been restated to reflelctdidhese splits.

4) Diluted net income per common share in the fouddrter of 2001 includes the effects of both stooiams and the $250.0 million 5
convertible subordinated notes.

(5) In December 2001, we completed the sale of ourloggassets to OSI. The Company recorded a noratipgrgain of
$157.8 million in the fourth quarter of 2001 asault of this transaction.
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Schedule II: Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

Additions
Balance at Balance at
Beginning of Charged to Charged to End of
Period Expense Other Deductions Period
Year ended December 31, 20!
Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 2,30 $ 467 $ — $ 18¢€ $ 2,57¢
Valuation allowance for deferred tax
asset: 228,60( — — 15,90( (1) 212,70(

$ 230,90 $ 467 $ — $ 16,08¢ $ 215,27¢



Year ended December 31, 20!

Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 233 $ 30 $ — $ 63 $ 2,30(

Valuation allowance for deferred tax

assett 194,20( — 34,40( (2) — 228,60(
$ 196,53 $ 30 % 34,40( $ 63 $ 230,90(
I I I I L]

Year ended December 31, 19

Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 1,48 $ 1,05¢ $ — $ 20€ $ 2,33¢

Valuation allowance for deferred tax

asset 170,61: — 23,58¢ (2) — 194,20(
$ 172,09. $ 1,05¢ % 23,58¢ $ 20€ $ 196,53
I I I I I

Q) Charged against current tax expense.

2) Charged to deferred tax benefit.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of SectioorlB5(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Registrant has duly caused this Report to
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, théoedmly authorized.

GILEAD SCIENCES, INC.

By: /s/ JOHN C. MARTIN

John C. Martin
President and Chief Executive Offic

POWER OF ATTORNEY KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THE$IRESENTS, that each person whose signature appelarg constitutes
and appoints John C. Martin and Mark L. Perry, @ach of them, as his true and lawful attorneysatt-&nd agents, with full power of
substitution and resubstitution, for him or her amdlis or her name, place, and stead, in any Hépacities, to sign any and all amendm
to this Report, and to file the same, with all dsisi thereto, and other documents in connectioretii¢gh, with the Securities and Exchange
Commission, granting unto said attorneys-in-fact agents, and each of them, full power and authtoitio and perform each and every act
and thing requisite and necessary to be done ineattion therewith, as fully to all intents and pasps as he might or could do in person,
hereby ratifying and confirming that all said atteys-in-fact and agents, or any of them or thehisisubstitute or substitutes, may lawfully
do or cause to be done by virtue hereof. Purswethiet requirements of the Securities Exchange At984, this Report has been signed
below by the following persons on behalf of the Regnt and in the capacities and on the datesaeli.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Seeariixchange Act of 1934, this Report has beeresidpelow by the following persons on
behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities@nthe dates indicated.

Signature Title Date

/s/ JOHN C. MARTIN President and Chief Executive Officer,

Director (Principal Executive Officer) March 25, 200

John C. Martir

/sl SHARON SURREY-BARBARI Vice President, Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting March 25, 200
Sharon Surre-Barbari Officer)

/sl JAMES M. DENNY Chairman of the Board of Directors March 25, 200




James M. Denn

/sl PAUL BERG

Director March 25, 200
Paul Berg
/s/ ETIENNE F. DAVIGNON
Director March 25, 200
Etienne F. Davigno
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/sl CORDELL W. HULL
Director March 25, 200
Cordell W. Hull
/sl GORDON E. MOORE
Director March 25, 200
Gordon E. Moort
/s/ GEORGE P. SHULTZ
Director March 25, 200
George P. Shult
/sl GAYLE E. WILSON
Director March 25, 200
Gayle E. Wilsor
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THE CORPORATEPLAN FOR RETIREMENT SELECT PLAN

BASIC PLAN DOCUMENT
IMPORTANT NOTE

This document is not an IRS approved Prototype.AarAdopting Employer may not rely solely on tRikn to ensure that the Plan is
"unfunded and maintained primarily for the purpo§eroviding deferred compensation to a select grmumanagement or highly
compensated employees" and exempt from parts Aghré of Title | of the Employee Retirement Inco8ecurity Act of 1974 with respect
to the Employer's particular situation. Fidelity hMaement Trust Company, its affiliates and emplsyeay not provide you with legal advi
in connection with the execution of this documéthtis document should be reviewed by your attornme/@ accountant prior to execution.
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PREAMBLE

It is the intention of the Employer to establish heein an unfunded plan maintained solely for the pupose of providing deferred
compensation for non-employee members of the Boaxf Directors and a select group of management or §hly compensated
employees for purposes of Title | of ERISA.

1. ADOPTION AGREEMENT.
2. DEFINITIONS.
2.1 Definitions.

(&) Wherever used herein, the following terms haeetfeanings set forth below, unless a different rimggis clearly required
by the context:

(1) "Account" means an account established on th&$obthe Employer for the purpose of recording anis credited
on behalf of a Participant and any income, expergagns or losses included thereon.

(2) "Administrator" means the Employer adopting tRian, or other person designated by the Employ8ettion 1.1

(b).

(3) "Adoption Agreement" means Article 1 under whihe Employer establishes and adopts or amendddaheaRd
designates the optional provisions selected bythployer. The provisions of the Adoption Agreems&imdll be an integral part
of the Plan.

(4) "Beneficiary" means the person or persons edtiileder Section 7.2 to receive benefits under the &pon the dea
of a Participant.

(5) "Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986&nsended from time to time.

(6) "Compensation" shall mean for purposes of ArticlE€ontributions) wages as defined in Section g4af the Cod
and all other payments of compensation to an enegldyy the employer (in the course of the employrade or business) for
which the employer is required to finish the empleyw written statement under Section 6041(d) abd @)(3) of the Code,
excluding any items elected by the Employer in ®act.4, reimbursements or other expense allowarficgege benefits (cash
and non-cash), moving expenses, deferred compensatd welfare benefits, but including amounts #ratnot includable in
the gross income of the Participant under a sakdyction agreement by reason of the applicatidBeations 125, 402(e)(3),
402(h), or 403(b) of the Code. Compensation mustdtermined without regard to any rules under $ac3401(a) of the Code
that limit the remuneration included in wages basedhe nature or location of the employment orghevices performed (sur
as the exception for agricultural labor in Sectéd®1(a)(2) of the Code). Notwithstanding the foiagpCompensation shall
not include employee referral awards or severaagenpnts.

Compensation shall generally be based emthount that would have been actually paid td*#micipant during the Plan Year but for
election under Section 4.1.

In the case of any Self-Employed Individoahn Owner-Employee Compensation shall meanntigitiual's Earned Income.

(7) "Earned Income" means the net earnings of aBalfloyed Individual derived from the trade or besis with
respect to which the Plan is established and faclwthe personal services of such individual anes¢erial income-providing
factor, excluding any items not included in grassoime and the deductions allocated to such itexegpe that for taxable ye:
beginning after December 31, 1989 net earningd bhaletermined with regard

1

to the deduction allowed under Section 164(f) ef @ode, to the extent applicable to the Employet.éérnings shall be
reduced by contributions of the Employer to anylifjed plan, to the extent a deduction is allowedhe Employer for such
contributions under Section 404 of the Code.

(8) "Employee" means any employee of the Employdf-Employed Individual or Own-Employee.



(9) "Employer" means the employer named in Secti@@).and any Related Employers designated in Sett(b).
(10) "Employment Commencement Date" means the datehichwthe Employee first performs an Hour of Service
(11) "ERISA" means the Employee Retirement Income ScAct of 1974, as from time to time amended.

(12) "Fidelity Fund" means any Registered Investmenh@any which is made available to plans utilizing th
CORPORATEplan for Retirement Select Plan.

(13) "Fund Share" means the share, unit, or other acielef ownership in a Fidelity Fund.
(14) "Hour of Service" means, with respect to any Emet

(A) Each hour for which the Employee is directly mdirectly paid, or entitled to payment, for thefpemance o
duties for the Employer or a Related Employer, eaah hour to be credited to the Employee for thraputation
period in which the duties were performed;

(B) Each hour for which the Employee is directlymdirectly paid, or entitled to payment, by the Eaygr or
Related Employer (including payments made or doenfa trust fund or insurer to which the Employentdbutes or
pays premiums) on account of a period of time duviich no duties are performed (irrespective oéthir the
employment relationship has terminated) due to ti@taholiday, illness, incapacity, disability, &, jury duty,
military duty, or leave of absence, each such hoie credited to the Employee for the Eligibil@@mputation Period
in which such period of time occurs, subject toftiiowing rules:

() No more than 501 Hours of Service shall be crediteder this paragraph (B) on account of any single
continuous period during which the Employee performo duties;

(i) Hours of Service shall not be credited under taimgraph (B) for a payment which solely reimbutbe:
Employee for medically-related expenses, or whicinade or due under a plan maintained solely for th
purpose of complying with applicable workmen's cemgation, unemployment compensation or
disability insurance laws; and

(iii)  If the period during which the Employee performsduties falls within two or more computation pest
and if the payment made on account of such pesioai calculated on the basis of units of time, the
Hours of Service credited with respect to suchqukshall be allocated between not more than tke fir
two such computation periods on any reasonable loasisistently applied with respect to similarly
situated Employees; and

(C) Each hour not counted under paragraph (A) orfdByvhich back pay, irrespective of mitigation afrdages,
has been either awarded or agreed to be paid Hyrtipdoyer or a Related Employer, each such hobetoredited to
the Employee for the computation period to whiah dlvard or agreement pertains rather than the ciatigu period ir
which the award agreement or payment is made.

For purposes of determining Hours of Sexrviemployees of the Employer and of all Related IBgeys will be treated as
employed by a single employer. For purposes ofgrapihs (B) and (C) above, Hours of Service wilchiulated in
accordance with the provisions of Section 2530.22(@®) of the Department of Labor regulations which imcorporated here
by reference.

Solely for purposes of determining whethéreak in service for participation purposes lasioed in a computation
period, an individual who is absent from work foaternity or paternity reasons shall receive criedithe hours of service
which would otherwise been credited to such indigicbut for such absence, or in any case in which $iours cannot be
determined, 8 hours of service per day of suchratesd-or purposes of this paragraph, an absengeviiark for maternity
reasons means an absence (1) by reason of theapagof the individual, (2) by reason of a birtheothild of the individual,
(3) by reason of the placement of a child withitidividual in connection with the adoption of sutttild by such individual, or
(4) for purposes of caring for such child for aipéteginning immediately following such birth dapement. The hours of
service credited under this paragraph shall beited{1) in the computation period in which the ettxse begins if the crediting
is necessary to prevent a break in service inglabd, or (2) in all other cases, in the followcmmputation period.

(15) [Reserved.



(16) "OwnerEmployee" means, if the Employer is a sole proprgtip, the individual who is the sole proprietarjf the
Employer is a partnership, a partner who owns rtteaie 10 percent of either the capital intereshergrofits interest of the
partnership.

(17) "Participant” means any Employee or Non-Employ&edor who participates in the Plan in accordanitk
Article 3 hereof.

(18) "Plan" means the plan established by the Emplageset forth herein as a new plan or as an amendman
existing plan, by executing the Adoption Agreeméngether with any and all amendments hereto.

(19) "Plan Year" means the 12-consecutive month petesignated by the Employer in Section 1.1(d).

(20) "Registered Investment Company" means any oneooe gprporations, partnerships or trusts registareter the
Investment Company Act of 1940 for which Fidelitaiagement and Research Company serves as investiivésur.

(21) "Related Employer" means any employer other tharBmployer named in Section 1.2(a), if the Empl@rel such
other employer are members of a controlled grougpgborations (as defined in Section 414(b) ofGloele) or an affiliated
service group (as defined in Section 414(m)), ertedes or businesses (whether or not incorpgrateith are under commc
control (as defined in Section 414(c)), or sucteo#mployer is required to be aggregated with tiglByer pursuant to
regulations issued under Section 414(0).

(22) "Self-Employed Individual* means an individual whas Earned Income for the taxable year from thel&yer or
who would have had Earned Income but for the taat the trade or business had no net profits fotakable year.

3

(23) "Trust" means the trust created by the Employer.

(24) "Trust Agreement" means the agreement betweeRni@oyer and the Trustee, as set forth in a sepagreement,
under which assets are held, administered, and gedrsubject to the claims of the Employer's creglito the event of the
Employer's insolvency, until paid to Plan Particifsaand their Beneficiaries as specified in thenPla

(25) "Trust Fund" means the property held in the Thysthe Trustee.

(26) "Trustee" means the corporation or individualsapied by the Employer to administer the Trusténadance witl
the Trust Agreement.

(27) "Years of Service for Vesting" means, with resgecny Employee, the number of whole years opkisods of
service with the Employer or a Related Employee @lapsed time method to compute vesting senscdject to any
exclusions elected by the Employer in Section 3. Ab Employee will receive credit for the aggregaf all time period(s)
commencing with the Employee's Employment Commeecgate and ending on the date a break in sebégis, unless
any such years are excluded by Section 1.7(b). rpl&ee will also receive credit for any periodseverance of less than 12
consecutive months. Fractional periods of a yeliheiexpressed in terms of days.

In the case of a Participant who has 5 eougve 1-year breaks in service, all years ofiserafter such breaks in service
will be disregarded for the purpose of vestingEneployer-derived account balance that accrued befach breaks, but both
pre-break and post-break service will count forgheposes of vesting the Employer-derived accoatarize that accrues after
such breaks. Both accounts will share in the egeand losses of the fund.

In the case of a Participant who does agelb consecutive 1-year breaks in service, batlpth-break and post-break
service will count in vesting both the pre-breakd @ost-break employer-derived account balance.

A break in service is a period of severaofcat least 12 consecutive months. Period of s is a continuous period of
time during which the Employee is not employed iy Employer. Such period begins on the date thel&mae retires, quits
is discharged, or if earlier, the 12 month anniaerf the date on which the Employee was otherfiiseabsent from service.

In the case of an individual who is abgemin work for maternity or paternity reasons, ttiecbnsecutive month period
beginning on the first anniversary of the firstadaf such absence shall not constitute a brea&rince. For purposes of this
paragraph, an absence from work for maternity ¢erpéy reasons means an absence (1) by reasbe pfégnancy of the
individual, (2) by reason of the birth of a chilfitbe individual, (3) by reason of the placemenaahild with the individual i



connection with the adoption of such child by simtividual, or (4) for purposes of caring for suttild for a period beginnin
immediately following such birth or placement.

If the Plan maintained by the Employethis plan of a predecessor employer, an EmployeeissYd Service for Vesting
shall include years of service with such predeaesstployer. In any case in which the Plan maintiog the Employer is not
the plan maintained by a predecessor employericgeior such predecessor shall be treated as sefimiche Employer to the
extent provided in Section 1.8.

(28) "Annual Retainer" means the annual retainer pa@ Non-Employee Director.
(29) "Bonus" means an Employee's bonus paid pursughet@ompany's Management Bonus Plan.
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(30) "Non-Employee Director" means a non-employee merabthe Board of Directors of the Employer.
(31) "Salary" means an Employee's base salary.

(b) Pronouns used in the Plan are in the masculindegeébut include the feminine gender unless théestrelearly indicates
otherwise.

3. PARTICIPATION.

3.1 Date of Participation. An eligible Employee (as set forth in SectioB(&)) will become a Participant in the Plan onfihst
Entry Date after which he becomes an eligible Eiygtoif he has filed an election pursuant to Sectidn If the eligible Employee does not
file an election pursuant to Section 4.1 prior i®first Entry Date, then the eligible Employeelsiécome a Participant in the Plan as of the
first day of a Plan Year for which he has filededéction.

3.2 Resumption of Participation Following Re eployment. If a Participant ceases to be an Employee lamebafter returns to tl
employ of the Employer he will again become a grdint as of an Entry Date following the date orichthe completes an Hour of Service
for the Employer following his re employment, if isean eligible Employee as defined in Sectiond),3nd has filed an election pursuant to
Section 4.1.

3.3 Cessation or Resumption of Participation Almwing a Change in Status. If any Participant continues in the employlo# t
Employer or Related Employer but ceases to beigiblel Employee as defined in Section 1.3(a), tievidual shall continue to be a
Participant until the entire amount of his benisfilistributed; however, the individual shall net éntitled to make Deferral Contributions or
receive an allocation of Matching contributionsidgrthe period that he is not an eligible Employ®&ach Participant shall continue to receive
credit for service completed during the perioddarposes of determining his vested interest irAlgsisounts. In the event that the individual
subsequently again becomes an eligible Employeanttividual shall resume full participation in acdance with Section 3.1.

3.4 Director Participation. An eligible Non-Employee Director (as set fairttSection 1.3(a)) will become a Participant ia tan
on the first Entry Date after which he becomeslayibde Non-Employee Director if he has filed aretion pursuant to Section 4.1. If the
eligible Non-Employee Director does not file anctilen pursuant to Section 4.1 prior to his firstigrDate, then the eligible Non-Employee
Director will become a Participant in the Plan &the first day of a Plan Year for which he hasdilan election.

4. CONTRIBUTIONS.

4.1 Deferral Contributions. Each Participant may elect to execute a S@aryis/Annual Retainer reduction agreement with the
Employer to reduce his Compensation or Annual Retddy a specified percentage not exceeding theeptage set forth in Section 1.5(a)
and equal to a whole number multiple of one (1rpet. Such agreement shall become effective ofirttelay of the period as set forth in-
Participant's election. The election will be effeetto defer Compensation or Annual Retainer ne¢pto all services performed in the Plan
Year. A new election must be made prior to each Rksar in order for a Participant to continue apttion in the Plan for that Plan Year. A
new election, other than the Participant's iniiaiction under the Plan, will be effective as & finst day of the following Plan Year and will
apply only to Compensation or Annual Retainers plywith respect to services rendered after sutd danounts credited to a Participant's
Account prior to the effective date of any new &tatwill not be affected and will be paid in acdance with that prior election. The
Employer shall credit an amount to the Account n@dired on behalf of the Participant correspondmthe amount of the Compensation or
Annual Retainer reduction. Under no



circumstances may a Salary/Bonus/Annual Retairtkratéon agreement be adopted retroactively. A Eipgiht may not revoke a
Salary/Bonus/Annual Retainer reduction agreemeara flan Year during that year.

4.2 Matching Contributions. If so provided by the Employer in Section 1)5¢be Employer shall make a Matching Contribution
to be credited to the account maintained on betfahch Participant who had Deferral Contributiorede on his behalf during the year and
who meets the requirement, if any, of Section )(B)jbThe amount of the Matching Contribution shmdldetermined in accordance with
Section 1.5(b).

4.3 Time of Making Employer Contributions. The Employer will from time to time make a tséar of assets to the Trustee for
each Plan Year. The Employer shall provide the fBrugiith information on the amount to be credithe separate account of each
Participant maintained under the Trust.

5. PARTICIPANTS' ACCOUNTS.

5.1 Individual Accounts. The Administrator will establish and maintam&ccount for each Participant which will reflect
Matching and Deferral Contributions credited to Aweount on behalf of the Participant and earniegpenses, gains and losses credited
thereto, and deemed investments made with amautite iParticipant's Account. The Administrator w#itablish and maintain such other
accounts and records as it decides in its diserétidoe reasonably required or appropriate in or@eischarge its duties under the Plan.
Participants will be furnished statements of tgicount values at least once each Plan Year.

6. INVESTMENT OF CONTRIBUTIONS.

6.1 Manner of Investment. All amounts credited to the Accounts of Papigcits shall be treated as though invested anderstied
only in eligible investments selected by the Employ Section 1.11(b).

6.2 Investment Decisions. Investments in which the Accounts of Particigashall be treated as invested and reinvestetishal
directed by the Employer or by each Participanhath, in accordance with the Employer's electio8éction 1.11(a).

(@) All dividends, interest, gains and distributiarfsaany nature earned in respect of Fund Shareichwhe Account is treated
as investing shall be credited to the Account asgdh reinvested in additional shares of that Rig&lund.

(b) Expenses attributable to the acquisition of imesits shall be charged to the Account of the €lpant for which such
investment is made.

7. RIGHT TO BENEFITS.

7.1 Distribution Election. Each Participant shall designate on his Saanyis/Annual Retainer reduction agreement eledton
the timing and method of the distribution of Planéfits as provided in Article 8 hereof.
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7.2 Death. If a Participant dies before the distributidrhs Account has commenced, or before such digioh has been
completed, his Account shall become vested in azzare with the vesting schedule elected in Sedtidrand his designated Beneficiary or
Beneficiaries will be entitled to receive the balamr remaining balance of his Account, plus angpuamts thereafter credited to his Account,
subject to the provisions of Section 7.6. Distribntto the Beneficiary or Beneficiaries will be nesith accordance with Article 8.

A Participant may designate a BeneficiarBeneficiaries, or change any prior designatioBeeficiary or Beneficiaries by giving
notice to the Administrator on a form designatedh®s Administrator. If more than one person is gieated as the Beneficiary, their
respective interests shall be as indicated on¢seydation form.

A copy of the death notice or other suéfitidocumentation must be filed with and approwethke Administrator. If upon the death of
the Participant there is, in the opinion of the Awiistrator, no designated Beneficiary for part bo&the Participant's Account, such amount
will be paid to his surviving spouse or, if nonehis estate (such spouse or estate shall be deerbedhe Beneficiary for purposes of the
Plan). If a Beneficiary dies after benefits to sBaneficiary have commenced, but before they haem lzompleted, and, in the opinion of the
Administrator, no person has been designated ®ivesuch remaining benefits, then such benefa# bl paid to the deceased Beneficiary's
estate.

7.3 Other Termination of Employment. If provided by the Employer in Section 1.6aiParticipant terminates his employment



any reason other than death or normal retirementyith be entitled to a termination benefit equali) the vested percentage(s) of the valu
the Matching Contributions to his Account, as adgor income, expense, gain, or loss, such pé&ge(s) determined in accordance with
the vesting schedule(s) selected by the Employ8ettion 1.7, and (ii) the value of the Deferrah@itbutions to his Account as adjusted for
income, expense, gain or loss. The amount payatglerithis Section 7.3 will be subject to the primris of Section 7.6 and will be distribut
in accordance with Article 8.

7.4  Separate Account. If a distribution from a Participant's Accourats been made to him at a time when he has a rieitéibie
right to less than 100 percent of his Account,wbgting schedule in Section 1.7 will thereafterlpammly to amounts in his Account
attributable to Matching Contributions allocateteatuch distribution. The balance of his Accoumtiediately after such distribution will be
transferred to a separate account which will bentaaied for the purpose of determining his intetlestein according to the following
provisions.

At any relevant time prior to a forfeituw€any portion thereof under Section 7.5, a Pandint's nonforfeitable interest in his Account
held in a separate account described in the pnegexdiragraph will be equal to P(AB + (RxD))-(RxBere P is the nonforfeitable
percentage at the relevant time determined undetioBe7.5; AB is the account balance of the sepamatount at the relevant time; D is the
amount of the distribution; and R is the ratiotod account balance at the relevant time to theusmtdmalance after distribution. Following a
forfeiture of any portion of such separate accauntter Section 7.5 below, any balance in the Ppditis separate account will remain fully
vested and nonforfeitable.

7.5 Forfeitures. If a Participant terminates his employment, paxtion of his Account (including any amounts dted after his
termination of employment) not payable to him un8ection 7.3 will be forfeited by him. For purposdshis paragraph, if the value of a
Participant's vested account balance is zero, dinicpant shall be deemed to have received aildigton of his vested interest immediately
following termination of employment. Such forfeigsrwill be applied to reduce the contributionshef Employer under the Plan (or
administrative expenses of the Plan).

7.6  Adjustment for Investment Experience. If any distribution under this Article 7 is notade in a single payment, the amount
remaining in the Account after the distributionIvibié subject to adjustment until distributed tdeef the income and gain or loss on the
investments in which such amount is treated asstedeand any expenses properly charged underaineaRH Trust to such amounts.

7.7 Hardship Withdrawals. Subiject to the provisions of Article 8, a Rapéant shall not be permitted to withdraw his Aceb(anc
earnings thereon) prior to retirement or termimatd employment, except if permitted under Secfidh a Participant may apply to the
Administrator to withdraw some or all of his Accaufhsuch withdrawal is made on account of a haiplsls determined by the Employer.

7.8 Definition of Hardship. "Hardship" means any severe financial hardshipe Participant resulting from a sudden and
unexpected iliness or accident of the Participarthe Participant's dependent (as defined in Sedti?(a) of the Code), loss of the
Participant's property due to casualty, or othailar extraordinary and unforeseen circumstancisggras a result of events beyond the
control of the Participant. The circumstances thilitconstitute an unforeseeable emergency willatepon the facts of each case, but, in any
case, payment may not be made to the extent thathgardship is or may be relieved (i) through rainsement or compensation by insurance
or otherwise; (ii) by liquidation of the Particigimassets, to the extent the liquidation of sissee would not itself cause severe financial
hardship; or (iii) by cessation of deferrals unther Plan. Furthermore, examples of events thatdvoot be considered unforeseeable
emergencies include the need to send a Participaritd to college or the desire to purchase a home

7.9 Effect of Early Distribution.  If a Participant, pursuant to Section 1.6(t§¢ts to receive a distribution of all or a portiainhis
Account on a date prior to that established unigleiPlan, including the Adoption Agreement and thgi€ipant's election form, the amount
distributed shall equal 90% of the portion of ttetRipant's Account balance requested to be Higed, and the remaining portion shall be
treated as forfeited by the Participant; providealyever, that if a Participant withdraws any partaf his Account balance, he will be barred
from further participation in the Plan until thesfi day of the Plan Year following the conclusidradwelve (12) month period beginning on
the date the early distribution occurs.

8. DISTRIBUTION OF BENEFITS PAYABLE AFTER TERMIN ATION OF SERVICE.
8.1 Distribution of Benefits to Participants anl Beneficiaries.

(a) Distributions under the Plan to a Participantoothe Beneficiary of the Participant shall be madder a systematic
withdrawal plan (installment(s)) not exceeding Bass or, if elected by the Employer in Section lt@ specified in the Participant's
deferral election, in a lump sum.

(b) Distributions under a systematic withdrawal planst be made in substantially equal annual, or frecpient, installments,
in cash over a period certain which does not exd®egkars. A systematic withdrawal plan may inclag#gan whereby one installmi
is elected



8.2 Determination of Timing and Method of Distibution.  The Participant will elect the timing and methaf distribution of Plan
benefits to himself and the timing and method sfribution to his Beneficiary. Such election wi#t made at the time the Participant makes a
deferral election. Such election shall apply toaatiounts deferred in the applicable Plan Year. gi¢aant may modify the election made
under this Section 8.2 by submitting a completeti @xecuted form provided for such purpose; provithedvever, that such change shall not
be given any effect unless a full calendar yeasgabetween the date on which such election fosulimitted and the date of the distribution
designated on such form. If the Participant dodetext the method of distribution to him or hisnéciary, the method shall be a single
installment payment. If the Participant does netethe

timing of distribution to him or his Beneficianhea Participant's account balance will be distridutpon his termination of service with the
Company.

8.3 Notice to Trustee. The Administrator will notify the Trustee in iting whenever any Participant or Beneficiary isited to
receive benefits under the Plan. The Administratootice shall indicate the form, amount and fregyef benefits that such Participant or
Beneficiary shall receive.

8.4 Time of Distribution. In no event will distribution to a Participareg made later than the date specified by the Raatitin his
salary reduction agreement.

9. AMENDMENT AND TERMINATION.

9.1 Amendment by Employer. The Employer reserves the authority to amerdPtlan by filing with the Trustee an amended
Adoption Agreement, executed by the Employer oalywhich said Employer has indicated a change angés in provisions previously
elected by it. Such changes are to be effectiviherffective date of such amended Adoption Agregnfny such change notwithstanding,
no Participant's Account shall be reduced by siamge below the amount to which the Participantldvbave been entitled if he had
voluntarily left the employ of the Employer immetily prior to the date of the change. The Emplayay from time to time make any
amendment to the Plan that may be necessary sfystite Code or ERISA. The Employer's board ofatoes or other individual specified in
the resolution adopting this Plan shall act on Heifahe Employer for purposes of this Section.9.1

9.2 Retroactive Amendments. An amendment made by the Employer in accordwiiteSection 9.1 may be made effective on a
date prior to the first day of the Plan Year in g¥hit is adopted if such amendment is necessaappropriate to enable the Plan and Trust to
satisfy the applicable requirements of the CodeERISA or to conform the Plan to any change in fablew or to any regulations or ruling
thereunder. Any retroactive amendment by the Engslefall be subject to the provisions of Sectidn 9.

9.3 Termination. The Employer has adopted the Plan with thentide and expectation that contributions will betioued
indefinitely. However, said Employer has no obligator liability whatsoever to maintain the Plam &my length of time and may discontinue
contributions under the Plan or terminate the Rtaany time by written notice delivered to the Teeswithout any liability hereunder for any
such discontinuance or termination.

9.4 Distribution upon Termination of the Plan. Upon termination of the Plan, no further Dedé@ontributions or Matching
Contributions shall be made under the Plan. Intaddiupon termination of the Plan, the Board afedtors of the Employer may, in its sole
discretion, determine whether or not Participafst€ounts maintained under the Plan will be immehadlistributed in a single lump sum or
continue to be governed by the terms of the Plaihpaid out in accordance with the terms of tharPand each Participant's election under
Section 7.1 of the Plan.

10. MISCELLANEOUS.

10.1 Communication to Participants. The Plan will be communicated to all Particifsaloy the Employer promptly after the Pla
adopted.

10.2 Limitation of Rights. Neither the establishment of the Plan and thwst] nor any amendment thereof, nor the creatiany
fund or account, nor the payment of any benefith b& construed as giving to any Participant dvastperson any legal or equitable right
against the Employer, Administrator or Trustee eg@s provided herein; and in no event will threneof employment or service of any
Participant be modified or in any way affected hgre

10.3 Nonalienability of Benefits. The benefits provided hereunder will not bejscitto alienation, assignment, garnishm



attachment, execution or levy of any kind, eithelumtarily or involuntarily, and any attempt to sausuch benefits to be so subjected will not
be recognized, except to such extent as may béreedoy law.

10.4 Facility of Payment. In the event the Administrator determines, lenhasis of medical reports or other evidencefaatisry
to the Administrator, that the recipient of any éfinpayments under the Plan is incapable of hagdiis affairs by reason of minority, illne
infirmity or other incapacity, the Administrator sndirect the Trustee to disburse such paymentsprson or institution designated by a
court which has jurisdiction over such recipienagrerson or institution otherwise having the legahority under State law for the care and
control of such recipient. The receipt by such persr institution of any such payments shall be plete acquittance therefore, and any such
payment to the extent thereof, shall dischargdidihdity of the Trust for the payment of benefitereunder to such recipient.

10.5 Information between Employer and Trustee. The Employer agrees to furnish the Trustee thedrustee agrees to furnish
the Employer with such information relating to ®lan and Trust as may be required by the otherderdo carry out their respective duties
hereunder, including without limitation informatioaquired under the Code or ERISA and any regulatissued or forms adopted thereur

10.6 Notices. Any notice or other communication in connectath this Plan shall be deemed delivered in wgtihaddressed as
provided below and if either actually deliveredsaid address or, in the case of a letter, threméss days shall have elapsed after the same
shall have been deposited in the United Statespfait-class postage prepaid and registeredrtified:

(@) If to the Employer or Administrator, to it at taedress set forth in the Adoption Agreement, &dattention of the person
specified to receive notice in the Adoption Agreemme

(b) If to the Trustee, to it at the address set fortthe Trust Agreement;

or, in each case at such other addredsasddressee shall have specified by written ndidigered in accordance with the
foregoing to the addressor's then effective naidress.

10.7 Governing Law. The Plan and the accompanying Adoption Agreeméhbe construed, administered and enforced ating
to ERISA, and to the extent not preempted thertzylaws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts.

10.8 Establishment of Trust. The Employer shall be responsible for the paymoéall benefits under the Plan. At its discratithe
Employer may establish one or more grantor trumtshife purpose of providing for the payment of bgsender the Plan; provided, however,
that the establishment of such a trust shall rfecafhe status of the Plan as an unfunded plach 8ust or trusts may be irrevocable, but the
assets thereof shall be subject to the claimseoEtinployer's creditors in the event of its bankeymtr insolvency. Benefits paid to the
Participants from any such trust shall be consitieaed by the Employer for purposes of meetingabléggations of the Employer under the
Plan. Notwithstanding the establishment of a tril&,Employer reserves the right at any time aadhftime to time to pay Plan benefits to
Participants or their Beneficiaries in whole opirt from sources other than the Trust, in whickeaapon the Employer's request, the
Employer shall receive a distribution from the Trimsan amount equal to the amount paid by the Bygslfrom sources other than the Trust
to the Participant in satisfaction of its obligatsounder the Plan, provided that such distribusioall not exceed the amount of Trust assets
previously allocated to such Participant or Benafic
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11. PLAN ADMINISTRATION.

11.1  Powers and responsibilities of the Admirtimtor.  The Administrator has the full power and thk fesponsibility to
administer the Plan in all of its details, subjdétywever, to the applicable requirements of ERIBiAe Administrator's powers and
responsibilities include, but are not limited tioe following:

(&) To make and enforce such rules and regulatioitsd@ems necessary or proper for the efficientiathtnation of the Plan;

(b) To interpret the Plan, its interpretation theneogood faith to be final and conclusive on aliquns claiming benefits under
the Plan;

(c) To decide all questions concerning the Plan hacktigibility of any person to participate in tRian;
(d) To administer the claims and review proceduresifipd in Section 11.3;

(e) To compute the amount of benefits which will lagg@ble to any Participant, former Participant on&feiary in accordance
with the provisions of the Plan;

() To determine the person or persons to whom bankfits will be paid



(g) To authorize the payment of benefits;
(h) To comply with the reporting and disclosure reguients of Part 1 of Subtitle B of Title | of ERISA
(i) To appoint such agents, counsel, accountamtisc@nsultants as may be required to assist inrasteiing the Plan;

() By written instrument, to allocate and delegeteesponsibilities, including the formation af Administrative Committee
to administer the Plan;

11.2  Nondiscriminatory Exercise of Authority. Whenever, in the administration of the Plary, discretionary action by the
Administrator is required, the Administrator shelercise its authority in a nondiscriminatory marseethat all persons similarly situated v
receive substantially the same treatment.

11.3 Claims and Review Procedures.

(@) Claims Procedure. If any person believes he is being denied &tits or benefits under the Plan, such person iifa f
claim in writing with the Administrator. If any shalaim is wholly or partially denied, the Adminigtor will notify such person of its
decision in writing. Such notification will conta{i) specific reasons for the denial, (ii) speciféference to pertinent Plan provisions,
(iii) a description of any additional material oférmation necessary for such person to perfedt slaim and an explanation of why
such material or information is necessary, andififgrmation as to the steps to be taken if thes@emishes to submit a request for
review. Such natification will be given within 9@&ys after the claim is received by the Administrgts within 180 days, if special
circumstances require an extension of time for @ssimg the claim, and if written notice of sucheasion and circumstances is given
to such person within the initial 90-day period)such natification is not given within such perjdde claim will be considered denied
as of the last day of such period and such personreguest a review of his claim.

(b) Review Procedure  Within 60 days after the date on which a pengzeives a written notice of a denied claim ifor,
applicable, within 60 days after the date on wisiabh denial is considered to have occurred), secsop (or his duly authorized
representative) may (i) file a written request wiie Administrator for a review of his denied claamd of pertinent documents and
(i) submit written issues and comments to the Adstrator. The Administrator will notify

11

such person of its decision in writing. Such noétion will be written in a manner calculated toumelerstood by such person and will
contain specific reasons for the decision as we#igecific references to pertinent Plan provisidihg decision on review will be ma
within 60 days after the request for review is reee by the Administrator (or within 120 days, fexial circumstances require an
extension of time for processing the request, sigchn election by the Administrator to hold a hegrand if written notice of such
extension and circumstances is given to such peribin the initial 60-day period). If the decisi@m review is not made within such
period, the claim will be considered denied.

11.4 Costs of Administration. Unless some or all costs and expenses arebpdlte Employer, all reasonable costs and expenses
(including legal, accounting, and employee commaitndn fees) incurred by the Administrator and thestee in administering the Plan and
Trust will be paid first from the forfeitures (ihg) resulting under Section 7.5, then from the ri@mg Trust Fund. All such costs and
expenses paid from the Trust Fund will, unlesscalide to the Accounts of particular Participanescharged against the Accounts of all
Participants on gro ratabasis or in such other reasonable manner as mdiydmted by the Employer.
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THE CORPORATEPLAN FOR
RETIREMENT SELECT PLAN

ADOPTION AGREEMENT
IMPORTANT NOTE

This document is not an IRS approved Prototype PlanAn Adopting Employer may not rely solely on thisPlan to ensure that the Plan
is "unfunded and maintained primarily for the purpo se of providing deferredcompensation to a select group of management or ily
compensated employees" and exempt from Parts 2 thugh 4 of Title | of the Employee Retirement Incomeéecurity Act of 1974 with
respect to the Employer's particular situation. Ficelity Management Trust Company, its affiliates andemployees may not provide you
with legal advice in connection with the executionf this document. This document should be reviewely your attorney and/or
accountant prior to execution.

1. ADOPTION AGREEMENT

1.1 PLAN INFORMATION.

@) Name of Plan:

This is the Gilead Sciences, Inc. Deferred Compans®lan (the "Plan™)

(b) Name of Plan Administrator, if not the Employe

Address:

Phone Number:

The Plan Administrator is the agent for servicéegfl process for the Pla
(c) Three Digit Plan Number:N/A

(d) Plan Year End (month/day)December 3:

(e) Plan Status(check one)
Q) [ Effective Date of new Plan: January 1, 2(
@ -

Amendment Effective Date:

The original effective date of the Plan:

1.2 EMPLOYER

(@) The Employer is: Gilead Sciences, In

Address: 333 Lakeside Drive
Foster City, CA 9440

Contact's Name: Marsha Robe
Telephone Number: 1 (800) GILEAD

(1) Employer's Tax Identification Number: 3047598



2) Business form of Employer (check one):

(A) X  Corporation
(B) O  Sole proprietor or partnership
(©) O  Subchapter S Corporation
€) Employer's fiscal year end:
(b) The term "Employer" includes the following RelateEmployer(s)(as defined in Section 2.01(a)(21
None
1
1.3 COVERAGE.
(a) Only those Employees listed in Attachment A will &gible to participate in the Plan.
(b) The Entry Date(s) shall bécheck one)
1) [x] the first day of each Plan Year.
2) O the first day of each Plan Year and the date sinth®later.
(3) O the first day of each Plan Year and the first daghe fourth, seventh and tenth
months.
(4) O the first day of each month.

1.4 COMPENSATION.

For purposes of determining Contributions under tiidan, Compensation shall be as defined in Sectibf1(a)(6), but
excluding (check the appropriate box(es

() o Overtime Pay.

(b) O Bonuses.

(c) O Commissions.

(d) O The value of a qualified or a nayualified stock option granted to an Employee ey Bmployer to th
extent such value is includable in the Employeetaltle income

(e) O No exclusions

15 CONTRIBUTIONS.

(@) Deferral Contributions. The Employer shall make aefferral Contribution in accordance with Section 4LMn
behalf of each Participant who has an executed sgleeduction agreement in effect with the Employfer the
Plan Year (or portion of the Plan Year) in questipnot to exceed % [see Addendum] of Compensatdr
that Plan Year.



(b) o Matching Contributions
Q) The Employer shall make a Matching Contribution dmehalf of each Participant in an amount equal to
the following percentage of a Participant's Defedr@ontributions during the Plan Year (check one’
(A) O 50%
(B) O 100%
© . %
(D) O (Tiered Match) % of the first % of therft@pant's Compensation
contributed to the Plai
% of the next % of the Participant's @emsation contributed to the
Plan,
% of the next % of the Participant's @emsation contributed to the
Plan.
2
(E) O The percentage declared for the year, if any, Bpard of Directors'
resolution.
(F) O Other:
(2) o Matching Contribution Limits(check the appropriate box(es
(A) O Deferral Contributions in excess of % of ttatRipant's Compensation
for the period in question shall not be considdozdviatching
Contributions.
Note: If the Employer elects a percentage limit in (Apad and requests the
Trustee to account separately for matched and wireatDeferral
Contributions, the Matching Contributions allocatedach Participant
must be computed, and the percentage limit apdii@sied upon each
period.
(B) O Matching Contributions for each Participant forle&tan Year shall be
limited to $
?3) Eligibility Requirement(s) for Matching Contributias

A Participant who makes Deferral Contributions dgrithe Plan Year under Section 1.05(a) shall be
entitled to Matching Contributions for that Planaréf the Participant satisfies the following regument
(s) (Check the appropriate box(es). Options (B) @jdmay not be elected togethe

(A) O Is employed by the Employer on the last day ofRlen Year.

(B) O Earns at least 500 Hours of Service during the Fkar.

(©) O Earns at least 1,000 Hours of Service during the Rlear.



(D) O No requirements

Note: If option (A), (B) or (C) above is selected thentbtang Contributions can only be made by
the Employeafter the Plan Year ends. Any Matching Contribution mbdfore Plan Year
end shall not be subject to the eligibility requients of this Section 1.05(b)(3

1.6 DISTRIBUTION DATES. See Addendum.
A Participant may elect to receive a distributisrcommence distributions from his Account pursuarection 8.02 upon
the following date(s) (check the appropriate box(E<ption (c) is elected, then options (a) abyirhay not be electec
(@) o Attainment of Normal Retirement Age. Normal Retiremt Age under the Plan i(check one)
Q) O age 65
(2 O age (specify from 55 through €
3) O later of the age (can not exceed 63heffifth anniversary of the Participant's
Commencement Dat
3
(b) o Attainment of Early Retirement Age. Early RetiremieAge is the first day of the month after tt
Participant attains age (specify 55 aegter) and completes Years of ServimeMesting.
(c) o Termination of employment with the Employe
1.7 VESTING SCHEDULE.
(@) The Participant's vested percentage in Matching Gadbutions elected in Section 1.05(b) shall be bdsgon the
schedule(s) selected belo
N/A—No Matching Contributions
1) 9
2) O 100% Vesting immediately
(3) O 3 year cliff (see C below)
(4) O 5 year cliff (see D below)
(5) O 6 year graduated (see E below)
(6) O 7 year graduated (see F below)
@) O G below
(8) O Other (Attachment "B")
Vesting Schedule
Years of
Service for
Vesting C D E F G
0 0 % 0 % 0 % 0 % —
1 0 % 0 % 0 % 0 % —
2 0 % 0 % 20 % 0 % —
3 100 % 0 % 40 % 20 % —
4 100 % 0 % 60 % 40 % —
5 100 % 100 % 80 % 60 % —
6 100 % 100 % 100 % 80 % —
7 100 % 100 % 100 % 100 % 100 %

(b) O Years of Service for Vesting shall excludgheck one)



(1) O for new plans, service prior to the Effective Dasedefined in Section 1.01(e)(1).

() O for existing plans converting from another planwoent, service prior to the original
Effective Date as defined in Section 1.01(e)

(c) O A Participant will forfeit his Matching Contributits upon the occurrence of the following event (s):

(d) A Participant will be 100% vested in his Matchingr@ributions upon (check the appropriate box(ésny):

(1) O Normal Retirement Age (as defined in Section 1.1)6
2) O Early Retirement Age (as defined in Section 1.06(b)
(3) O Death.

4

1.8

1.9

1.10

1.11

PREDECESSOR EMPLOYER SERVICE.

o Service for purposes of vesting in Section 1.07hall include service with the following employe{:

@)

(b)

(©

(d)

HARDSHIP WITHDRAWALS.

Participant withdrawals for hardship prior to termiation of employmen(check one)

@) B will be allowed in accordance with Section 7.07 pgect to a $1,000 minimum amount. (Must be at
least $1,000.
(b) o will not be allowed

DISTRIBUTIONS.

Subject to Articles 7 and 8, distributions underetPlan will be paic(check the appropriate box(es
@ O as a lump sum.

(b) B under a systematic withdrawal plan (installmentsytto exceed 10 years.

INVESTMENT DECISIONS.



(@) Investment Directions

Investments in which the Accounts of Participamilisbe treated as invested and reinvested shairbeted
(check one)

(1) O by theEmployer among the options listed in (b) below.
2) O by eachParticipant among the options listed in (b) below.
(3) O by each Participant with respect to Deferral Cdmttipns and by the Employer with resg

to Employer Matching Contributions. The Employershdirect the Employer Matching
Contributions among the same investment optionseraadilable for Participant directed
sources listed in (b) belo

Note:
Note:

(b) Plan Investment Option:

Participant Accounts will be treated as investedagnthe Fidelity Funds listed below pursuant tatiBigant

and/or Employer direction
Fund Name Fund Number

Q) Fidelity Managed Income Portfolio
(2) Fidelity Intermediate Bond Fund
3) Fidelity Equity-Income Fund
(4) Fidelity Growth & Income Portfolio
(5) Spartan U.S. Equity Index Fund
(6) Fidelity Growth Company Fund
@) Fidelity Independence Fund
(8) Fidelity Low Priced Stock Fund
9) Janus Twenty Fund
(10) Fidelity Diversified Investment Fund
(11) Fidelity Freedom Income Fund
(12) Fidelity Freedom 2000 Fund
(13) Fidelity Freedom 2010 Fund
(14) Fidelity Freedom 2020 Fund
(15) Fidelity Freedom 2030 Fund
(16) Fidelity Freedom 2040 Fund
An additional annual recordkeeping fee will be geat for each fund in excess of five fun
The method and frequency for change of investmaititbe determined under the rules applicable to
the selected funds. Information will be providedarmling expenses, if any, for changes in investment
options.
1.12 RELIANCE ON PLAN.

An adopting Employer may not rely solely on thiaPto ensure that the Plan is "unfunded and maiedaprimarily for
the purpose of providing deferred compensatiorafselect group of management or highly compensatgzloyees” an
exempt from Parts 2 through 4 of Title | of the Hayee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 wigkpect to the
Employer's particular situation. This Agreement trhesreviewed by your attorney and/or accountafurbat is
executed

This Adoption Agreement may be used only in confiamcwith the CORPORATEplan for Retirement Seleasis Plan
Document.

EXECUTION PAGE



(Fidelity's Copy)

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Employer has cauthésiAdoption Agreement to be executed thi8day of September, 2001.

Employer Gilead Sciences, Inc
By /sl Marsha Roberts
Title V.P. Human Resources
Employer Gilead Sciences, Inc
By /sl Gregg Alton

Title V.P. & General Counsel
7

EXECUTION PAGE
(Employer's Copy)

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Employer has caubésiAdoption Agreement to be executed thi8day of September, 2001.

Employer Gilead Sciences, Inc
By /sl Marsha Roberts
Title V.P. Human Resources
Employer Gilead Sciences, Inc
By /sl Gregg Alton

Title V.P. & General Counsel
Employer

By

Title

Date

Note: The Employer must revise Attachment A to add emgésyas they become eligible or delete



employees who are no longer eligit

ATTACHMENT A

Pursuant to Section 1.03(a), the following are thEmployees who are eligible to participate in the Rin:
Gilead Employees and Non-Employee Directors

Gilead VP's & Above:

John Martin

Mark Perry
Norbert Bischofberge
Sharon Surre-Barbari
Bill Lee

Mike Inouye
Howard Jaffe
Alan Taylor

Carol Brosgar
Bruno Delagnea
Choung Kim
Ernie Prisbe
Gregg Alton

Jay Toole

Jim Rooney

John Milligan
Marsha Robert
Max Hensley
Mick Hitchcock
Michael Wulfsohr
Taiyin Yang
Crispin Eley
Tony Caracciolc

Board Members:

Paul Berg

George P. Shultz
Etienne F. Davignon
James M. Denny
Gordon E. Moore
Cordell Hull

CEO President & CEC

EVP Operations

EVP Research & Developme
CFO Chief Financial Office
SVP Research & Product Developme
SVP Sales & Marketing

VP Clinical Researcl

VP Regulatory Affairs

VP Clinical Researcl

VP Global Marketing

VP Researcl

VP Process Developme

VP General Counst

VP Clinical Researcl

VP Clinical Researcl

VP Corporate Dev

VP Human Resource

VP Intellectual Propert

VP Researcl

VP Biostatistics & Data Mgm
VP Researcl

SVP Pharmaceutical Operatio
VP Manufacturing
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JULY 19, 2001

This Addendum to the Gilead Sciences, Dreferred Compensation Plan (the "Plan”) and itspiidm Agreement (the "Adoption
Agreement”) is effective concurrent with the inigaoption of the Plan by the Board of Directs de@d Sciences, Inc. and is intended to set
forth certain provisions of the Plan and the AdoptAgreement. The Addendum has been preparedegssase document at the request and
for the convenience of the Plan's recordkeepemandor any legal or regulatory reason.

Adoption Agreement
1. Section 1.3(a) of the Adoption Agreeris deleted in its entirety and replaced with fibllowing:
(@ Only those Employees and Non-Employee Directorgelisin Attachment A will be eligible to participata the Plan.
2. Section 1.4 of the Adoption Agreemisramended by adding the following new paragragitike end of the section:
For purposes of determining Contributions under tidan, Annual Retainer shall be defined in Secti@il(a)(28).
For purposes of determining Contributions under tian, Bonus shall be defined in Section 2.1(a)(29)
For purposes of determining Contributions under thidan, Salary shall be defined in Section 2.1(a)}31
3. Section 1.5(a) of the Adoption Agresmmis deleted in its entirety and replaced withfiilowing:

(@) Deferral Contributions. The Employer shall make a Deferral Contribution imccordance with Section 4.1 on behalf
of each Participant who has an executed Salary/Baefiinnual Retainer reduction agreement in effect tvithe Employer for the
Plan Year (or portion of the Plan Year) in questipnot to exceed:

(1) 70% of Salary for that Plan Year; and/or
2 100% of Bonus for that Plan Year; and/or

(3)  100% of the Annual Retainer for that Plan Year.
4. Section 1.6 of the Adoption Agreemisriteleted in its entirety and replaced with thiéfving:

(@ Normal Distribution. A Participant may elect to receive a distribution commence distributions from his Account
pursuant to Section 8.2 upon attainment of one bétfollowing ages and may further elect to receavéistribution from his
Account pursuant to Section 8.2 either (i) five (¢ars following the date of the Participant's teimmation of service with the
Employer, (ii) two

(2) years following the date of such termination €ii) immediately following the date of such termation:

75
70
65
60
55
50

(b) Early Distribution.  Notwithstanding a Participant's election to receigedistribution as set forth in Section 1.6(a)
above, pursuant to Section 7.9 of the Plan a Pdpant may elect at any time to receive an Early Dilsution of all or a portion of
his Account; provided, however, that a Participantll receive only 90% of the portion of his Accoubtilance requested to be
distributed, and the remaining 10% will be forfedepermanently to the Employer; provided further, Wwever, that if a Participant
withdraws any portion of his Account balance, helle barred from further participation in the Plamuntil the first day of the Plan
Year following the conclusion of a twelve (12) mbnperiod beginning on the date the early distriboiti occurs.

Plan Document



5. The Table of Contents is reviseddacadance with this Addendum to the Gilead Scienices Deferred Compensation Plan.
6. The Preamble of the Plan is deleteitsientirety and replaced with the following:

It is the intention of the Employer to establish ken an unfunded plan maintained solely for the ppose of providing
deferred compensation for non-employee membershefBoard of Directors and a select group of managarhor highly
compensated employees for purposes of Title | ol &R

7. Section 2.1(a)(6) of the Plan is adezhby replacing "402(a)(8)" with "402(e)(3)." Sent2.1(a)(6) of the Plan is further amended
by adding the following new sentence at the enttheffirst paragraph:

Notwithstanding the foregoing, Compensation shabtninclude employee referral awards or severancgmants.
8. Section 2.1(a)(15) of the Plan itk in its entirety and replaced with the follogiin
(15) [Reserved.]
9. Section 2.1(a)(17) of the Plan istld in its entirety and replaced with the folloguin

(17) ‘"Participant" means any Employee or Non-Employee fiector who participates in the Plan in accordanceéthv
Article 3 hereof.

10. A new Section 2.1(a)(28) of the Plmadded as follows:

(28) "Annual Retainer" means the annual retainer paid ta Non-Employee Director.
11. A new Section 2.1(a)(29) of the Plmadded as follows:

(29) "Bonus" means an Employee's bonus paid pursuantttte Company's Management Bonus Plan.
12. A new Section 2.1(a)(30) of the Plaadded as follows:

(30) "Non-Employee Director" means a non-employee memhodithe Board of Directors of the Employer.

2

13. A new Section 2.1(a)(31) of the Plaadded as follows:
(31) "Salary" means an Employee's base salary.
14. A new Section 3.4 of the Plan is adaedbllows:

3.4 Director Participation. An eligible Non-Employee Director (as set forth Bection 1.3(a)) will become a Participant
in the Plan on the first Entry Date after which hkeecomes an eligible No&mployee Director if he has filed an election pursat to
Section 4.1. If the eligible Non-Employee Directdoes not file an election pursuant to Section 4rlop to his first Entry Date, then
the eligible Non-Employee Director will become amaipant in the Plan as of the first day of a Plaviear for which he has filed an
election.

15. Section 4.1 of the Plan is deleteiisientirety and replaced with the following:

4.1 Deferral Contributions. Each Participant may elect to execute a Salary/Befinnual Retainer reduction agreement
with the Employer to reduce his Compensation or Arah Retainer by a specified percentage not excegdime percentage set forth
in Section 1.5(a) and equal to a whole number mplé of one (1) percent. Such agreement shall becafiective on the first day of
the period as set forth in the Participant's eleati. The election will be effective to defer Compatisn or Annual Retainer relating
to all services performed in the Plan Year. A nelgaion must be made prior to each Plan Year in erdor a Participant to
continue participation in the Plan for that Plan Yar. A new election, other than the Participant'sitial election under the Plan,
will be effective as of the first day of the follamg Plan Year and will apply only to Compensation Annual Retainers payable with
respect to services rendered after such date. Antewnedited to a Participant's Account prior to thedfective date of any new
election will not be affected and will be paid iteordance with that prior election. The Employeralhcredit an amount to the



Account maintained on behalf of the Participant casponding to the amount of the Compensation or A Retainer reduction.
Under no circumstances may a Salary/Bonus/Annualt&eer reduction agreement be adopted retroactivélyParticipant may not
revoke a Salary/Bonus/Annual Retainer reduction @agment for a Plan Year during that year.

16. Section 7.1 of the Plan is deleteiisientirety and replaced with the following:

7.1 Distribution Election. Each Participant shall designate on his Salary/Bosidnnual Retainer reduction agreement
election form timing and method of the distributioof Plan benefits as provided in Article 8 hereof.

17. A new Section 7.8 of the Plan is adaedbllows:

7.8 Definition of Hardship.  "Hardship" means any severe financial hardship thé Participant resulting from a sudden
and unexpected illness or accident of the Partiaipar the Participant's dependent (as defined incBen 152(a) of the Code), loss
of the Participant's property due to casualty, other similar extraordinary and unforeseen circumstaes arising as a result of
events beyond the control of the Participant. Thecamstances that will constitute an unforeseeal@mergency will depend on the
facts of each case, but, in any case, payment matybe made to the extent that such hardship is axynbe relieved (i) through
reimbursement or compensation by insurance or othée; (ii) by liquidation of the Participant's ast® to the extent the liquidatic
of such assets would not itself cause severe firiahlsardship; or (iii) by cessation of deferrals wrer the Plan. Furthermore,
examples of events that would not be consideredoua$eeable emergencies include the need to sendradipant's child to college
or the desire to purchase a home.

18. A new Section 7.9 of the Plan is adaedbllows:

7.9 Effect of Early Distribution.  If a Participant, pursuant to Section 1.6(d), electo receive a distribution of all or a
portion of his Account on a date prior to that estisshed under the Plan, including the Adoption Aggsent and the Participant's
election form, the amount distributed shall equad®% of the portion of the Participant's Account balae requested to be
distributed, and the remaining

portion shall be treated as forfeited by the Paiiant; provided, however, that if a Participant vaidraws any portion of his Accour
balance, he will be barred from further participain in the Plan until the first day of the Plan Yedollowing the conclusion of a
twelve (12) month period beginning on the date #narly distribution occurs.

19. Section 8.1 of the Plan is deleteiisientirety and replaced with the following:
8.1 Distribution of Benefits to Participants and Benefaries.

€)) Distributions under the Plan to a Participant or tthe Beneficiary of the Participant shall be madader a
systematic withdrawal plan (installment(s)) not eading 10 years or, if elected by the Employer in
Section 1.10 and specified in the Participant's defal election, in a lump sum.

(b) Distributions under a systematic withdrawal plan reube made in substantially equal annual, or more
frequent, installments, in cash over a period carntavhich does not exceed 10 years. A systematibdvawal
plan may include a plan whereby one installmenteiected.

20. Section 8.2 of the Plan is deleteiisirentirety and replaced with the following:

8.2 Determination of Timing and Method of Distribution. The Participant will elect the timing and method of
distribution of Plan benefits to himself and thenting and method of distribution to his Beneficiarguch election will be made at
the time the Participant makes a deferral electiduch election shall apply to all amounts deferrigdthe applicable Plan Year. A
Participant may modify the election made under ttf8gction 8.2 by submitting a completed and executeth provided for such
purpose; provided, however, that such change simall be given any effect unless a full calendar ygrsses between the date on
which such election form is submitted and the datethe distribution designated on such form. If tHearticipant does not elect the
method of distribution to him or his Beneficiaryhe method shall be a single installment paymenttHé Participant does not elect
the timing of distribution to him or his Beneficiar, the Participant's account balance will be diditited upon his termination of
service with the Company.

21. Section 9.4 of the Plan is deleteiisirentirety and replaced with the following:

9.4 Distribution upon Termination of the Plan  Upon termination of the Plan, no further Deferral @ntributions or



Matching Contributions shall be made under the Plaim addition, upon termination of the Plan, the Bad of Directors of the
Employer may, in its sole discretion, determine e or not Participants' Accounts maintained undéne Plan will be
immediately distributed in a single lump sum or dimue to be governed by the terms of the Plan uptiid out in accordance with
the terms of the Plan and each Participant's elegtiunder Section 7.1 of the Plan.

22. A new Section 10.8 of the Plan is adae follows:

10.8 Establishment of Trust. The Employer shall be responsible for the paymehat benefits under the Plan. At its
discretion, the Employer may establish one or mgrantor trusts for the purpose of providing for thgayment of benefits under tr
Plan; provided, however, that the establishmentsotth a trust shall not affect the status of the BRlas an unfunded plan. Such
trust or trusts may be irrevocable, but the assisreof shall be subject to the claims of the Emydo's creditors in the event of its
bankruptcy or insolvency. Benefits paid to the Paipants from any such trust shall be consideredigpdy the Employer for
purposes of meeting the obligations of the Employeder the Plan. Notwithstanding the establishmenfta trust, the Employer
reserves the right at any time and from time to &@rto pay Plan benefits to Participants or their Befitiaries in whole or in part
from sources other than the Trust, in which casearpthe Employer's request, the Employer shall raeen distribution from the
Trust in an amount equal to the amount paid by tEenployer from sources other than the Trust to tharicipant in satisfaction of
its obligations under the Plan, provided that sudistribution shall not exceed the amount of Trusssets previously allocated to
such Participant or Beneficiary.
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SUBSIDIARIES OF GILEAD SCIENCES, INC.

Name of Subsidiary

Exhibit 21.1

Country or State of Incorporation

Gilead Sciences Limite

Gilead Irish Holdings Limite:
Gilead World Markets, Ltc
Gilead International, Ltc

Gilead International Holdings, Lti
Gilead Sciences Gmb

Gilead Sciences Se

Gilead Sciences S.r

Gilead Sciences, S.I

Gilead Sciences, Ld.

Gilead Sciences Lt

Gilead Sciences International L
Gilead Sciences PTY Limite
Gilead Sciences B.\

Gilead Sciences Hellas EF

Ireland
Cayman Island
Cayman Island
Cayman Island
Cayman Island
Germany
France

Italy

Spain

Portugal

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Australia
Netherland
Greece
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CONSENT OF ERNST & YOUNG LLP, INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

We consent to the incorporation by refeeeincthe Registration Statements (Form S-8 Nos-@H#28, 333-47520, 33-46058, 383719
and 33384713) pertaining to the 1991 Stock Option Pla@ 71 centive Stock Option Plan, 1987 SupplemeniatiSOption Plan, Employe
Stock Purchase Plan, and 1995 Non-Employee Dirgc®tock Option Plan of Gilead Sciences, Inc.NbXstar Pharmaceuticals, Inc. 1993
Incentive Stock Plan, NeXstar Pharmaceuticals,1885 Director Option Plan and Vestar, Inc. 198&BtOption Plan, and the Registration
Statements (Form S-3 Nos. 333-54350 and 333-871df63jlead Sciences, Inc. and in the related Prdsiges, as applicable, of our report
dated January 25, 2002, except for the paragrépt tiStock Split" of Note 1, as to which the detélarch 8, 2002, with respect to the
consolidated financial statements and schedulelef@ Sciences, Inc. included in this Annual RegBarm 10-K) for the year ended
December 31, 2001.

/s ERNST & YOUNG LLF
Palo Alto, California
March 26, 200:

QuickLinks
Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF ERNST & YOUNG LLP, INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
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Exhibit 23.2

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

We hereby consent to the inclusion in tmadal Report on Form 10-K of Gilead Sciences, tfi@ur report dated January 12, 2001
relating to the financial statements of Proligo LtdC the thirteen-month period ended December 8002which is incorporated by reference
in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Denver, Colorado
March 20, 2002
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CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS
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